Public Document Pack

Date:
Ask For:
Direct Dial:
Email:

02 March 2022
Katie Brewer
(08143) 577046
katie.brewer@thanet.gov.uk

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
9 MARCH 2022
A meeting of the Governance & Audit Committee will be held at 7.00 pm on Wednesday, 9
March 2022 in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent.
Membership:
Councillor Boyd (Chair); Councillors: Dexter (Vice-Chair), Braidwood, Duckworth, Garner,
Hopkinson, Kup, Pat Moore, Pugh, Shrubb, Towning and Whitehead

AGENDA
Item
No

Subject

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 3 - 4)
To receive any declarations of interest. Members are advised to consider the advice
contained within the Declaration of Interest advice attached to this Agenda. If a Member
declares an interest, they should complete the Declaration of Interest Form.

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 10)
To approve the Minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee meeting held on 1
December 2021, copy attached.

4.

QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (Pages 11 - 44)

5.

DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022-23 (Pages 45 - 64)

6.

CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT - QUARTERLY UPDATE (Pages 65 - 74)

7.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS UPDATE (Pages 75 - 100)

8.

2021/22 WAIVERS (Pages 101 - 128)

9.

LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Pages 129 - 146)

10.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2021/22 ACTION PLAN UPDATE (Pages 147 150)

11.

CHAIR'S ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL (Pages 151 - 166)

Thanet District Council, PO Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent, CT9 1XZ
Tel: +44 (0)1843 577000
Fax: +44 (0)1843 290906
DX 30555 (Margate)
www.thanet.gov.uk
Chief Executive: Madeline Homer

Page 1

Item
No

Subject

12.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS (Pages 167 - 172)

13.

G&A OVERSIGHT OF FRAUD, LAWS & REGULATIONS
Verbal update from Chris Blundell.

Page 2

Agenda Item 2

Do I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and if so what action should I take?
Your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are those interests that are, or should be, listed on your
Register of Interest Form.
If you are at a meeting and the subject relating to one of your DPIs is to be discussed, in so far as you
are aware of the DPI, you must declare the existence and explain the nature of the DPI during the
declarations of interest agenda item, at the commencement of the item under discussion, or when the
interest has become apparent
Once you have declared that you have a DPI (unless you have been granted a dispensation by the
Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to the Monitoring
Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.
2.
3.

Not speak or vote on the matter;
Withdraw from the meeting room during the consideration of the matter;
Not seek to improperly influence the decision on the matter.

Do I have a significant interest and if so what action should I take?
A significant interest is an interest (other than a DPI or an interest in an Authority Function) which:
1.
2.

Affects the financial position of yourself and/or an associated person; or
Relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent, licence, permission or
registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an associated person;
And which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would
reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public
interest.

An associated person is defined as:
● A family member or any other person with whom you have a close association, including your
spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife, or as if you are
civil partners; or
● Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a
partner, or any company of which they are directors; or
● Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
● Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are
appointed or nominated by the Authority; or
● any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or management and which:
- exercises functions of a public nature; or
- is directed to charitable purposes; or
- has as its principal purpose or one of its principal purposes the influence of public opinion or
policy (including any political party or trade union)

Page 3

Agenda Item 2
An Authority Function is defined as: ● Housing - where you are a tenant of the Council provided that those functions do not relate
particularly to your tenancy or lease; or
● Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Council;
● Any ceremonial honour given to members of the Council
● Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992
If you are at a meeting and you think that you have a significant interest then you must declare the
existence and nature of the significant interest at the commencement of the matter, or when the
interest has become apparent, or the declarations of interest agenda item.
Once you have declared that you have a significant interest (unless you have been granted a
dispensation by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to
the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.

2.
3.



Not speak or vote (unless the public have speaking rights, or you are present to make
representations, answer questions or to give evidence relating to the business being discussed in
which case you can speak only)
Withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the matter or immediately after speaking.
Not seek to improperly influence the decision.

Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality
Councillors must declare at meetings any gift, benefit or hospitality with an estimated value (or
cumulative value if a series of gifts etc.) of £25 or more. You must, at the commencement of the
meeting or when the interest becomes apparent, disclose the existence and nature of the gift, benefit or
hospitality, the identity of the donor and how the business under consideration relates to that person or
body. However you can stay in the meeting unless it constitutes a significant interest, in which case it
should be declared as outlined above.

What if I am unsure?
If you are in any doubt, Members are strongly advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or
the Committee Services Manager well in advance of the meeting.

If you need to declare an interest then please complete the declaration of interest form.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3
GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
Minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2021 at 7.00 pm in Council Chamber, Council
Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent.

Present:

1.

Councillor Kerry Boyd (Chair); Councillors Dexter, Braidwood,
Garner, Kup, Pat Moore, Pugh, Shrubb, Towning and Whitehead.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Cllr Duckworth.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
Cllr Pugh proposed, Cllr Towning seconded and members AGREED to approve the
minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2021.

4.

QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT
Simon Webb from East Kent Audit Partnership introduced the report, commenting that:







Six new pieces of work had been undertaken this quarter.
Particular note was given to Tenant Health & Safety, which had gained
reasonable assurance overall. The work undertaken since inheriting this area
from East Kent Housing was applauded. General Needs Housekeeping Within
Communal Blocks was one area still with limited assurance, but it was expected
to have at least reasonable assurance after the follow up.
Commercial Let Properties and Concessions had limited assurance, this was
particularly to do with a lack of up to date rent reviews in that area.
One follow up had been conducted during the period under review. From this
assurance levels for the cemetery and crematoria had been raised from
reasonable assurance to substantial.
Progress against the TDC 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan showed a little behind
target, with 43.7% completion at the 6 month stage (30 September). However,
this had raised to 66% (at 30 November) of the council’s target for completion by
March.

Members commented on the report and it was noted that:



Members echoed the appreciation for the Housing Team’s hard work, especially
during Covid.
A query was raised regarding ICT licences, asking why they hadn't yet been
updated. The reason was not known but a response would be given in writing
after the meeting.

Cllr Kup proposed, Cllr Pugh seconded and members AGREED that the report be noted
and any changes to the agreed 2021-22 Internal Audit Plan, resulting from changes in
perceived risk, detailed at point 5.0 of Annex 1 of the attached report be approved.
5.

MID YEAR REVIEW 2021-22:
INVESTMENT STRATEGY

TREASURY

MANAGEMENT

AND

Page 5

ANNUAL

Agenda Item 3
2

The Director of Finance, Chris Blundell, introduced the report, noting that:








This report was put before Cabinet on 16 November and, subject to any
comments from the committee, would be taken to the next meeting of Full
Council.
There were no foreseen issues with meeting the targets approved in February.
It was considered unlikely that TDC would spend the full revised budget this year.
The budget had increased from 22 million pounds to 31 million for the Capital
Program. However, the majority of that increase had come from grants and
therefore there had only been a modest increase in borrowing.
There were 54 million pounds worth of investments at the midpoint of the year.
These were low risk and low return investments.
There were 20 million pounds of external borrowing at the mid-year point and no
new borrowing undertaken during the first half of the year. 4 million pounds had
been repaid during the year so far.
The borrowing position of the Council would be looked at further during the
second half of the year; considering whether to take on more debt earlier than
planned due to the forecast increase in interest rates.

During discussion it was noted that:








In addition to the 4 million pounds already paid off, there would be another c.4
million to pay this year. It was deemed likely that TDC would re-finance that debt
and take on additional borrowing at that point.
Only a small proportion of TDC’s debt would be coming to maturity in the next 5
years.
Historically the Council had tended to use cash balances to fund capital schemes.
However, due to a projection of rising interest rates, in the near future officers
would look into taking on more debt.
No borrowing had been set aside for the office accommodation or toilet
improvement schemes. The plans were that they would be financed through the
disposal of related assets.
Borrowing to fund the toilet scheme would require finding revenue budgets and/or
cash reserves to pay back the debt and as such would not be feasible.
A toilet strategy was in consultation at the moment with a view to addressing
various methods for the refurbishment of toilets.
Discussions had taken place concerning Thanet’s contribution to Thanet Parkway
Railway Station, with the view that it should be proportionate to the KCC
contribution. The actual figure would be unknown until nearer the end of the
project (spring next year).

Cllr Pugh proposed, Cllr Towning seconded and members AGREED to recommend this
report and annexes, including the prudential and treasury indicators that were shown and
the proposed changes to the 2021-22 Treasury Management Strategy Statement, to Full
Council.
6.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, MINIMUM REVENUE
PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY FOR
2022-23
Chris Blundell presented the report with the following comments:


The capital expenditure plan totals c.70 million pounds over the medium term.
This would be funded primarily from grants and some from HRA reserves. TDC
would also need to borrow c.11 million pounds towards this.

Page 6

Agenda Item 3
3








There were no major changes noted to the minimum revenue provision (the
Council’s policy for the re-payment of debt) and it would next go to Full Council.
The gross debt for TDC was expected to increase, in line with the strategy.
The authorised limit on debt is £126 000 000, beyond which Full Council would
be consulted.
Interest base rates were forecast to increase 0.25% per year until 2025.
There is a limited scope of institutions that TDC would take on debt from, which
were listed in the report.
The Council’s strategy for investment was focussed on managing risk and as
such considered the credit worthiness of organisations carefully.
Investments made were generally for less than one year and a limit of 5 million
pounds was in place as a total that could be invested for longer than one year.

The Chair requested refresher training for Governance & Audit committee members in
the next quarter. There were no other comments from members.
Cllr Kup proposed, Cllr Shrubb seconded and members AGREED to recommended this
report and each of the key elements listed to Full Council, namely:
a. The Capital Plans, Prudential Indicators and Limits for 2022-23 to 2024-25,
including the Authorised Limit Prudential Indicator;
b. The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy;
c. The Treasury Management Strategy for 2022-23 to 2024-25 and the Treasury
Indicators;
d. The Investment Strategy for 2022-23 contained in the Treasury Management
Strategy, including the detailed criteria;
e. The Capital Strategy for 2022-23;
f. The Non-Treasury Investments Report for 2022-23.
7.

CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT - QUARTERLY UPDATE
Mr Blundell introduced the review of corporate risks, making the following key points:











The risk register was last brought to the committee in July 2021.
Points of note since then include:
There has been an increased risk for berths 4&5 of Ramsgate Port due to the
need for an environmental impact assessment and potential costs associated
with delays to the project. It was noted that the project is still forecast to come in
on budget.
There has been no change in risk score for cyber attacks. Officers are
progressing with insurance coverage in this area.
There is increased pressure for homelessness provision in the Council from both
demand and the supply of properties that can be made available for temporary
accommodation. This had been seen in a 0.5 million pound overspend on the
budget this year.
At the time of writing there was a reduced risk for Covid-19. It was commented
that if this had been written more recently the risk would have remained high.
The Environment Act new legislation has an unknown impact at the moment, but
would be monitored closely.
Lower scoring risks that were still being monitored by officers have been added to
the report as requested by members.

During discussion is was noted that:


The burial space, listed as a lower scoring risk, had a reduced score. Officers
would come back to members with reasons for this.

Page 7

Agenda Item 3
4





The coastal safety information signage was considered very important and finding
funding would be a priority, thus mitigating the risk.
Since this report was written the marine license application had been withdrawn
for berths 4&5 of Ramsgate Port, which could be seen to increase the risk. It was
noted that the risk was at its limit and commented that there are action plans in
place for all the top risks. The action plans are monitored throughout the lifecycle
of that risk. The risk in this case was that further delays would affect the project.
TDC were working with partners to manage this as effectively as possible.
Any recruitment or retention issues within the council would be monitored
carefully. Although staff leaving had added pressure to the homelessness sector,
there was no particular trend in this area and the Housing service had not been at
fault.

Cllr Pugh proposed, Cllr Whitehead seconded and members AGREED to approve the
Corporate Risk Management - Quarterly Update.
8.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Estelle Culligan, Director of Law and Democracy, introduced the AGS commenting that:






The Annual Governance Statement had last been considered by the Governance
& Audit committee on 28 July 2021.
When this was last considered it was thought that the annual accounts would be
published in September. Due to various delays they haven’t yet been published,
but it was still considered important to approve the AGS as they must be
published before, or at the same time, as the annual audited accounts.
The document had been brought up to date to include relevant issues since July,
including the Statutory Recommendations which were accepted by Full Council
on 2 November 2021 and associated processes.
It was also noted that HR services had been brought in house on 1 September
2021 and the service had integrated well and was a real asset to the Council.
This had also been referenced within the document.

In response to a question from members, the head of EKAP clarified that:


‘Lack of External Quality Assessment against the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards is hereby disclosed as non-conformance in the AGS’ meant that rather
than engaging an EQA, it was deemed sufficient to rely on the self-assessment,
to report the non conformance with the standards to members and note it in the
AGS. This decision would also be reconsidered in January by the Client Officer
Group, the four s.151 officers who govern the EKAP and oversee the quality of
the service.

Cllr Pugh proposed, Cllr Shrubb seconded and members AGREED that the Annual
Governance Statement 2020/21 be approved and authorised the Leader and Chief
Executive to sign it off and for it to be published.
9.

2020-21 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
Chris Blundell introduced this item on behalf of Grant Thornton, highlighting that:




Although the audit was still not completed, only 9% of local authority audits were
completed by September this year as there had been considerable pressure on
the audit industry for various reasons.
Value for money opinions would be coming in dating back to 2018/19
Officers were expecting adverse opinions on value for money during 2018/19 to
reflect the contract arrangements for monitoring the contracts with East Kent

Page 8

Agenda Item 3
5
Housing (though it was noted that the council had already addressed this in the
following years), as well as financial sustainability and issues in relation to
governance (since raised by the Statutory Recommendations).
During discussion with members it was noted that:




Not all the value for money reports were connected to the Statutory
Recommendations. Specifically, one related to berth 4&5 of Ramsgate Port and
others are connected to certain contracts including EK Housing and parking fees.
It was not expected that there would be any other items substantial enough to
require statutory recommendations.
Significant progress would be made on the statutory recommendations within the
six month timeframe outlined by the external auditors. The council was keen to
progress quickly with the recommendations, whilst acknowledging that the
Independent Monitoring Officer would have their own work to do that ought not be
rushed.

Members noted the report.
10.

RE-TENDER OF EXTERNAL AUDIT CONTRACTS
Chris Blundell presented the item and noted that:




The current and suggested arrangement was to procure through a national
framework.
There was no interest from other Kent councils to source external auditors jointly.
Doing this independently would likely be more expensive and would risk not
finding an external auditor.

Members commented and it was noted that:






Grant Thornton had asked for additional fees to cover extra work required during
their current contract, as was to be expected. There had also been an increase in
fees over the period. The Public Sector Audit Appointments had to agree to any
changes in fees by the external auditor.
TDC would not have a say on who would be appointed. However, the PSAA do
try to keep auditors working across areas with a similar geography.
There is a mechanism to feedback to the PSAA about the appointed auditor.
Unfortunately, the system for feedback had not been considered satisfactory in
the past, though there were promised improvements in the pipeline.
Generally the audit market was considered to be not in good shape at the
moment.

Cllr Kup proposed, Cllr Whitehead seconded and members AGREED to recommend to
Council that the invitation to opt in to the national scheme for auditor appointment is
accepted.

Meeting concluded : 8.14 pm

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Quarterly Internal Audit Update Report
Governance & Audit Committee

09-03-2022

Report Author

Head of Internal Audit

Portfolio Holder

Cllr David Saunders, Cabinet Member for Finance.

Status

For Information

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Executive Summary:
This report provides Members with a summary of the internal audit work completed by the
East Kent Audit Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting,
together with details of the performance of the EKAP to the 31st December.

Recommendation(s):
That the report be received by Members.
That any changes to the agreed 2021-22 internal audit plan, resulting from changes in
perceived risk, detailed at point 5.0 of Annex 1 of the attached report be approved.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. The costs of the audit work
are being met from the Financial Services 2021-22 budgets.

Legal
The Council is required by statute (under the Accounts and Audit Regulations and section 151 of
the Local Government Act 1972) to have an adequate and effective internal audit function.

Corporate
Under the Local Code of Corporate Governance the Council is committed to comply with
requirements for the independent review of the financial and operational reporting processes,
through the external audit and inspection processes, and satisfactory arrangements for internal
audit.

Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty

Page 11

Agenda Item 4
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
There are no equity or equalities issues arising from this report.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ●
●
●

Growth
Environment
Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

This report includes the summary of the work completed by the East Kent Audit
Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting, together with
details of the performance of the EKAP to the 31st December 2020.

1.2

For each audit review, management has agreed a report, and where appropriate, an
Action Plan detailing proposed actions and implementation dates relating to each
recommendation. Reports continue to be issued in full to the relevant member of the
Senior Management Team, as well as the manager for the service reviewed.

1.3

Follow-up reviews are performed at an appropriate time, according to the priority of
the recommendations, timescales for implementation of any agreed actions, and the
risk to the Council.

1.4

An Assurance Statement is given to each area reviewed. The assurance statements
are linked to the potential level of risk, as currently portrayed in the Council’s risk
assessment process. The assurance rating given may be Substantial, Reasonable,
Limited or No assurance.

1.5

Those services with either Limited or No Assurance are monitored, and brought back
to Committee until a subsequent review shows sufficient improvement has been
made to raise the level of Assurance to either Reasonable or Substantial. A list of
those services currently with such levels of assurance is attached as Appendix 2 to
the EKAP report.

1.6

The purpose of the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee is to provide
independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the
associated control environment, independent review of the Authority’s financial and

Page 12

Agenda Item 4
non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk
and weakens the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process.
1.7

To assist the Committee meet its terms of reference with regard to the internal control
environment an update report is regularly produced on the work of internal audit. The
purpose of this report is to detail the summary findings of completed audit reports
and follow-up reviews since the report submitted to the last meeting of this
Committee.

2.0

Summary of Work

2.1

There has been ten internal audit assignment completed during the period and four
follow -ups.

3.0

Recommendations

3.1

That Members consider and note the internal audit update report.

3.2

That the changes to the agreed 2021-22 internal audit plan, resulting from changes in
perceived risk, detailed at point 5.0 of the attached report be approved.

3.3

That Members consider (where appropriate) requesting an update from the relevant
Director/s to the next meeting of the Committee in respect of any areas identified as
still having either limited or no assurance after follow-up.

3.4

That Members consider registering their concerns with Cabinet in respect of any
areas of the Council’s corporate governance, control framework or risk management
arrangements in respect of which they have on-going concerns after the completion
of internal audit follow-up reviews and update presentations from the relevant
Director.

Contact Officer:

Christine Parker, Head of the Audit Partnership, Ext. 42160
Simon Webb, Deputy Head of Audit, Ext 7189

Reporting to:

Chris Blundell; Director of Finance

Annex List
Annex 1: East Kent Audit Partnership Update Report – 09-03-2022
Background Papers
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2021-22 - Previously presented to and approved in March 2021 at
Governance and Audit Committee meeting
Internal Audit working papers - Held by the East Kent Audit Partnership

Corporate Consultation

Page 13

Agenda Item 4
Finance:

Chris Blundell; Head of Financial Services (S151 Officer )

Legal:

Estelle Culligan, Director of Law and Democracy

Page 14

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT FROM THE HEAD OF THE
EAST KENT AUDIT PARTNERSHIP
1.0

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

1.1

This report provides Members with an update of the work completed by the
East Kent Audit Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee
meeting, together with details of the performance of the EKAP to the 31st
December 2021.

2.0

SUMMARY OF REPORTS
Service / Topic

2.1

EKS/Civica - Council Tax

2.2

EKS/Civica - Housing Benefits Payments

2.3

Playgrounds

2.4

Creditors

2.5

Equality & Diversity

2.6

Right to Buy

2.7

Street Cleansing

2.8

GDPR

2.9

Climate Change - Position Statement

Assurance level

No. of
Recs.
C
0
H
0
Substantial
M
0
L
0
C
0
H
2
Substantial
M
2
L
0
C
0
H
7
Reasonable
M
6
L
2
C
0
H
5
Reasonable
M
3
L
1
C
0
H
4
Limited
M
3
L
0
C
0
H
19
Limited
M
2
L
0
C
7
H
4
No Assurance
M
1
L
0
Not Applicable - Consultancy
Review
Not Applicable - Consultancy
Review

Page 15

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
2.10

2.1

EKS Housing Benefits Quarterly Testing 2021/22
– Quarters 1 & 2

Not Applicable

EKS/Civica – Substantial Assurance

2.1.1 Audit Scope
To ensure that the processes and procedures established by EK
Services/CIVICA are sufficient to provide the level of service required by the
partner authorities of Canterbury CC, Dover DC and Thanet DC and incorporate
relevant internal controls regarding the administration of Council Tax functions
especially the allocation of liability, billing and the monitoring of payments for
Council Tax accounts.
2.1.2

Summary of Findings
Canterbury City, Dover and Thanet District Councils are responsible for the
setting and approving of the council tax rates whilst the billing and collection
processes are carried out by CIVICA on behalf of each council.
The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this
area are as follows:
●
●
●
●
●

2.2

2.2.1

Council Tax is set in accordance with the relevant legislation.
Parameters within the Council Tax system are extensively checked and
reviewed before the billing process is started.
Council Tax bills are checked to confirm they are in the correct format
before the commencement of the billing process.
Updates from the Valuation Office are actioned and reconciled to the
Council Tax system on a regular basis.
Established processes are in place for the processing of refunds, write offs
and the recovery of outstanding arrears of council tax. A revision to the
write off form has been agreed with the Council Tax Manager during the
course of the audit so a further recommendation has not been made.

EKS Housing Benefits Payments – Substantial Assurance

Audit Scope
To ensure that the processes and procedures established by EK
Services/CIVICA are sufficient to provide the level of service required by the
partner authorities of Canterbury CC, Dover DC and Thanet DC and
incorporate relevant internal controls regarding the payments of Housing
Benefit.

Page 16

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
2.2.2

Summary of findings
On behalf of Canterbury, Dover and Thanet councils, Civica currently
administers new and existing claims for Housing Benefits under an agreement.
Payment runs are undertaken on a 2 or 4 weekly basis (depending on if the
claim is to be paid direct to the claimant or a landlord); the amounts paid to date
are given in the following table:
Authority

Made to date (Jan 2022)
£

CCC

8,028,723

DDC

11,458,481

TDC

24,460,314

The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this
area are as follows:
●
●
●
●
●

There is a contract in place between Civica and all three partner councils
for this service, which is being monitored and managed;
There are adequate, relevant, up to date and easily accessible procedures
and guidance notes for staff;
From the samples tested there are adequate controls in place to ensure
payments made are accurate; checked and being made in a timely manner;
Preventative and checking controls are in place for payments over £1000;
Bank details and change controls are in place to ensure payments are
issued correctly; however the defaulted position for bank account details
needs to be reviewed on claimant forms and within systems to minimise
carry over into the payments system and cause unnecessary delays.

Scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas:
●
●

Up to date retention schedule and policy statements need to be in place;
and
To enhance the authorisation process for the payment run and to check on
payment duplications a management spot check process on duplications
identified within the verification report should be in place;

Page 17

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
2.3

Playgrounds – Reasonable Assurance

2.3.1 Audit Scope
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and
controls established to ensure that the service provision regarding playgrounds
and the equipment located within them ensures that they are safe, well
maintained and are robust to meet their intended use for the future
2.3.2

Summary of Findings
The Council provides 33 play areas (excluding MUGA’s and Skate Parks)
across the district, featuring play equipment for all ages.

These Council owned areas of land are provided for the benefit and enjoyment
of both residents and visitors and the Grounds Maintenance Team are
responsible for the upkeep of such community areas.
The division of playgrounds across the district can be evidenced as follows:

There is currently a 3 tier inspection system in place, Tier 1 and Tier 2
inspections are being undertaken by 4 qualified TDC inspectors on a weekly
and quarterly basis, retrospectively. Level 3 inspections are undertaken by a
contractor at a cost of c.£2000pa.
The budget set for the maintenance of these areas is currently £21,950.

Page 18

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
The primary findings giving rise to the Reasonable Assurance opinion in this
area are as follows:
●

●
●
●

There is a 3-tier inspection process in place which complies with that
recommended by RoSPA to satisfy the Health and Safety at Work Act
(1974).
The annual ROSPA inspection process and findings are being
documented.
The budget management and monitoring process in place is working
well with the funding structures being detailed.
The Council is adequately protected by insurance in respect of
equipment and public liability. The recording of incidents for insurance
claims is in place and working well.

Scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas:
●

●

●

●
●

●

●

2.4

Strategies, policies and procedures need to be put in place regarding
the provision and maintenance of playgrounds to ensure that the
Council is in compliance with legislative requirements and to document
the decision processes for day to day operations.
The inspection sheet requires an update to ensure all details of the site
visit are recorded i.e. time of visit, who attended, all equipment on site
needs to be listed and details of any photos taken of works undertaken.
Also, a distinction between a Tier 1 and Tier 2 inspection needs to be
made more prevalent as the same inspection template is being used for
both inspection processes.
A programme of works needs to be set up to minimise the overlaps in
inspections and ensure all tier levels of inspection are occurring when
they are suppose to be i.e. Tier 1 - Weekly, Tier 2 - quarterly and Tier 3
- Annually.
Tier 1 and 2 inspections are still heavily paper based and could benefit
with becoming digitised, as recognised within the Service Standards.
A follow-up process to the Annual RoSPA Inspections to record
management actions and decisions taken on those recommendations
made needs to be evidenced.
Currently two of the four inspectors are operating under expired
certificates, they need to be signed up to a training programme as soon
as possible.
The funding structure list being maintained by Finance could benefit
from a review as some playgrounds were found to be either not set or
not detailed. Plus, any notifications on the confirmation on transfers of
land to parish councils needs to be kept on file to evidence the end of
the maintenance and inspection process in place by the Council.

Creditors and CIS – Reasonable Assurance

2.4.1 Audit Scope
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and
controls established to ensure that only bona-fide invoices are paid, and that

Page 19

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
the correct procedures have been applied in the way in which the expenditure
was incurred
2.4.2

Summary of findings
The Council currently has 2389 suppliers set up within their financial system;
eFinancials and process on average 250-300 invoices per week. This creditors
function consists of two members of staff (1 full time and 1 part time) who have
sound knowledge and considerable experience surrounding the creditors
process and the controls necessary to ensure that bona-fide invoices are paid.
The Council’s creditors function has worked hard to go paperless and
approximately 96% of invoices are now being received and processed
electronically.

●
●
●
●
●

Total net payments made by the Council in 2020/21 was: £351,875,453.91
Total net payments made by the Council for 2021/22 (to p7) is: £197,390,531.49
Total number of creditor transactions in 2020/21 was: 10388
Total number of creditor transactions in 2021/21 (to p7) is: 6548
The Council set a target to pay 98.5% of undisputed invoices within 30 days;
the actual result achieved for 2020/21 was 94.28%. The result achieved for
2021/22 (to date) is currently 94.42%
It should be noted that there is currently a project in place to procure and
implement a new Financial Management System. Therefore systems and
processes are due to change in October 2023.
The primary findings giving rise to the Reasonable Assurance opinion in this
area are as follows:

●

●

●
●

●
●
●

Testing has established that there is a documented system in place and it is
working effectively to ensure that only bona-fide invoices are being processed
and paid.
There are up to date authorised signatories in place for staff involved with the
Creditors process, however these will need to be reviewed to ensure all
processes have been documented.
The batch control and payment processes are well established with defined
separation of duties, including the authorisation process.
Processes are in place for the goods ordering process which comply with the
current Financial Procedure Rules. This has been adequately managed and
checked via the use of a google sheet.
All manual, faster and one off payments have been adequately documented,
with batch controls and authorisation processes in place.
Reconciliation processes have been evidenced throughout.
CIS deductions and payments to HMRC are in place and working well.
Scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas:

●

Whilst a robust system is in place to prevent fraud, changes to supplier bank
details need to be documented via the procedural notes with a management
check and authorisation process put in place;

Page 20

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
●

●

2.5

Although the BVPI 8 calculation (or its equivalent) is being calculated and
reported to management, there is a requirement under Regulation 113(7) of the
Public Contracts Regulations Act 2015 to produce and publish those figures
relating to payment of invoices, interest due and interest paid (BVPI 8). The
Council's web pages are out of date (latest information relates to 2015/16) and
this data therefore needs to be backdated and published. The target set for
BVPI 8 is also not being achieved, this could indicate the need for training or
reminders on the implications of late payments to the authority; management
action is required in order for the figure to be improved.
Duplication checks (outside of an audit) and exception reports need to be
implemented.

Equality & Diversity – Limited Assurance

2.5.1 Audit Scope
To ensure that the Council meets its own Equality & Diversity Policies and
complies with the Equality Act 2010 and any other relevant legislation.
2.5.2

Summary of Findings
The Equality Act 2010 legally protects people from discrimination in the
workplace and in wider society. It replaced previous anti-discrimination laws
with a single Act, making the law easier to understand and strengthening
protection in some situations. The Council’s Equality and Diversity Policy states
that it ‘seeks to promote and uphold the principles of equality, diversity, fairness
and inclusion within our employment practices, service design and delivery,
procurement and partnership working. The policy also sets out how TDC will
comply with the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty.’
An Equality Policy is a key strategic document that sets out how equality related
objectives and performance will be managed and monitored. The Council will
naturally be preparing for reviewing this policy during the course of 2022 in
accordance with the Equality Act 2010.
The primary findings giving rise to the Limited Assurance opinion in this area
are as follows:
●

●

●
●

53.5% of staff have not completed any form of Equality & Diversity
training and only 16.5% of staff have completed the e-learning within the
past three years in accordance with corporate instruction;
The equality related governance arrangements are not working
effectively. Equality related objectives should be clearly stated within the
equality policy and monitored through relevant performance metrics
through the performance management process;
Equality Impact Assessment documentation is not consistently
completed; and
The Council has not published information on equality and diversity for
its staff or service users in compliance with the Equality Act 2010.

Page 21

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Effective control was however evidenced in the following areas:
●

●

2.6

There is a Equality Policy in place that says the right things but needs to be
refreshed with stronger governance arrangements and clear objectives;
and
Equality Impact Assessments are being considered but aren’t always
documented.

Right to Buy – Limited Assurance

2.6.1 Audit Scope
To examine and evaluate the whole system of controls, both financial and
otherwise, established by management in order to carry on the business of the
enterprise in regard to Right to Buy applications in an orderly and efficient
manner, ensure adherence to management policies, safeguard the Authority’s
assets and secure as far as possible the completeness and accuracy of its
accounting records
2.6.2

Summary of Findings
The right to buy scheme allows most council tenants to buy their council home
at a discount through an application process. Discounts awarded are based
upon a qualifying period which must be a minimum of 3 years. The discounts
start at 35% for a House and 50% for a flat and then increase after 5 years by
1% (House) and 2% (flat) each qualifying year after, to a maximum discount of
either 70% or £84,600 (whichever is reached first). This maximum discount is
increased each year in accordance with the CPI index.
Nationally there is a focus on counter fraud work on social housing as it has
been targeted in several ways over the years, for Right to Buy tenants are both
victims of ‘organised’ crime and sometimes the perpetrators of a fraud. Housing
tenancy fraud within social housing has been estimated to currently cost the
government £900 million each year. This ultimately comes at considerable cost
to the taxpayer with social housing fraud identified as the largest type of fraud
loss across local government. Legislation came into effect to assist with
prosecutions in this area in 2013. The Council took part in a pilot scheme in
2020 with Ashford Borough Council’s Counter Fraud Team, and from October
2021 has entered into an agreement with Ashford Borough Council to
undertake checks if there is a suspicion of fraud.
According to the figures provided for the review the Council has dealt with the
following number of applications for the last three year period:

Page 22

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Year

Total
applications
received
(includes live
applications at
year end)

Total
applications
denied by
Council

Total
applications
withdrawn
by applicant

Total
Applications
closed and

Total
properties
sold (as per

Selling price
net of
discounts

(RTB17 notice
issued)

records held
on google
drive)

(sourced from
finance)

2018/19

31

2

8

2

5

£345,800.00

2019/20

34

1

7

6

20

£2,019,518.80

2020/21

50

10

10

23

5

£556,550.00

The primary findings giving rise to the Limited Assurance opinion in this area
are as follows:
●
●

●

●

●
●
●

●

A strategy, policy and procedures should be in place to document the
Council’s decision processes and day to day operations for this function.
To keep tenants informed of their options and in accordance with
legislation the Council should produce, issue and keep up to date a
Right to Buy information document. Also, consideration to providing
information of the scheme via the Council's web pages should be given.
More detailed counter fraud verification and property checks should be
implemented and evidenced prior to a decision being made on the
admittance or rejection of the application.
Evidence of counter fraud tenant checks should be retained on file and
obtained prior to the RTB2 being issued. These should include ID, proof
of residency, current tenancy agreement and relevant financial checks,
wherever possible a door knock to prove residency should also be
undertaken.
Timeframes need to be more rigorously managed and monitored to
ensure financial penalties are not incurred.
A copy of the proforma should also be supplied to Legal Services as a
final check prior to authorisation and final completion of the sale.
There is evidence of the cost floor being calculated, however this could
be strengthened by extracting and evidencing financial information for
all costs incurred for the property over the 10 year period.
From the samples tested there was evidence of one property being
mis-sold; the cost of this loss of social housing is valued as £80,900 (the
maximum discount applied at the time). It is not possible to recover the
property.

Effective control was however evidenced in the following areas:
● There is a masterfile being maintained of all applications being received
by the Council, each application is given a unique reference number and
evidence of all decisions taken; key dates; tenancy type and length;
sales price; discount applied and when the file was passed to legal are
contained therein.

Page 23

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
● The purchase price and discounts allowable have
calculated and administered.
● In order to protect the Council's on-going interest in
covenant or a condition of the lease is placed upon
ensure that if sold within 5 years a percentage of
recouped and evidence of this is being retained on file.
● The Conveyancing process is working well.
2.7

been correctly
the property a
the property to
the discount is

Street Cleansing – No Assurance

2.7.1 Audit Scope
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and
controls established to ensure that the street cleansing functions are being
carried out efficiently and effectively within an appropriate control framework
which reduces any risks to an acceptable level.
2.7.2

Summary of findings
Under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, local authorities have a statutory
duty to provide clean streets, footways and open spaces that are in public
ownership. All towns and villages are divided up into “zones” with the busiest
being cleaned more regularly. The Defra Code of Practice on Litter and Refuse
provides a practical guide to the discharge of these duties. Parts of the Code
are compulsory and parts are discretionary e.g. sweeping pavements.
As part of the process for developing the current Corporate Statement,
feedback from residents indicated that clean streets were listed as one of the
three main priorities to residents. In response to that, the current Corporate
Statement contains a promise to
residents that the Council will ‘Extend the
use of Mechanical Sweeping equipment’. In 2019 when the Corporate
Statement was both developed and introduced, the Council had 5 mechanical
sweepers, and 5 drivers for those machines.
Management can place No Assurance on the system of internal controls in
operation around the operation of the Street Cleansing function to keep the
District clean. This is the third successive internal audit to report either Limited
or No assurance in this key Corporate Plan objective area; whilst the service is
operating in a very challenging environment, the current direction of travel is
downwards.
The primary findings giving rise to the No Assurance opinion in this area are as
follows:
●

The Council is failing to meet its statutory obligations under the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 (and associated Defra Code of
Practice) as it has no service standards in place, and has not applied
zones to areas across the District. The lack of service standards has
also been highlighted as a Critical priority recommendation in the
previous two audit reports.

Page 24

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
●
●

●
●

●

●

●

●

●

The Council is failing to deliver on its promise to residents to extend the
use of mechanical sweeping.
The Council has not made any information available to the public
relating to minimum levels of cleanliness or response times to
complaints relating to Street Cleansing.
Inspections are not currently being undertaken to monitor levels of
cleanliness across the District.
Expenditure on Street Cleaning has risen in the last three years, yet the
amount of cleansing taking place has significantly reduced over the
same period.
The high levels of breakdowns on mechanical sweepers have meant
that in recent months, of a potential 100 days of mechanical sweeping
possible in a month, three days sweeping (3%) was completed in
September, and one day (1%) was completed in October. No sweeping
was completed in the first half of November.
In addition to the lack of mechanical sweeping, the Council has 11 manual
operatives employed to clean the whole of the District, this resource should
be reviewed to determine how it could potentially meet the expectations of
residents across the District.
The Council does not have sufficient drivers in place for all 5 mechanical
street sweepers (for when these are repaired) expensive machinery is
therefore sitting idle, while the level of cleanliness on the streets is
declining.
Operatives have not been consistently undertaking the requisite
maintenance and cleaning of the mechanical sweepers required to help
keep them in good working order.
From a random sample of 10 residential streets outside of the
immediate town centre areas, five streets are not included on either an
manual or mechanical sweeping round and are only attended upon
request.

Effective control was however evidenced in the following areas:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Risk Assessments are in place covering the tasks undertaken by the
Street Cleansing function.
Suitable PPE is available to staff as required
Accidents and near misses are recorded and subject to review by the
Corporate Health and Safety Officer.
Scheduled maintenance on vehicles is planned in advance with details
of maintenance completed being suitably recorded.
Drivers of vehicles are completing daily checks on vehicles and
documenting and reporting any defect identified through those checks.
Keys to vehicles are held securely overnight when vehicles are not in
use.

Management Response
Service Director Response - Street Cleansing Audit January 2022
I am disappointed at the outcome of this internal audit. Whilst it is understood that the
focus of the audit is on risk management rather than service performance I do not

Page 25

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
agree with the ‘No Assurance’ rating as this is not a true reflection of the service being
provided to the public. I also disagree that there is sufficient justification for any of the
critical ratings in the action plan, the risks presented do not fit well with the definition
given for a critical action. However actions have been drafted in response to the risks
identified and these will be progressed to agreed timescales.
The draft audit brief was accepted in September 2021 but it was not clear from this
document that the focus would be confined to street sweeping only and there is no
mention of other important cleansing service functions such as:
●
●
●
●
●

the routine task of emptying more than 600 street bins
the routine task of emptying communal bins and recycling bring sites (a function
of the street cleansing team)
seasonal agency cleansing work including beach/promenade cleaning and
emptying more than 100 seasonal bins
clearance of fly tipped waste
ad hoc cleaning tasks by the Environmental Operatives including deep cleans.

Operational Services has continued to deliver statutory services throughout the
pandemic despite significant impact from Covid related absence. During the last 18
months it has been necessary to prioritise the household waste and recycling service
from a business continuity perspective in response to both the pandemic and EU exit
which was the catalyst for the continued HGV driver shortage. It is worth mentioning
that as a result of this strategy and the hard work of operational staff we have not
dropped a single planned waste and recycling round. This is something to be proud of
with most other Kent districts suffering some form of service disruption of varying
impact.
During this same 2 year period we have seen an unprecedented number of visitors to
the district’s coastline and beaches in the 2020 and 2021 seasons and have had to
react by increasing the standard and duration of cleansing to meet demand and
pandemic requirements. In September 2021 we published statistics on the summer
season and the scale of the successful seasonal cleansing operation.
As a result of the significant efforts by the service, the number of complaints received
regarding street cleansing remains very low which is an excellent indicator of the
standard of service provided.
This audit appears to place a great deal of focus on mechanical street cleansing. It is
agreed that this is an important element of the service but the issue with the current
mechanical plant has been well communicated and plans are in place for a permanent
solution to the issue which is a result of unanticipated vehicle failure.
In summary, the outcome of this audit is considered to be disproportionate and does
not represent the actual performance of the service or the hard work of the street
cleansing team.

Page 26

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Mike Humber
2.8

GDPR – Not Applicable; Consultancy Review

2.8.1 Audit Scope
●

●

2.8.2

To provide audit consultancy on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
procedures and controls established to ensure that the Council creates, holds,
and maintains personal information about living individuals in accordance with
the requirements of the GDPR and deals with subject access requests and
information sharing requests in accordance with the Act.
To provide audit consultancy that the Council has identified all GDPR related
risks arising from the move to home working caused by the COVID-19
pandemic and has taken all reasonable steps to mitigate these risks as far as it
possible
Summary of Findings
GDPR and the new Data Protection Act was introduced in May 2018 and is the
toughest privacy and security law in the world. Though it was drafted and
passed by the European Union (EU), it imposes obligations on organisations
anywhere, so long as they target or collect data related to living people in the
EU. The regulation was put into effect on May 25, 2018 and was adopted by the
UK Government. The GDPR will levy harsh fines against those who violate its
privacy and security standards, with penalties reaching into the tens of millions
of euros.
The risks relating to GDPR are largely financial (fines from the regulator) and
reputational (poor publicity following a major breach). The latest data breach
information from the ICO for Q1 2021/22 is set out below and shows that in the
last quarter, 92% of data protection incidents in local government were created
by human error compared with 73% in all other sectors.
ICO Breach statistics for Q1 2021/22
Local Government

All other sectors

Human Error

218 (92.4%)

1,646 (71.1%)

Cyber Related

236 (7.6%)

670 (28.9%)

This review was approved following a well received piece of audit consultancy
work undertaken on behalf of a neighbouring local authority. The audit
consultancy process used the initial audit findings (October 2018), the audit
follow-up findings, the information asset registers, Thanet staff training records,
auditor knowledge on processing activity and published privacy notices to
identify and assess the risks facing the Council.

Page 27

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
The following weaknesses have been identified and should be addressed in
order to mitigate high risks relating to non-compliance with GDPR: ●
●
●
●
●

●
●

There is not a robust data protection training programme in place;
Information asset registers are largely incomplete, not detailed enough or
have not been reviewed since 2018;
There are nine privacy notices that have not been published on the website;
In the absence of the Data Protection Officer, leadership on data protection
issues is weak;
Increases in home working due to covid-19 has highlighted some additional
data protection risks which can largely be addressed through the
introduction of home working guidance for staff;
CIGG policy updates are not being added to the list of policies made
available on TOM;
A risk assessment carried out by internal audit based on information
provided during the audit has identified that the following departments are at
of particular concern for data protection compliance risks:i) Public Health Development;
ii) Community Safety;
iii) Enforcement Services;
iv) Housing Services;
v) Housing Options;
vi) Open Spaces;
vii) Street Cleansing;
viii) Street Scene Enforcement;
ix) Regulatory Services;
x) Electoral Services;
xi) Legal Services;
xii) Information Governance;
xiv)Tenant and Leaseholder Services; and
xv) Kent Innovation Centre.

Effective control was however evidenced in the following areas:
●
●
●
●
●

2.9

The Council has taken action to address to resolve all but four of the
recommendations made in the initial audit report in 2018;
There is a data protection policy in place which adequately sets out roles
and responsibilities in relation to data protection;
The Information Asset Registers are partially complete and are a good
starting point for senior managers to build upon;
There are pockets of good practice in place across the entire Council; and
The CIGG helps to develop cyber security policies and helps mitigate cyber
security risks.

Climate Change (Position Statement) – Not Applicable; Consultancy Review

Page 28

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Introduction
Human activity has warmed the earth by about 1°C since pre-industrial times
and the impacts of this are felt across the globe. Warming continues unabated,
making this an urgent problem. The goal of the Paris Agreement is to limit
global warming to well below 2°C, preferably 1.5°C compared to pre-industrial
levels. It is difficult to project future global temperatures to a single figure as
there are so many uncertainties and influencing feedbacks (e.g. release of
GHGs from permafrost) however Climate Action Tracker puts the globe
somewhere between 4.1° C and 4.8° C by 2100, if policies do nothing to reduce
GHGs. One or two degrees may seem very little, but temperature rises of
between 2.0-4.9°C threatens a million species with extinction over the next few
decades and would result in a complete loss of sea ice, tropical rainforests and
coral reefs; droughts and storms could render much of the planet uninhabitable
and cause devastating human suffering and conflict.

( climateactiontracker.org)

In 2019 the Council, and around 230 other local government authorities (LGA),
recognised the severity of this situation and declared a climate and ecological
emergency in order that action could be taken to reduce harmful greenhouse gases
and other emissions; loss of biodiversity would also be addressed.
This review looks at progress to date, highlights any gaps, and suggests further ways
of reaching the Council’s zero net carbon and improved biodiversity goals.

Page 29

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Progress to date and future plans
The Council has taken a lot of positive steps to tackle the climate
emergency and ecological crisis, these include:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Employment of a Climate Change Officer.
Compilation of a low carbon action plan.
Basic carbon footprint calculated.
Looking at opportunities to move to renewable energy suppliers for electricity.
New ‘no mow’ areas agreed by Cabinet to increase biodiversity.
Climate Change Officer working group set up, current members include:
Housing Strategy and Projects Manager
Home Energy Officer
Environmental Protection Manager
Strategic Planning Manager
Director of Environment (Seconded)
Director of Communication
Climate Change Officer
Corporate Director Communities

●
●
●
●

A biodiversity group has recently been set up.
A funding bid for more trees will shortly be submitted and if successful will be in
part a community led project.
Public sector decarbonisation funds successfully obtained.
Climate related articles such as ‘how to reduce your carbon footprint’ have been
promoted on the Council’s website and via the internal Scoop publication.
Ideas for improvement

●
●
●
●

●

●

●
●

Creation of a wide audience friendly low carbon and biodiversity strategy, which
includes for example, the Council’s current carbon footprint.
Review of all current policies to ensure they align with the Council’s climate
emergency commitment.
Aim for a green thread that runs throughout the Council.
When replacing corporate fleet vehicles, evaluate non-combustion engines
such as electric and/or alternative fuel types such as hydrogen and biofuel;
from 2030, petrol and diesel vehicles will no longer be sold in the UK.
Ensure that biodiversity net gain is achieved for new developments, that
existing trees are protected and new houses are built to high environmental
specifications.
Developers should be encouraged to build new houses which are energy
efficient and designed for climate adaptation; these should include for example,
installation of heat pumps (instead of gas boilers), solar panels and water
harvesting as well as recycling of ‘grey’ water.
Work in partnership with local transport providers to improve links and to
introduce non-combustible engines and biofuel.
New environment consideration statement in all cabinet reports - discussed with
Climate Change Officer who will investigate this alongside staff training
requirements.

Page 30

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Include more representatives from across the Council at the climate change
officer group (e.g. waste, asset management, transport, procurement, finance).
Carbon literacy training for all staff.
Raise the profile of climate and ecology on internal communications /
publications.
All staff invitation to submit ideas, get involved, volunteer as green champions
etc.
Subscribe to a recognised environmental and sustainability body such as IEMA
(Institute of Environmental Management and Assessment).
Use the LGA and other local councils to lobby the government for additional
funding.
Determine the need for a climate risk assessment of assets, geographical area
and residents.
It would be prudent to include climate impacts on the Council’s strategic risk
register.
The Climate Change Officer has achieved a lot in a short space of time but
would greatly benefit from additional support.
Investigate opportunities for partnership work e.g. with universities.
Conclusion
In comparison with other councils such as Cornwall, the Council is in the early
stages of tackling the climate and ecological emergency and is making
progress towards its carbon net zero commitment. Some upscaling or further
investment, as well as planning and implementing actions over the next 2-5
years, will be critical if the Council is to achieve its 2030 promise.

2.10

EKS Housing Benefits Quarterly Testing 2021/22 – Quarters 1 & 2 Not
applicable for an assurance

2.10.1 Introduction
Over the course of 2021/22 financial year the East Kent Audit Partnership
completes a sample check of Council Tax, Rent Allowance and Rent Rebate and
Local Housing Allowance benefit claims.
2.10.2 Findings
For the first and second quarters of 2021/22 financial year (April to September
2021) thirty claims including new and change of circumstances of each benefit
type were selected by randomly selecting the various claims for verification.
Below is a summary table of the findings:A ‘fail’ is categorised as an error that impacts on the benefit calculation. However,
data quality errors (such as an incorrect NINO) are still to be shown but if they do
not impact on the benefit calculation, then for reporting purposes the claim will be
recorded as a ‘pass’.
2.10.3 Audit Conclusion

Page 31

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
For this period thirty benefit claims were checked and two (6.66%) of the claims
had a financial error and there were no data quality errors.
3.0.

FOLLOW UP OF AUDIT REPORT ACTION PLANS:

3.1

As part of the period’s work, four follow up reviews have been completed of
those areas previously reported upon to ensure that the recommendations
made have been implemented, and the internal control weaknesses leading to
those recommendations have been mitigated. The review completed during the
period under review is shown in the following table.
Service/ Topic

3.2

Original
Assurance
level

Substantial

a)

Procurement

b)

Local Code of
Corporate
Governance

c)

EKS - Key
Performance
Indicators

Substantial

d)

EKS - ICT Software
Licensing

Reasonable
/Limited

Limited

Revised
Assurance
level

Original
Number
of Recs

No of Recs.
Not yet
implemented

Substantial

C
H
M
L

0
1
0
0

C
H
M
L

0
0
0
0

Reasonable

C
H
M
L

0
8
6
2

C
H
M
L

0
2
0
0

Substantial

C
H
M
L

0
0
1
1

C
H
M
L

0
0
0
0

Reasonable

C
H
M
L

1
1
1
1

C
H
M
L

0
0
0
0

Details of any individual Critical and High priority recommendations still to be
implemented at the time of follow-up are included at Appendix 3 and on the
grounds that these recommendations have not been implemented by the dates
originally agreed with management, they are now being escalated for the
attention of the s.151 officer and Members’ of the Governance and Audit
Committee.
The purpose of escalating high-priority recommendations which have not been
implemented is to try to gain support for any additional resources (if required) to
resolve the risk, or to ensure that risk acceptance or tolerance is approved at an
appropriate level.

4.0

WORK-IN-PROGRESS:

Page 32

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
4.1

During the period under review, work has also been undertaken on the following
topics, which will be reported to this Committee at future meetings: Tenancy &
Estate Management, Maritime, Risk Management, Income & Cash Collection,
Electoral Registration & Election Management, Risk Management, Repairs and
Maintenance, Budgetary Control, and Recruitment.

5.0

CHANGES TO THE AGREED AUDIT PLAN:

5.1

The 2021-22 internal audit plan was agreed by Members at the meeting of this
Committee on 3rd March 2021.

5.2

The Head of the Audit Partnership meets on a quarterly basis with the Section
151 Officer or their nominated representative to discuss any amendments to the
plan. Members of the Committee will be advised of any significant changes
through these regular update reports. Minor amendments are made to the plan
during the course of the year as some high profile projects or high-risk areas
may be requested to be prioritised at the expense of putting back or deferring to
a future year some lower risk planned reviews. The detailed position regarding
when resources have been applied and or changed are shown as Appendix 3.
As a result of the HR service being brought back in house, the TDC Audit Plan
has been increased by 10 days.

6.0

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION:
There are no known instances of fraud or corruption being investigated by the
EKAP to bring to Members’ attention at the present time.

7.0

UNPLANNED WORK:
All responsive assurance / unplanned work is summarised in the table
contained at Appendix 3.

8.0

INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE

8.1

For the nine month period to 31st December, 225.77 chargeable days were
delivered against the target of 330 days which equates to 68.41% plan
completion.

8.2

The financial performance of the EKAP is on target at the present time.

8.3

As part of its commitment to continuous improvement and following discussions
with the s.151 Officer Client Group, the EKAP has established a range of
performance indicators which it records and measures.

8.4

The EKAP audit maintains an electronic client satisfaction questionnaire which
is used across the partnership. The satisfaction questionnaires are sent out at
the conclusion of each audit to receive feedback on the quality of the service.

Attachments

Page 33

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Appendix 1 Progress to 31st December 2021 against the agreed 2021-22
Audit Plan.
Appendix 2 Definition of Audit Assurance Statements & Recommendation
Priorities
Appendix 3 Summary of Critical and High priority recommendations not
implemented at the time of follow-up.
Appendix 4 Summary of services with Limited / No Assurances yet to be
followed up.
Appendix 5 Balanced Scorecard.

Page 34

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
PROGRESS TO DATE AGAINST THE AGREED THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL
2021-22 AUDIT PLAN – APPENDIX 1

Area

Original Revised
Actual
Planned Budgeted days to
Days
Days
31-12-2021

Status and Assurance
Level

FINANCIAL GOVERNANCE:
Creditors & CIS

10

12

13.71

Finalised - Reasonable

Income & Cash Collection

10

10

0.49

Work-in-Progress

Budgetary Control

10

10

6.65

Work-in-Progress

Temporary Accommodation

12

0

0

Postponed

Right to Buy

10

10

10.74

Finalised - Limited

Responsive Repairs &
Maintenance

15

15

1.7

Work-in-Progress

Tenant Health & Safety

10

0

0

See Housing Regulator
Review

Rechargeable Works

10

0

0

Postponed

Resident Involvement

10

0

0

Postponed

Tenancy & Estate Mngmt

10

15

15.83

Work-in-Progress

10

10

1.27

Quarter 4

2

2

3.69

Work-in-Progress

9

9

9.28

12

12

10.82

9

9

8.88

Work-in-Progress

0

10

0.28

Work-in-Progress

10

10

0

Postponed

10

10

0

Work-in-Progress

HOUSING SYSTEMS:

TECHNOLOGY/CYBER RISKS:
Cloud Computing/Digital
GOVERNANCE RELATED:
Corporate Advice/CMT
s.151 Officer Meetings and
Support
Governance & Audit Committee
Meetings and Report Preparation
2021-22
Audit
Plan
and
Preparation Meetings

Work-in-Progress
Work-in-Progress

HR RELATED:
Recruitment
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT:
Performance Management
RISK MANAGEMENT:
Risk Management

Page 35

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
PROCUREMENT & CONTRACT MANAGEMENT:
12

12

0

Postponed

10

10

16.96

Finalised - Limited

Thanet Lottery

15

15

0

Quarter 4

Electoral Registration & Election
Management

10

10

2.69

Work-in-Progress

Playgrounds

10

10

10.17

Work-in-Progress

Equality & Diversity

10

10

15.63

Finalised - Limited

Land Charges

10

10

3.26

Finalised - Substantial

Ramsgate Marina

12

12

0.58

Work-in-Progress

Ramsgate Harbour Accounts
Events Management, Sports &
Community Development

5

5

4.94

Finalised - N/A

10

0

0

Postponed

Garden Waste

12

12

0.36

Work-in-Progress

Street Cleansing

14

14

11.29

Finalised - No Assurance

Liaison With External Auditors

1

1

0.54

Work-inProgress

Follow-up Reviews

15

15

19.17

Work-inProgress

Procurement

8.93

Finalised - Substantial

Coastal Management

4.32

Finalised - Substantial

GDPR & Homeworking
Implications

11.16

Finalised - N/A

10.17

Work-in-Progress

Local Code of Corporate
Governance

1.81

Finalised - Limited

Climate Change

8.06

Finalised- N/A

Housing Regulator Review

19.96

Finalised - Reasonable

Service Contract Management
ASSET MANAGEMENT:
Commercial Let Properties and
Concessions
SERVICE LEVEL:

OTHER :

FINALISATION OF 2020-21 AUDITS:

Playgrounds

5

65

RESPONSIVE WORK:
HRA Properties Data Match
TOTAL

0

0

2.59

Finalised- N/A

320

330

225.77

68.42%

(Note - From 1st September EKHR has been taken back in house by the three partner
councils and the TDC plan has increased by 10 days)

Page 36

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
PROGRESS TO DATE AGAINST THE AGREED EKS, EKHR & CIVICA
AUDIT PLAN 2021-22:

Review

Original
Planned
Days

Revised
Actual
Status and Assurance
Planned days to
Level
Days 31/12/2021

EKS Reviews;
Council Tax

15

15

10.65

Finalised - Substantial

Housing Benefit Testing

15

15

12.60

Ongoing

Housing Benefit Payments

15

15

13.73

Work-in-Progress

Customer Services

15

0

-

Deferred

ICT – Change Controls / Updates

15

15

0.20

Quarter 4

ICT – Procurement & Disposal

15

15

0.14

Quarter 4

KPIs

5

5

0.74

Quarter 4

Payroll

18

18

16.42

Finalised - Substantial

EKHR

32

0

0.20

Trs to partner councils

Corporate/Committee

8

8

6.49

Ongoing

Follow Up

3

3

2.69

Ongoing

Housing Benefit Verification
Framework

0

1

0.95

Finalised – N/A

Restart Grants

0

6

6.59

Finalised - N/A

1

0.35

Finalised - Reasonable

5

5.45

Finalised – N/A

9

9.63

Finalised - Reasonable
/ Ltd

128

86.83

67.84%

Other;

Finalisation of 2020/21 Audits:
ICT Disaster Recovery
Housing Benefit Testing 2020/21

5

ICT Software Licensing
Total

160

(Note - From 1st September EKHR has been taken back in house by the three partner
councils and the EKS plan has reduced by 32 days)

Page 37

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
APPENDIX 2
Definition of Audit Assurance Statements & Recommendation Priorities
Cipfa Recommended Assurance Statement Definitions:
Substantial assurance - A sound system of governance, risk management and
control exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently
applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited.
Reasonable assurance - There is a generally sound system of governance, risk
management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for
improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in
the area audited.
Limited assurance - Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were
identified. Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk management
and control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area
audited.
No assurance - Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps,
weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, risk
management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.
EKAP Priority of Recommendations Definitions:
Critical – A finding which significantly impacts upon a corporate risk or seriously
impairs the organisation’s ability to achieve a corporate priority. Critical
recommendations also relate to non-compliance with significant pieces of legislation
which the organisation is required to adhere to and which could result in a financial
penalty or prosecution. Such recommendations are likely to require immediate
remedial action and are actions the Council must take without delay.
High – A finding which significantly impacts upon the operational service objective of
the area under review. This would also normally be the priority assigned to
recommendations relating to the (actual or potential) breach of a less prominent legal
responsibility or significant internal policies; unless the consequences of
non-compliance are severe. High priority recommendations are likely to require
remedial action at the next available opportunity or as soon as is practical and are
recommendations that the Council must take.
Medium – A finding where the Council is in (actual or potential) breach of - or where
there is a weakness within - its own policies, procedures or internal control measures,
but which does not directly impact upon a strategic risk, key priority, or the operational
service objective of the area under review. Medium priority recommendations are
likely to require remedial action within three to six months and are actions which the
Council should take.
Low – A finding where there is little if any risk to the Council or the recommendation
is of a business efficiency nature and is therefore advisory in nature. Low priority
recommendations are suggested for implementation within six to nine months and
generally describe actions the Council could take.

Page 38

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL & HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS NOT IMPLEMENTED AT THE TIME OF FOLLOW-UP – APPENDIX 3
Agreed Management Action ,
Responsibility and Target Date

Original Recommendation

Manager’s Comment on Progress
Towards Implementation.

Local Code of Corporate Governance - November 2021
The people strategy pages on the intranet Recommendation presented to Governance
require a refresh as some of the action points & Audit Committee 28/07/21.
are out of date/overdue, this will impact on the
assurance statement and future action plans.
Proposed Completion Date: 31 August 2021
Responsibility: Director of Governance and/or
Director Law & Democracy

The People Strategy cannot be updated at
the moment. The CEX, HR Manager and I
have spoken about this strategy and the
decision on how and if to update it is still
under consideration. However, I have
reviewed the strategy and most of the issues
within it are still valid and in operation, e.g.
the Appraisal process, communication
strategy, learning and development etc.
Auditor Comments - The intranet pages
have
not
been
updated,
however
management have further advised that there
are discussions being had with the Digital
team to have these re-freshed.

Implement a training programme for staff and Recommendation presented to Governance All items required to be published under the
Transparency Code, are published. Staff and
members regarding the Transparency Code.
& Audit Committee 28/07/21.
members are aware and receive training in
the requirements of FOI etc. The officers
Proposed Completion Date: 31 August 2021
who oversee the issues of transparency Responsibility: Director of Governance and/or the CEX, the MO, the S151 Officer, Service

Agenda Item 4

Annex 1

Page 39

Outstanding

Director Law & Democracy

Directors and Managers, are all aware of the
requirements.
Auditor Comments - evidence is required to
establish
level
of
knowledge
and
understanding on duties placed upon key
officers, especially as the webpages and
published information was found to not be
up to date i.e. Provide the training
programme for officers and members.
Outstanding

Agenda Item 4

Annex 1

Page 40

SERVICES GIVEN LIMITED / NO ASSURANCE LEVELS STILL TO BE REVIEWED – APPENDIX 4
Service

Reported to Committee

Level of Assurance

Follow-up Action Due

November 2020

Limited

Work-in-Progress

Equality & Diversity

March 2022

Limited

Spring/Summer 2022

Right to Buy

March 2022

Limited

Spring/Summer 2022

Street Cleansing

March 2022

No Assurance

Spring/Summer 2022

EKHR Disclosure & Barring Service

Agenda Item 4

Annex 1

Page 41

BALANCED SCORECARD

INTERNAL PROCESSES PERSPECTIVE:

2021-22
Actual

QUARTER 3
Target

Quarter 3
Chargeable as % of available days

90%

FINANCIAL PERSPECTIVE:

2021-22
Actual

Original
Budget

● Cost per Audit Day

£

£356.35

● Direct Costs

£

£459,443

● + Indirect Costs (Recharges from Host)

£

£10,945

● - ‘Unplanned Income’

£

Zero

Reported Annually
80%

Chargeable days as % of planned days
CCC
DDC
TDC
FHDC
EKS

59.31%
77.25%
68.42%
79.68%
67.84%

75%
75%
75%
75%
75%

Overall

71.89%

75%

49
15
17

-

Partial

Full

● = Net EKAP cost (all Partners)

£470,388

Follow up/ Progress Reviews;

Compliance with the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
(see Annual Report for more details)

Agenda Item 4

Issued
Not yet due
Now due for Follow Up

Annex 1

Page 42

●
●
●

CUSTOMER PERSPECTIVE:

2021-22
Actual

Target

Quarter 3

INNOVATION & LEARNING
PERSPECTIVE:

2021-22
Actual

Target

Quarter 3

Number of Satisfaction Questionnaires
Issued;

46

Percentage of staff qualified to relevant
technician level

74%

74%

Number of completed questionnaires
received back;

19

Percentage of staff holding a relevant
higher level qualification

38%

38%

Percentage of staff studying for a relevant
professional qualification

15%

N/A

Number of days technical training per FTE

4.99

3.5

Percentage of staff meeting formal CPD
requirements (post qualification)

38%

38%

= 41%

Percentage of Customers who felt that;
●
●
●

Interviews were conducted in a
professional manner
The audit report was ‘Good’ or
better
That the audit was worthwhile.

95%

100%

100%

90%

100%

100%

Agenda Item 4

Annex 1

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23
Governance & Audit Committee

9 March 2022

Report Author

Head of the Audit Partnership: Christine Parker

Portfolio Holder

Cllr David Saunders, Cabinet Member for Finance.

Status

For Information

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Executive Summary:
This report presents the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 detailing a breakdown of
audits and an analysis of available days.

Recommendation(s):
That Members approve the Council’s Internal Audit Plan for 2022/223

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Financial and
The costs of the audit work will be met from the Financial Services
Value for
2022-23 budgets.
Money
Legal
The Council is required by statute (under the Accounts and Audit
Regulations and section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972) to have
an adequate and effective internal audit function.
Corporate
Under the Local Code of Corporate Governance the Council is committed
to comply with requirements for the independent review of the financial
and operational reporting processes, through the external audit and
inspection processes, and satisfactory arrangements for internal audit.
Equalities Act Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector
2010 & Public Equality Duty (section 149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to
Sector Equality the aims of the Duty at the time the decision is taken. The aims of the
Duty
Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation
and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of
opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it, and (iii) foster good relations between people
who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.

Page 45

Agenda Item 5
Protected characteristics: age, gender, disability, race, sexual orientation,
gender reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only
aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage & civil partnership.
Please indicate which aim is relevant to the report.
Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act,
Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and people who do not share it
Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it.
here are no equity or equalities issues arising from this report.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES (tick
those relevant)✓
A clean and welcoming
Environment
Promoting inward investment and
job creation
Supporting neighbourhoods

CORPORATE VALUES
those relevant)✓
Delivering value for money

(tick
X

Supporting the Workforce
Promoting open communications

X

1.0

Introduction and Background.

1.1

The purpose of the Council’s Governance & Audit Committee is to provide independent
assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the associated control
environment, independent review of the Authority’s financial and non-financial performance to
the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control environment,
and to oversee the financial reporting process.

1.2

In accordance with current best practice, the Governance & Audit Committee should “review
and assess the annual internal audit work plan”. The purpose of this report is to help the
Committee assess whether the East Kent Audit Partnership has the necessary resources and
access to information to enable it to fulfil its mandate, and is equipped to perform in
accordance with the professional standards for Internal Auditors.

2.0

Audit Mission & Charter.

2.1

The Audit Mission is a simple high-level statement setting out the objectives for the service,
this was approved in March 2020 and no changes are currently proposed.
The four East Kent authorities Canterbury City Council (CCC), Dover District Council
(DDC), Folkestone & Hythe District Council (F&HDC), and Thanet District Council
(TDC) formed the East Kent Audit Partnership (EKAP) in order to deliver a
professional, cost effective, efficient, internal audit function. A key aim for the EKAP,
supported by an agreed Audit Charter, is to build a resilient service that provides

Page 46

Agenda Item 5
opportunities to share best practice between the four councils and East Kent
Services acting as a catalyst for change and improvement to service delivery as well
as providing assurance on the governance arrangements in place.
EKAP provides an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed
to add value and improve the councils’ operations. It helps the partners accomplish
their objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.
The mission for internal auditing (linked to the definition above) is to enhance and
protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice
and insight reflecting each Councils’ Corporate Objectives.
2.2

The Audit Charter is an important document setting out the expectations of how the Internal
Audit function will be delivered. Not only does having a Charter and keeping it up to date
assist the Council in complying with best practice, but by considering the Audit Charter, the
Governance Committee is also demonstrating its effectiveness by ensuring that these
mechanisms are in place and are working effectively.

2.3

The Audit Charter establishes the purpose, authority, objectives and responsibility of the East
Kent Audit Partnership, it goes on to set out the Terms of Reference, Organisational
Relationships and Independence, Competence and Standards of Auditors, the Audit Process
and in providing an Internal Audit function to the partner councils; as well as the resources
required across the four partnership sites and details how the resource requirements will be
met.

2.4

The Audit Charter is a document that does not materially change from year to year and
consequently it was agreed in March 2020 that it be approved for the next three years (to 31st
March 2023) with the caveat that should any significant changes be required a revised Charter
will be presented for consideration. There have been no required changes during 2021/22
and therefore this document will next be brought back for approval to this Committee in March
2023.

3.0

Risk Based Internal Audit Plan.

3.1

The Audit Plan for the year 2022 to 2023 is attached as Annex A and has the main
components to support the approved Audit Charter. The plan is produced in accordance with
professional guidance, including the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PISAS). A draft
risk based plan is produced from an audit software database (APACE) maintained by the
EKAP which records our risk assessments on each service area based upon previous audit
experience, criticality, financial risk, risk of fraud and corruption etc. Amendments have been
made following discussions with senior management, taking account of any changes within
the Council over the last 12 months, and foreseen changes over the next.

3.2

The plan has then been further modified to reflect emerging risks and opportunities identified
by the Chief Executive, Directors, and the links to the Council’s Corporate Plan and Corporate
Risk Register. This methodology ensures that audit resources are targeted to the areas where
the work of Internal Audit will be most effective in improving internal controls, the efficiency of
service delivery and to facilitate the effective management of identified risks.

Page 47

Agenda Item 5
3.3

Furthermore, wider risks are considered, by keeping abreast of national issues and advice
from the auditing profession / firms. The annual “Risk in Focus” report provides an opportunity
to track how risk priorities are developing over time. A number of dominant themes are
emerging. Climate change and environmental sustainability has gained in prominence more
than any other risk type over the past three years. It is a moving target that organisations will
have to make continuous efforts to mitigate for decades to come. This should therefore be
considered a “forever risk” that is likely to move up the risk rankings over time. Risks related to
business continuity, crisis management and disaster response have been heavily impacted by
recent events, and the same is true of health, safety & security, Human capital, diversity and
talent management and organisational culture. These latter three have a clear human capital
element to them. Organisations have been forced to flex and adapt over the past 18 months,
protecting their workforces from harm as health risks sharply escalated. As the pandemic has
rolled on for longer than many expected, organisations have had to think about the
psychological wellbeing of their staff and what socially distanced and remote working
conditions mean for staff cohesion and culture. The top ten identified risks through ‘Risk In
Focus’ survey have been considered for inclusion in the 2022/23 plan as follows;

1

IT Security- Response & Recovery – It is predicted that Cybersecurity and data security will
become somewhat less of a risk over the next three years, although this is relative. It is still
expected to dominate the risk rankings and any threat mitigation will come from the fact that
organisations are becoming better equipped at managing and minimising the risk of attacks
and data breaches. For now, it remains the number one concern. Attention is focussed on
response and recovery processes and procedures, and what to do in the event of ransomware
events, to be confident to know how to respond if struck and can bring operations back online
with minimal disruption by following established protocols. Naturally, the best means for
avoiding disruption is by preventing attacks in the first place. This is why the human element is
so important. It is estimated that 97% of phishing emails now contain some form of
ransomware, and that 95% of IT security breaches result from human error. Staff training and
awareness is the most effective way of minimising the likelihood of staff clicking on malicious
links and harmful attachments (e.g. .doc, .dot and .exe files). The audit plan for 2022/23
covering this area is part of the EKS Plan which includes provision for IT Security.

2

Rising Sustainability Regulations – Arguably more impactful on the Financial and Banking
sectors, however the research almost universally spoke of the increasing regulations their
organisations face, with attention quickly turning to sustainability reporting. The aims are to
make sustainability reporting more consistent, so that investors and the public can use
comparable and reliable information. It is not an EKAP function to ensure compliance with
regulations, but ‘New legislation’ is a risk factor we consider for each area within the audit
plan. Having considered two key questions in drafting this plan it has been decided not to set
any specific time to this area in 22/23, and to maintain a watching brief on how these new
regulations may affect the public sector. A) How well developed is the governance around
sustainability reporting? For example, are roles and responsibilities clearly defined? B) Does
the organisation have a system of prioritising regulations, whether related to sustainability or
otherwise, and does it take an appropriately risk-based approach to managing compliance?

3

Accelerated Digitalisation – the risks and opportunities associated with digitalisation and the
pace of this change were highlighted as a priority area of attention. With digitalisation shifting
up a gear, the risk is whether the business model is being sufficiently adapted to meet the new
digital reality, whether core risk management principles are being embedded into projects.
Additionally, IT functions will need to ensure they know exactly what projects are in
development and apply appropriate permissions controls so that critical data is not lost or

Page 48

Agenda Item 5
misappropriated. All digital projects throughout the organisation should be mapped to check
that this matches the current activities. In the broadest sense, this should check that digital
projects, big and small, uphold the same standards expected of more traditional projects
directly managed by the IT function, and confirm that there is appropriate oversight from the
information security team. A Digital review was included in the 2021-22 plan and thus is not
currently proposed for 22-23.
4

Workforce Fatigue and Cultural Erosion – The national review elicited opinions of risks not
only on talent management and skills shortages, but the impact that remote working and
hybrid models might be having on culture, irrespective of any productivity benefits. The lack of
social interaction between colleagues may be eroding team cohesion and culture. If people
feel less connected to their teammates and are unable to clearly see how their work
contributes to the greater good of the organisation and its purpose, they could begin to stray.
Disengagement has the potential to increase fraud and other misconduct as staff lose their
sense of loyalty and put their own interests before the interests of their colleagues and the
organisation. This may be compounded by limited oversight from management, which can
result in the weakening of the soft controls environment and poorer internal communications
and reporting, increasing the likelihood of undesirable behaviour. As effective as online
collaboration tools and videoconferencing software have been in keeping the wheels turning
and people connected virtually, there is no substitute for in-person interaction. It is considered
too early for internal audit to conduct formal assessments of how effectively behavioural and
cultural risk is being managed, this will be re-assessed for next year’s plan.

5

Pandemic Response – The pandemic has been pervasive, simultaneously impacting
employees, suppliers and customers across the globe and for a duration previously not
considered a possibility. It goes without saying that organisations should be updating their
business continuity plans (BCPs). This will require careful examination of how effective crisis
responses have been and BCPs should now include a pandemic scenario, incorporating
lessons learned to better respond to similar future crises. These will need to include staff
safety, supply chain and cyber risk mitigation measures. Greater resilience can be achieved
by covering these basics, putting the organisation on a stronger footing should another
pandemic or other crisis event occur. The ability to anticipate and plan for future crises is how
organisational resilience is achieved. As these arrangements have been tested throughout
2020 and 2021 there is no additional time planned for the 2022-23 audit plan.

6

Financial Resilience – Last year’s Risk in Focus assessment showed that organisations
were firmly concentrating on their financial resilience and liquidity, whilst this remains an issue
for all organisations, there is a new focus to ensure that key business partners are being
monitored. Insolvencies may rise in correlation with the withdrawal of government support,
indeed, it has been estimated that insolvency rates will raise by 13%, Services, leisure,
hospitality and travel sectors rely on government policy and, approaching two years into the
pandemic, the future of businesses in these industries is still in question. Contractor or
supplier failure remains a key risk. The longer-term impact of this risk is recognised in the
Corporate Risk Register and through the financial modelling and MTPF This area was
considered for inclusion in the audit plan appropriate provision has been allocated.

7

Rising Inflation – Inflation Risk may make organisations more exposed, facing the need to
absorb higher costs. If inflation persists and interest rates rise as the pandemic recedes,
banks may be forced to tighten monetary policy. The cost of borrowing will increase. A review
of Treasury Management was completed in 2019-20 and concluded Substantial Assurance; a
further review is not therefore proposed in 2022-23.

Page 49

Agenda Item 5

8

Climate Change and Sustainability – Climate change carries significant risks and
opportunities. Environmental and sustainability risk is now a core risk topic that has firmly
come to the fore over the past 12-18 months. At a top level, this should start with reviewing
what strategic actions are being taken. These goals may include minimising environmental
impacts such as deforestation, chemical waste, greenhouse gas emissions and water
consumption; ensuring human rights and the promotion of economic inclusion through the
supply chain; and developing products and services that do not harm people or the planet.
Through direct activities and those of contractors and third parties. This area was reviewed in
2021-22 and has been allocated 5 days for further review in 2022-23.

9

Supply Chain Strain – The V-shaped recovery in demand is currently contributing to new
inflationary pressures, but a bigger risk than rising costs is short supplies of critical
components causing production delays and lost revenues. If organisations are unable to
secure vital supplies, then they cannot provide services. Complicating matters is the
unpredictability and unevenness of the economic recovery, which is likely to make demand
forecasting a persistent challenge for every link in the supply chain. This may require a
change in mindset, from prioritising the lowest price for goods towards greater certainty and
resilience. This risk is closely linked to Risks 6 & 7 above; A review of CSO Compliance was
completed in 2019-20 and concluded Reasonable Assurance; a further review is not therefore
proposed in 2022-23.

10

Health & Safety – The spread of coronavirus has impacted all manner of risks, however, from
a pure health and safety perspective, the challenge is in ensuring that appropriate steps are
taken to safeguard the physical and mental wellbeing of staff, customers and suppliers at the
same time as maximising productivity and minimising service interruptions. Organisations
have a legal obligation to protect their employees and others from harm, so health and safety
will remain a prominent risk, even as the pandemic is gradually contained. The HR service
has been brought back in house and 10 days have been allocated for people management
reviews in the 2022-23 plan.

3.4

There are insufficient audit resources to review all areas of activity each year. Consequently,
the plan is based upon a formal risk assessment that seeks to ensure that all areas of the
Council’s operations are reviewed within a strategic cycle of audits. In order to provide
Members with assurance that internal audit resources are sufficient to give effective coverage
across all areas of the Authority's operations, a strategic plan has been included.

3.5

To comply with the best practice, the agreed audit plan should cover a fixed period of no more
than 1 year. Members are therefore being asked to approve the 2022-23 plan at the present
time, and the future years are shown as indicative plans only, to provide Members with
assurance that internal audit resources are sufficient to provide effective coverage across all
areas of the Authority's operations within a rolling cycle.

3.6

The plan has been prepared in consultation with the Directors and the Council’s statutory
s.151 Officer. The plan is also designed to meet the requirements expected by the External
Auditors for ensuring key controls are in place for its fundamental systems. This Committee is
also part of the consultation process, and its views on the plan of work for 2022-23 are sought
to ensure that the Council has an effective internal audit of its activities and Members receive
the level of assurance they require to be able to place assurance on the annual governance
statement.

Page 50

Agenda Item 5
3.7

The risk assessment and consultation to date has resulted in;
75%
3%
0%
22%

Core Assurance Projects- the main Audit Programme;
Fraud Work – fraud awareness, reactive work and investigating potential
irregularities;
Corporate Risk – testing the robustness of corporate risk mitigating action; and
Other Productive Work – Corporate meetings, follow up, general advice, liaison.

Total number of audits 24.
The current resources of the EKAP will allow for an opinion to be given on the Council’s key
risk areas and systems. This should be sufficient coverage to inform the Annual Governance
Statement.
The detailed draft audit plan is contained in Appendix A.
4.0

Benchmarking the level of Internal Audit Provision.

4.1

Members should have regard to how audit resources within the Council compare to other
similar organisations when considering the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit
plan. The results of benchmarking show that the average number of internal audit days
provided by district councils within Kent is circa 400 days annum. The audit plan of Thanet
District Council of 330 days plus their share of the EKS audit plan totals 373. The Thanet plan
is therefore 6.83% less well-resourced than the Kent average.

5.0

Head of Internal Audit Opinion of the 2022-23 Internal Audit Plan.

5.1

This report is presented to Members by the Council’s Director of Financial Services whose
s.151 responsibility it is to maintain an effective internal audit plan. In the interests of
openness and transparency and in order to enable Members to make an informed decision on
the internal audit plan presented for their approval consideration should also be given to the
opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the effectiveness of the plan.

5.2

It is the professional opinion of the Head of the East Kent Audit Partnership that the draft
2022-23 internal plan presented for Members’ consideration is less well-resourced than the
Kent average and accordingly our overall audit opinion at the end of the year will be limited to
commenting on the systems of internal control that have been examined. The current
resources of the EKAP will allow for an opinion to be given on the Council’s key risk areas and
systems. This should be sufficient coverage to inform the Annual Governance Statement.

5.3

The Head of the East Kent Audit Partnership highlights that Members either approve the
2022-23 internal audit plan as drafted or they may recommend to Cabinet that additional
resources should be allocated to bring the plan up to the Kent average. This would require an
additional 27 days per annum, which at an estimated cost per audit day of £350 would cost
£9,450 per annum.

5.0

Options

5.1

That Members approve the 2022-23 Internal Audit Plan as drafted.

5.2

That Members make suggested amendments to and approve the 2022-23 Internal Audit Plan.

Page 51

Agenda Item 5

Contact Officer:
Reporting to:

Christine Parker, Head of the Audit Partnership, Ext. 42160
Simon Webb, Deputy Head of Audit, Ext 7189
Chris Blundell; Director of Financial Services (s.151 Officer )

Annex List
Annex 1

Thanet District Council Draft 2022-23 Internal Audit Plan

Background Papers
Title

Details of where to access copy

Former Internal Audit Annual Plan
2020-21
Audit Charter & Mission

Previous plan presented to and approved in March
2021 at Governance and Audit Committee meeting
Previously presented to and approved at March
2020 Governance and Audit Committee meetings.

Corporate Consultation
Finance
Legal

Chris Blundell; Director of Financial Services
Estelle Culligan, Director of Corporate Governance

Page 52

Thanet District Council Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

Plan Area
Financial Governance:
Capital
Treasury Management
Car Parking & Enforcement
Bank Reconciliation
Creditors and CIS
External Funding Protocol
Main Accounting System
Income & Cash Collection
Budgetary Control
VAT
Insurance and Inventories of Portable
Assets
Housing Systems:
Homelessness
Housing Allocations and Housing Needs
Private Sector Housing – HMO Licensing
and Selective Licensing
Right to Buy
Responsive Repairs & Maintenance

Garage Deposits/Management
Tenant Health & Safety
Rent Acounting, Collection & Recovery
Leasehold Services
Rechargeable Works

Previous
Assurance
level

2019-20
2019-20
2018-19
2021-22
2021-22
2019-20
2016-17
2021-22
2021-22
2018-19

Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
21-22 WIP
21-22 WIP
Substantial
Substantial
21-22 WIP
21-22 WIP
Substantial

2019-20

Substantial

Comm.
Comm.

2021-22
2018-19

21-22 WIP
Substantial

10

4

Comm.

2016-17

Substantial

10

2

Comm.

2021-22
2021-22

Limited
21-22 WIP
To be
Assessed
Various
To be
Assessed
Various
Substantial
Reasonabl
21-22e WIP

Env.

New Area
2019-20
New Area
2019-20
2019-20
2017-18
2021-22

2022-23
Quarter 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
planned Prioritised Planned Planned Planned
days
for
Days
Days
Days
2022-23
10
10
10

3

10
10
10
10
10
10

10

3
12
10

10
15
10
10
8
10

4

12

2

10
13
12

Agenda Item 5

Void Property Management

Year last
audited

Corporate
Plan, and
Risk Ref:

Annex 1

Page 53

Decent Homes

Annex A

Thanet District Council Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

Plan Area

Corporate
Plan, and
Risk Ref:

Capital Programme, Planned
Maintenance
Contract Monitoring & Management
Contract Letting/Procurement
Process/Specifications
Tenancy Fraud

Year last
audited

Previous
Assurance
level

Annex A

2022-23
Quarter 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
planned Prioritised Planned Planned Planned
days
for
Days
Days
Days
2022-23

2017-18

To be
Assessed
Limited
To be
Assessed
Limited

Resident Involvement

2021-22

21-22 WIP

10

Tenancy & Estate Management and
Inspections

2021-22

21-22 WIP

10

Anti-Social Behaviour

2012-13

New Area
2018-19
New Area

New Capital Build Programme

New Area
Comm.

2014-15
2021-22
2018-19

12
10

3
10

Reasonabl
e
To be
Assessed
To be
Assessed
Substantial

2018-19

Information Governance:
Data Protection, FOI and Information
Management
Technology/Cyber Risks:

2021-22

Limited

New Area

To be
Assessed

10
10
12
10
10
10

2
10

10

10

1

10

Agenda Item 5

21-22 WIP
Reasonabl
e
Substantial/
Reasonabl
e

Apprenticeships

Cloud Computing/Digital

4

Annex 1

Page 54

Energy Efficiency, Carbon Reduction &
Fuel Poverty Programmes
HRA Business Plan
Human Resources:
Recruitment & Leavers
Absence Management, Annual Leave
and Flexi Leave

New Area

12

Thanet District Council Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

Plan Area

Corporate
Plan, and
Risk Ref:

Year last
audited

Previous
Assurance
level

Annex A

2022-23
Quarter 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
planned Prioritised Planned Planned Planned
days
for
Days
Days
Days
2022-23

Corporate Governance:
Not audited by EKAP, assurance is instead to be provided by External Audit
2020-21

Reasonabl
e

10

2017-18

Reasonabl
e
Limited
Limited
Reasonabl
e
Substantial

Annually

N/A

32

1 to 4

2016-17

Limited

10

4

2021-22

21-22 WIP

2019-20

N/A

2021-22

21-22 WIP

Annually
Annually
Annually

N/A
N/A
N/A

2016-17
2020-21
2018-19
2012-13

10

2

10

1

10
8

10
32

32

32

10
10

10

3

15

1
5
15

1 to 4
1
1 to 4

1
5
15

10

1
5
15

1
5
15

Agenda Item 5

10

Annex 1

Page 55

Governance & Culture
Members’ Code of Conduct, Register of
Interests, Gifts and Hospitality, and
Standards Arrangement
Officers’ Code of Conduct and Gifts and
Hospitality
Local Code of Corporate Governance
Complaints Monitoring
Partnerships & Shared Services
Monitoring
Scheme of Officer Delegations
Corporate/Governance and Audit
Committee
Project Management
Performance Management & Data Quality:
Performance Management
Fraud Risk:
Anti-Fraud & Corruption Assurance
Mapping
Risk Management:
Informs all
Risk Management
Corporate
Risks
Other:
Liaison with the External Auditors
N/A
Previous Year Work in Progress b/fwd
N/A
Follow-up
N/A
Procurement & Contract Management:

Thanet District Council Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

Plan Area

Corporate
Plan, and
Risk Ref:

Year last
audited

Previous
Assurance
level

CSO Compliance

2019-20

Service Contract Management
Receipt and Opening of Tenders
Procurement
Asset Management:
Asset Management; Commercial
Properties and Concessions (incl,
Industrial estates, Innovation centre etc)

2021-22
2017-18
2016-17

Reasonabl
e
21-22 WIP
Substantial
Substantial

2021-22

Limited

New Area

To be
Assessed

Growth

Commercial Properties - Compliance
Service Level Audits:
Cemeteries and Crematoria
Thanet Lottery
Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable
Groups/DBS Checks
Community Safety

2018-19

Reasonabl
21-22e WIP
Reasonabl
e
Reasonabl
e
Substantial
Substantial

2022-23
Quarter 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
planned Prioritised Planned Planned Planned
days
for
Days
Days
Days
2022-23
12
12
10
10

10

10
10
12
15

10

3

10

1

10

1

10

3

Comm.

2018-19

Comm.

2016-17
2018-19

Env.

2018-19

Reasonabl
e

Env.

2021-22
2018-19

Reasonabl
e
Substantial

Env.

2020-21

Limited

10

Env.

2015-16

Limited

10

10

10

1

Agenda Item 5

10

Annex 1

Page 56

Coastal Management
CCTV
Dog Warden Service, Street Scene and
Litter Enforcement (incl. graffiti and
flytipping)
Electoral Registration & Election
Management
Environmental Health – Food Safety
Environmental Health – Public Health
Burials
Environmental Health – Health and
Safety at Work

2020-21
2021-22

Annex A

Thanet District Council Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

Plan Area
Environmental Health - Environmental
Protection Service Requests
Environmental Health - Pollution,
Contaminated Land, Air and Water
Quality
Business Continuity and Emergency
Planning

Year last
audited

Previous
Assurance
level

Env.

2016-17

Substantial

Env.

2017-18

Substantial

Corporate
Plan, and
Risk Ref:

2018-19

Playgrounds

2021-22

Equality and Diversity

2021-22

Reasonabl
e
Reasonabl
e
Limited

Annex A

2022-23
Quarter 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
planned Prioritised Planned Planned Planned
days
for
Days
Days
Days
2022-23
10
10

2

10

4
10
10

Env.

2019-20

Reasonabl
e/Limited

12

Dalby Square Heritage Grants and
Housing Intervention Grants

Comm.

2015-16

Substantial

10

Disabled Facilities Grants

Comm.

2020-21

Substantial

Grounds Maintenance

Growth

2021-22

Ramsgate Harbour Accounts

Growth

2021-22

East Kent Opportunities
Members’ Allowances and Expenses
Planning Applications, Income and s106
Agreements

Growth

2018-19
2016-17

Env.

2019-20

21-22 WIP
Not
Applicable
N/A
Substantial
Reasonabl
e

12
5

2

10

3

5

5
10

12

5

Agenda Item 5

2021-22
Substantial
10
2018-19
Substantial
10
2
2015-16
Limited
10
2
12
2017-18
Reasonabl
10
e assurance is instead provided by LEXCEL accreditation
Not audited by EKAP,

Annex 1

Page 57

Land Charges
Licensing
Museums
Allotments
Legal Services
Ramsgate Port, Marina & Broadstairs
Harbour

10

Thanet District Council Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

Plan Area
Building Control

Corporate
Plan, and
Risk Ref:
Env.

Year last
audited

Previous
Assurance
level

2019-20

Limited
Reasonabl
e
Substantial
Reasonabl
e/Limited

Phones, Mobiles and Utilities

2020-21

Printing and Post

2019-20

YourLeisure - Sports and Leisure

Comm.

2014-15

Comm.

2021-22

21-22 WIP

Growth

2015-16

Env.

2017-18

Env.
Env.

2021-22
2016-17

Street Cleansing

Env.

2021-22

Climate Change
Employee Health, Safety and Welfare
Total Planned Days:

Env.

2020-21
2018-19

Substantial
Reasonabl
e
21-22 WIP
Reasonabl
e
No
Assurance
N/A
Reasonabl
e

Event Management, Sports &
Community Development
Visitor Information Arrangements
Waste and Street Cleansing Vehicle
Fleet Management
Garden Waste and Recycling Income
Refuse Collection

Annex A

2022-23
Quarter 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
planned Prioritised Planned Planned Planned
days
for
Days
Days
Days
2022-23
12
10
10
10
10
10
13

1

12
12
10
14

5
10
330

3
4

5
330

5
10
330

10
330

Agenda Item 5

Annex 1

Page 58

Thanet District Council Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

Plan Area

Corporate
Plan, and
Risk Ref:

Year last
audited

Previous
Assurance
level

Annex A

2022-23
Quarter 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
planned Prioritised Planned Planned Planned
days
for
Days
Days
Days
2022-23

Agenda Item 5

Annex 1

Page 59

Thanet District Council Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

Plan Area
EK Services - Revenues & Benefits
Housing Benefits – Payment
Housing Benefits – Overpayments
Housing Benefits – Admin &
Assessment
Housing Benefit - Appeals
Housing Benefit - DHP
Housing Benefit - Subsidy
Housing benefit Testing (DDC & TDC
only)
Council Tax
Council Tax Reduction Scheme
Customer Services/Gateway
Business Rates
Business Rates reliefs
Business Rates credits
Debtors and rechargeable Works
EK Services - Corporate
Corporate / Audit Plan
Follow ups
EK Services - ICT

ICT – Network Security
ICT – Procurement and Disposal
ICT – Internet / e-mail / laptops
ICT – Physical and Environment
ICT - Software Licensing

2014/15
2016/17

Substantial
Substantial

2014/15

Substantial

15

2015/16
2015/16
2016

Substantial
Substantial

15

2015/16

N/A

2014/15
(2016)
2013/14
2016/17
2015/16
2015/16
2015/16
2015/16

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Planne Planne Planne Planne
d Days d Days d Days d Days
15
15

15
15
20

Substantial
Substantial
Reasonable
Reasonable
Reasonable
Reasonable
Substantial

20

15
20
20
15
15
20
8
7

8
7

Limited
Reasonable

Limited

8
7
15

15

Substantial
Reasonable
Reasonable
Reasonable

20

20

8
7

2013/14
(2016)
2014/15
2012/13
(2016)
2013/14
2014/15
2014/15
2012/13
(2016)

20

15
15
15
15
15

Agenda Item 5

ICT - Data Management

Previous
assurance
level

Annex 1

Page 60

ICT – Change Controls

Year
lasted
audited

Annex A

Thanet District Council Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

ICT - PCI-DSS

2015/16

ICT - Disaster Recovery

2015/16

EK Services - EKHR
Recruitment
Absence Management/Annual Leave
and Flexi Leave
Payroll, SMP and SSP

2016/17
2015
2013
(2016)

Leavers
Employee Health, Safety and Welfare
Sub-Total EK Services Planned
Days

15
15

Substantial
Reasonable /
Limited

15
15

15

15

15

15

Employee Allowances and Expenses
Employee benefits-in-kind

15

Limited
Sub /
Reasonable

Reasonable

Annex A

2013
(2016)
2016
2015

Reasonable /
Limited

15
15

Reasonable /
Limited

15
160

160

160

160

Agenda Item 5

Annex 1

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

EK SERVICES STRATEGIC AUDIT PLAN 2022/26

2022-23
Planned
Days

2023-24
Planned
Days

2024-25
Planned
Days

2025-26
Planned
Days

Year lasted
audited

Previous
assurance level

Housing Benefits – Payment

2021/22

Substantial

Housing Benefits – Overpayments

2020/21

Substantial

Housing Benefits – Admin & Assessment

2018/19

Substantial

15

Housing Benefit - Appeals

2019/20

Substantial

15

Housing Benefit - DHP

2018/19

Reasonable

Housing Benefit - Subsidy

2020/21

Substantial

Housing Benefit Testing

2021/22

N/A

Council Tax

2014/15
(2021)

Substantial

Council Tax Reduction Scheme

2017/18

Substantial

Customer Services/Gateway

2016/17

Substantial

Business Rates

2017/18

Substantial

Business Rates reliefs / credits

2019/20

Substantial

Debtors and rechargeable Works

2018/19

Substantial

15

Key Performance Indicators

2020/21

Substantial

5

5

5

5

65

65

65

65

Plan Area

EK Services - Revenues & Benefits (CIVICA)

15

15
15
15

15

15

15
15

15

15
15

Agenda Item 5

15

Annex 2

Page 63

Sub-Total EK Services Planned Days
EK Services Corporate

15

Meetings/ Agree Audit Plan

5

5

5

5

Carried forward / follow up

13

13

13

13

Total EK Services Corporate

18

18

18

18

EK Services - ICT
ICT – Change Controls / Updates

2016/17
(2021)

Substantial

ICT - Data Management

2017/18

Substantial

15

ICT – Network Security

2018/19

Substantial

15

ICT – Procurement and Disposal

2017/18
(2021)

Reasonable

ICT – Physical and Environment

2019/20

ICT - Software Licensing

2020/21

ICT - PCI-DSS

2018/19

ICT - Disaster Recovery

2020/21

2021/22

15

Substantial
Reasonable /
Limited
Reasonable /
Limited

15
15
15

Reasonable

Substantial

15
30

30

30

15

15

15

15

128

128

128

128

Agenda Item 5

30

Annex 2

Page 64

EKS ICT Total
EKS Payroll
EKS Payroll
Overall total

15

Agenda Item 6
Corporate Risk Management
Governance and Audit Committee

9 March 2022

Report Author

Chris Blundell, Head of Financial and Procurement
Services

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Ashbee, Portfolio Holder for Corporate
Performance and Risk

Status

For information

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

All

Executive Summary:
This report provides the Governance & Audit Committee with a quarterly review of corporate
risks. The report identifies and details the highest corporate risks facing the authority and
the action being taken by the authority to address them. The committee is asked to consider
the risks identified and the action taken to mitigate them.

Recommendation(s):
1. To consider the corporate risks identified in the report;
2. To consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements and
the control environment; and
3. Consider their assurance with the action is being taken on risk-related issues.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
The way in which the council manages risks has a financial impact on the cost of insurance
and self-insurance. The council maintains reserves including a risk reserve, the size of which
is commensurate with the financial impact of current and future risks. There are no specific
financial implications arising from this report.
It is the role and responsibility of the Section 151 Office to have active involvement in all
material business decisions to ensure immediate and longer term implications, opportunities
and risks are fully considered.

Page 65

Agenda Item 6
Legal
Whilst the corporate risk register includes consideration of legal matters in as far as they
relate to risks to the council, there are no legal implications for the recommendation required
by this report.
Corporate
Governance & Audit Committee approved the revised Risk Management Strategy on 6
March 2019, which includes a requirement to provide regular corporate risk updates to G&A
Committee.
Equalities Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and (iii)
foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people who
do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
There are no equity or equalities issues arising from this report. The risk register identifies a
number of activities designed to control risks and these will each need to be assessed for
equality impact in their own right.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities:
● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

1.
1.1.

2.
2.1.

Introduction
The Council monitors and manages its corporate risks through the Corporate Risk Register.
The contents of the report highlight the high-priority corporate risks and describe the
arrangements in place to ensure these risks are monitored and managed appropriately.

Background
The Risk Management Strategy 2019-23 was approved by the Governance and Audit
Committee at its meeting on 6 March 2019.

Page 66

Agenda Item 6
2.2.

3.
3.1.

The strategy defines corporate risks as ‘those which could impact across the whole council
including those relating to partnerships’. The strategy prescribes that these risks should be
assessed by the Corporate Management Team (CMT) and the Member Risk Management
Champion and then reported to the Governance and Audit Committee on a regular basis.

Risk, Risk Management and Responsibilities
What is risk - Risk is defined as the uncertainty of outcome, whether positive opportunity or
negative threat, of actions and events.
Risk can be a threat (downside) or an opportunity (upside)

3.2.

A local authority’s purpose is generally concerned with the delivery of service or with the
delivery of a beneficial outcome in the public interest. The delivery of these objectives is
surrounded by uncertainty which both poses threats to success and offers opportunity for
increasing success.

3.3.

What risk management - Risk Management can be defined as:
‘Risk Management is the process by which risks are identified, evaluated and
controlled. It is a key element of the framework of governance together with
community focus, structures and processes, standards of conduct and service delivery
arrangements’
(Audit Commission)

3.4.

Risks have to be assessed in respect of the combination of the likelihood of something
happening, and the impact which arises if it does actually happen. Risk management
includes identifying and assessing risks and then responding to them. Risk is unavoidable,
and every organisation needs to take action to manage risk in a way which it can justify to a
level which is tolerable. The amount of risk which is judged to be tolerable and justifiable is
the “risk appetite”.

3.5.

Roles and responsibilities - The primary member oversight on risk is provided by the
Governance and Audit Committee. Cabinet also has a member Risk Champion (the Portfolio
Holder for Corporate Governance and Coastal Development) who promotes risk
management and its benefits throughout the council.

3.6.

At staff level, the high-level corporate risk register is regularly considered by the Corporate
Management Team (CMT). G&A Committee considers changes to the corporate risk register,
the reasons for the changes and the actions being taken to mitigate the likelihood and impact
of those risks. A view is also taken regarding the extent to which the risks should be
tolerated.

3.7.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Position Statement on
Audit Committees (2018) sets out the key principles for audit committees operating in local
government.

3.8.

The statement sets out the key responsibilities of the committee to include:

Page 67

Agenda Item 6
‘consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements and
the control environment, reviewing the risk profile of the organisation and assurances
that action is being taken on risk-related issues, including partnerships and
collaborations with other organisations’
3.9.

4.

The report seeks to aid the committee to discharge these responsibilities.

Corporate risk register

4.1.

A summary of the highest scoring corporate risks on the register is set out in the table and
the following narrative below, together with the comparative scores noted by the Governance
& Audit Committee on 1 December 2021.

4.2.

The scores are arrived at by multiplying the “likelihood” score by the “impact” score, where
the maximum score for each is four, so the maximum total score is sixteen.
Ref

Description

Dec 21
Score

Mar 22
Score

Change

CR-03

Political Stewardship

16

16

No change

CR-12

Cyber Attack

16

16

No change

CR-13

Governance

16

16

No change

CR-14

Berth 4/5

16

16

No change

CR-05

Homelessness

16

16

No change

CR-01

Limited Resources

12

12

No change

CR-09

Economic Resources

12

12

No change

CR-11

Covid-19

12

9

Reduced

CR-15

Environmental Act 2021

12

12

No change

4.3.

Each corporate risk is the responsibility of a member of CMT and they manage risk mitigation
plans with the aim of reducing the likelihood and/or impact of each risk to a manageable
level. As time moves on, the external environment changes and this can have an impact on
the effectiveness of mitigating actions as well as on the likelihood and impact of a risk: hence
the need to maintain vigilance in respect of mitigation plans as well as new and changing
risks.

4.4.

It is more difficult to take action to reduce the impact of a risk occurring, than it is to take
action to reduce its likelihood. Hence in some cases, the scores after mitigation will remain
relatively high.

Page 68

Agenda Item 6

5.

Highest-scoring risks

5.1.

Political Stewardship (Impact 4, Probability 4): The Council is now under Conservative
control, however this came after a period of continued leadership change and so political
stewardship remains a risk to the council. The council continues to pursue opportunities to
support cross-party working and induction training for new members.

5.2.

Cyber Attack (Impact 4, Probability 4): The Council is becoming more and more aware of
cyber attacks across the local government sector. This and recent attempts to send emails
to staff from internal email addresses such as the Chief Executive’s, further highlights the
impending risk to internal systems.
At a time when the majority of staff are working from home due to the pandemic, a much
higher reliance on IT systems is needed and therefore the risk of disruption to Council
services as a result of a Cyber attack is heightened.
The Council is mitigating the impact of any potential attack by ensuring IT systems are as
robust as possible, but as we’ve seen globally, even the larger international companies are
still susceptible to attack.
The Council is also actively considering obtaining Cyber insurance cover to protect the
Council against the potential financial impact that could be caused by such an event. The
Council are currently completing the relevant paperwork to obtain quotes and assess
whether the cover provided offers value for money.

5.3.

Governance (Impact 4, Probability 4): Statutory Recommendations were received from the
external auditors, Grant Thornton, in relation to governance matters and an extraordinary
Council meeting agreed the recommendations. Some of the related disciplinary and
grievance matters have now concluded following the agreement of a settlement with the
former Deputy Chief Executive. Cabinet approval was granted on 8 June 2021 for a budget
for anticipated possible costs of up to £733k to fund current and on-going legal fees
associated with these matters; a proportion of this funding has been reallocated to fund this
settlement.
An external monitoring officer has now been appointed to progress the recommendations laid
out in Grant Thornton's report and an initial update on progress was provided to the General
Purpose Committee at its meeting on 26 January 2022.
However the progress and conclusion of these matters continue to present both a financial
and reputational risk to the authority.

5.4.

Limited Resources (Impact 4, Probability 3): The high score for Limited Resources reflects
the fact that it is one of the few risks that in extremis could result in the council losing control
of its own destiny. Financial failure at a number of authorities (e.g. Northampton, Croydon,
Slough) in recent years has led to central government intervention and in Northampton
County Council ultimately led to being replaced with two unitary authorities.
The 2022/23 budget was approved by Council on 10 February 2022, partly as a result of an
unexpected increased government finance settlement. However, this settlement is only for
one year and the budget gaps remain forecast in future years. Furthermore, there remains

Page 69

Agenda Item 6
uncertainty about the shape of local government finance envisaged as a result of national
reviews of Fair Funding and Business Rates. The outcome of these reviews will have major
implications for the council’s financial standing across the medium term.
The in-year 2021/22 financial position continues to be dominated by the impact of Covid-19.
For the early part of this year, the council continued to administer substantial financial
support to residents and businesses who remained affected some of which is due to
recommence due to the Omicron surge. There is also a continued impact on the council’s
spending (as we attempted to alleviate the worst aspects of the virus) and income (through
reductions in fees and charges, Council Tax and Business Rates).
Thanet’s reserves remain relatively low even before Covid-19. Monies were set aside in
reserves last year with the specific purpose of addressing Covid-19 and additional
Government support is anticipated this year. If spend exceeds these allocations difficult
decisions will need to be made to identify reserves to bridge any potential gap.
The most recent monitoring indicates that we will be able to balance the in-year budget
overspend by allocating the £1m of additional Covid funding received and some £1m of
residual Covid reserve.
5.5.

Homelessness (Impact 4, Probability 4): Homelessness has grown as a challenge for
many local authorities over the last year, Thanet included. There are additional pressures on
Housing as the gap between supply and need increases and previously plans have been
developed to ensure that this pressure is minimised. The council has reviewed and is
delivering its homelessness strategy action plan, is regularly monitoring the levels of
homelessness and has commissioned new services to address the increasing need for
support. This work will continue. The council has also successfully bid for new government
funding to support homelessness services locally.
However the Council is seeing another surge of homelessness across the district as a result
of Covid. The district has seen increased pressures on the local private rented sector, driving
increases in average rent levels and resulting in a growing gap between rents and local
housing allowances. In addition, with the eviction ban coming to an end on 1 June 2021 we
are now seeing cases progress through the courts, resulting in additional service and
financial pressures. These pressures have made it much more difficult for the council to find
suitable, affordable solutions for people facing homelessness in the private rented sector,
resulting in an increased number of households living in temporary accommodation.
The financial pressures are currently estimated at up to £450k for 2021/22 based on current
homelessness levels and an additional £400k was allocated in the 2022/23 budget in
reflection of the expectation of increased demand and costs continuing.

5.6.

Economic resources (Impact 3, Probability 4) - A combination of Brexit and Covid has
seen a significant impact on the Council’s supply chain.
The combination of these factors has meant a shortage of HGV drivers and combined with
the increased costs of products being imported via shipping containers, has created the
perfect storm of increased prices and shortage of supplies.

Page 70

Agenda Item 6
This is prevalent in the construction industry and could lead to a rationaition of some
schemes in order to ensure they are delivered within budget or the potential for significant
overspends.
As this is not an issue exclusive to one-off projects though additional pressures will be felt
across both the general fund and housing revenue account in the delivery of day-to-day
services leading potentially to some tough choices on what is deliverable within the available
budget.
5.7.

Berth 4/5 (Impact 4, Probability 4): The project has been delayed whilst an environmental
impact assessment is developed to inform planning and marine licencing consents. The
original berth was taken out of service in November 2020 due to its deteriorated condition.
A Cabinet decision was made in July 2021 to increase budget provision for the project. The
project team including engineering and ecology consultants is progressing the EIA as quickly
as possible following approval of the required additional funding. Early and regular
engagement is taking place with statutory consultees where possible. The revised
programme for project delivery indicates a May 2022 construction start subject to consents.
However these delays have resulted in a financial risk to the council due to extended berth
outage. This has led to increased costs associated with the berth replacement contract and
also potential pass through of extra/over costs from the customer for road haulage of
aggregates until the new berth is ready for service.

5.8.

Environmental Act (Impact 3, Probability 4)
The Environment Act became law on 9 November 2021. This includes fundamental changes
in responsibility for waste and recycling which will have implications for the way we deliver
statutory household waste collections.
As a member of the Kent Resource Partnership, TDC responded to Government
consultations this year on consistency of household collections, Extended Producer
Responsibility and a Deposit Return Scheme. Changes affecting household waste as a result
of the new act are likely to be implemented in 2023. Whilst the act includes provision for
funding and support to local authorities for the proposed changes, the implications for our
vehicle fleet and resourcing, income associated with green waste and income from recycling
and waste diverted from landfill are not yet clear.

6.

Reduced Risks

6.1.

Coronavirus (Impact 3, Probability 3): In ‘normal’ emergencies, local authorities and local
resilience forums deal first with an emergency and then the Recovery – getting back to
‘business as usual’ (for example, when the flood waters recede, work takes place to repair
any damage and to get people back into their homes). The Recovery from the Covid-19
Pandemic will be unlike any other in our lifetimes. The crisis has gone on for longer, been
more extreme and will have more profound consequences than anything we have prepared
for before.
Government introduced plan B restrictions on 8 December 2021 in response to the surge of
Omicron cases in the UK. Following this and over the festive period the UK saw new daily

Page 71

Agenda Item 6
cases of Covid-19 surge past 200,000, however daily cases have reduced significantly and
the government removed the vast majority of remaining restrictions from 24 February 2022.
From 1 April the government plans to remove mass testing and use of NHS Covid passes as
further evidence of us returning to pre-pandemic living.
However due to the unpredictable nature of Covid the impact on staff absences and the
reintroduction of some form of restrictions in the future remains a risk.

7.
7.1.

Other Corporate Risks
G&A meeting members requested to have oversight of all risks as part of the regular reports.
This would however substantially increase the size of the report and so all risks scoring 9 or
more after mitigation have been included within Annex 1.

Contact Officer: Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)
Reporting to: Madeline Homer (Chief Executive)

Page 72

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Risk Name

Risk Description

Burial Space

Original
Score

Mitigating Actions

Score
after
mitigation

There are currently
12
an estimated 18
months of remaining
capacity if the
current death / burial
(circa 95 per
annum) rate
continues. In the
event of a Pandemic
this clearly would
cause concern.

Re-use of ancient graves, in-fill in
vacant spots which cannot be
accessed by machinery so must
be hand dug. Promote the use of
Ramsgate Cemetery where there
is opportunity to re-use existing
graves and land being cleared
providing new burial space.

9

Reduction in
Supplier Base

Reduction in
supplier base
through mergers,
business
closure/insolvency,
which could impact
on our services and
also make further
procurement more
difficult through
depleted markets
and lack of
competition

12

Supplier base managed centrally
by Procurement who scrutinise
rationale for Supplier Adoption
and undertake a company credit
check via Creditsafe.

9

Coastal safety
information
signage is
inadequate

Risk of serious harm
to public. At some
bays there is no
safety signage, at
others where it does
exist it is out of date
and insufficient
Needs to be all year
round at all bays
whether lifeguarded
or not. The RNLI
have produced a
signage review
report with costs,
recommendations.
However no budget
exists for this.

9

Funds need to be found to
implement signs. Approx £60k.

9

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Statement of Accounts Update
Governance and Audit Committee 9 March 2022
Report Author

Chris Blundell, Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer

Portfolio Holder

Cllr David Saunders, Cabinet Member for Finance

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

All Wards

Executive Summary:
This report provides the committee with a progress update on the audit of the 2021/22
accounts, highlights the audit deadlines for 2021/22 accounts publication and audit and
presents the Council’s Accounting Policies to be used in the 2022/23 accounts for approval.

Recommendation(s):
1. That the committee notes the progress with the audit of the 2020/21 statement of
accounts;
2. That the committee notes the statutory audit deadlines for 2021/22;
3. The committee notes the council’s response to the consultation on time limited
changes to the code of practice on Local Authority Accounting, as set out in Annex
1; and
4. That the committee approves the 2022/23 accounting policies as set out in Annex
2 this report.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money

As detailed within the body of the report
Legal

Section 3 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires local authorities to prepare
a statement of accounts.

Page 75

Agenda Item 7

Local authorities must produce their accounts in accordance with the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting. In England and Wales, the Code constitutes a ‘proper
accounting practice’ under the terms of Section 21(2) of the Local Government Act 2003.
These proper practises apply to statements of accounts prepared in accordance with the
statutory framework established for England by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.
The audit of those accounts is undertaken in accordance with the statutory framework
established by Sections 3 and 20 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
Corporate

This forms part of the external audit process
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.

There are no equity and equalities implications arising directly from this report, but
the Council needs to retain a strong focus and understanding on issues of diversity
amongst the local community and ensure service delivery matches these.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

1.

Introduction and Background

1.1.

This report provides the committee with an update on the following of accounting issues:
● A progress update on the audit of the 2021/22 accounts,
● Outlines the deadlines for the closure and audit of the 2022/23 accounts,
● Sets out the council’s response to a consultation on interim changes to the Code of
Practice for Local Authority Accounts (the Code)

1.2.

It also presents the council’s 2022/23 accounting policies to the committee for approval.

Page 76

Agenda Item 7
2.

Progress Update on the Audit of the 2020/21 Accounts

2.1.

The external audit of the council’s statement of accounts is now largely complete. However
there remain two matters of critical judgement that need to be resolved before the audit can
be completed. These matters relate to the provisions that were created to recognise
anticipated revenue costs associated with the berth 4/5 capital scheme and also costs
associated with disciplinary and grievance matters.

2.2.

These are on-going and complex matters and consequently the estimates that were made
when the draft accounts were published on 30 July 2021 need to be revisited due to the
passage of time. Further supporting information has also been requested from third parties
in order to support the estimates that were made and it is expected these audit matters
should be concluded within the coming weeks.

2.3.

An additional Governance and Audit Committee meeting will be scheduled for May 2022, to
allow the publication of the audited accounts at the earliest possible juncture.

3.

Statutory Audit Deadlines for 2021/22

3.1.

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require the council (through this
Committee) to approve and publish its annual statement of accounts by 31 July.
Furthermore, local authorities are required to approve their draft accounts by 31st May, with
draft accounts being made available for public inspection for 30 working days, inclusive of
the first 10 working days of June.

3.2.

However, a review conducted by Sir Tony Redmond into local authority auditing and
financial reporting (Independent Review into the Oversight of Local Audit and the
Transparency of Local Authority Financial Reporting) published in September 2020
highlighted the following findings:
●
●

The existing statutory audit deadline of 31 July is unrealistic.
There is an argument to suggest the deadline should be moved to 30 September to
enable audit requirements to be fulfilled effectively.

3.3.

Subsequently the audit regulations were amended to extend the deadline for publishing the
audited accounts to 30 September for two years (2020/21 and 2021/22 accounting years),
with further review thereafter.
The amended regulations also now require the draft
accounts to be published by 1st August, again representing an extension from the previous
31st May deadline.

3.4.

The Council was successful in publishing its draft 2020/21 accounts by 1 August 2021 and
will aim to meet the 1 August 2022 deadline for this year’s 2021/22 accounts. However,
Thanet’s audited accounts were not published by the 30 September statutory deadline,
which was a common theme across the sector with 91% of audited accounts not being
delivered on time.

Page 77

Agenda Item 7
4.

Emergency proposals for an update of the 2021/22 Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting

4.1.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) is
based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and has been developed by
the CIPFA Code Board under the oversight of the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. The
Code specifies the principles and practises of accounting required to give a ‘true and fair’
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of a local authority. It
sets out the framework that local authorities must comply with when producing their
accounts.

4.2.

On 3 February 2022 the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
issued an exceptional consultation on time limited changes to the Code to help alleviate
delays to the publication of audited financial statements.

4.3.

This is in response to only 9% of local authority accounts in England meeting the audit
publication deadline of 30 September 2021, and only 40% of audited accounts approved
three months after this deadline by 31 December 2021.

4.4.

In December 2021, the Department of Levelling-up Housing and Communities asked CIPFA
LASo consider ways in which the code may ameliorate this crisis position. CIPFA LASAAC
considered this request and has issued this exceptional consultation, which explores two
possible changes that might be made as an update to the 2021/22 code and to the agreed
position in the 2022/23 code.
After considering a wide range of options CIPFA LASAAC decided to explore two
approaches:
●

●

an adaptation to the code to allow local authorities to pause professional
valuations for operational property, plant and equipment for a period of up to two
years (though the initial proposal is for the 2021/22 financial year); this approach
also explores the use of an index to be used to increase or reduce that valuation
deferring the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases for a further year and reversing
the planned changes to the 2022/23 code to implement that standard.

4.5.

The consultation closed on Thursday 3 March 2022 and at the time of writing a formal
response is still to be received. The Council’s response is set out at Annex 2 to this report.

4.6.

Support was provided for the deferral of the adoption of lease standards, as this will reduce
workload for both the finance team and the Grant Thornton, consequently increasing the
likelihood of the statutory deadlines being met.

4.7.

The section 151 officer is awaiting the outcome of the consultation before deciding whether
to pause professional valuations. The annual valuations have already been provided by our
external valuers and could therefore be used this year, nonetheless implementing them may
elongate the audit and therefore a decision will be made in due course once all information

Page 78

Agenda Item 7
is available and reported to the committee in due course. A verbal update will be provided to
the committee further information has been provided by the date of the meeting.

5.

Accounting Policies

5.1.

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices
applied by an authority in preparing and presenting financial statements

5.2.

Each year the Council undertakes a review of its accounting policies to assess relevance
and consistency of application. To aid understanding of the basis in which the accounts are
prepared, we are presenting these policies to G&A for consideration and approval for the
forthcoming year 2022/23.

5.3.

The Statement of Accounts summarises the council’s transactions for any given financial
year and its position at the year end of 31 March. The council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with the statutory framework established in
England by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which require the accounts to be
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practice. These primarily comprise the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) supported by
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

5.4.

The accounting policies that will be adopted for 2022/23 are set out in Annex 1 of this report
and cover the main principles, rules and conventions that will need to be applied.

6.

Changes in Accounting Policies for 2022-23

6.1.

As set out in section 3, the main change that was expected for the 2022/23 accounts was
the implementation of IFRS16 (bringing almost all lease liabilities on to the balance sheet
together with the corresponding ‘right of use’ assets).
However, the emergency
consultation has proposed that this be delayed for a further year from 2021-22 to 2022-23
(implementation date 1 April 2022), due to Covid-19.

6.2.

Therefore, there are no significant changes to report, however the housing debt write off
policy is subject to a current review (yet to be finalised), so may need to be subsequently
amended.

Contact Officer: Chris Blundell, Director of Finance
Reporting to: Madeline Homer (Chief Executive)
Annex List

Annex 1: Response to Emergency Consultation
Annex 2: 2022/23 Accounting Policies
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Not applicable
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
Annex 1
Valuation of operational property, plant and equipment
Q1a Do you agree with the proposal that preparers should have the option to pause
professional revaluation? If not, why not? Please provide reasons for your view.
The Council supports this proposal. Asset valuations bare little influence on the overall
financial resilience or standing of local authorities, but the accounting for the valuations and
their subsequent audit are resource intensive and time consuming. Moreover, due to the
size of council’s asset holdings, disagreements between auditors and practitioners on
relatively small movement in asset valuations can still result in material disagreements on
the accounts that can delay the conclusion of the audit.
Going forwards, CIPFA/LASACC should consider the longer-term necessity of professional
valuation of local authority assets
Q1b Additionally, do you agree with the proposal that preparers should have the
option to pause professional revaluation and adopt an indexation approach to
2021/22? If not, why not? Please provide reasons for your view.
An indexation approach would be suitable and we opine this approach should be permitted
in future with the requirement only to value high value assets on a periodic (not annual)
basis.
Q1c If you support this proposal but the impacts for 2021/22 are minimal, so that audit
timeliness issues remain, would you support either of these changes being explored
for the 2022/23 Code?
Our 2021/22 asset valuations have already been undertaken and provided to us, so we may
decide to use these anyway. Inclusion of this exception in the 2022/223 Code is supported.
Q2 Do you have any comments on the impact of the adoption of this approach on
preparers or auditors? If so, please provide more information.
For preparers this could cause confusion and complications. There could be confusion in the
scope (for example, exclusion of investment properties) and application of an index.
Complications may arise once revaluations resume, given the catch-up required.
Q3 If you support this approach, do you consider that the approach should be
available to all local authorities, restricted to England, or determined on a jurisdiction
basis reflecting the view of the relevant government?
Available to all local authorities
Q4 If you support this approach in principle, do you consider that it is appropriate for
all operational property, plant and equipment, including for example, Housing
Revenue Account assets?

Page 81

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
To avoid confusion, we would support the approach applying to all operational property, plant
and equipment, including the HRA.
Q5 Do you have any other comments on the proposal?
Consider widening the scope to all land and property assets (including investment property
etc). Otherwise the work will still need to be done for the currently excluded assets, and
there are certain ‘economies of scale’ from either valuing all assets or valuing no assets.
Deferred implementation of IFRS 16
Q6 Do you support the further deferral of IFRS 16 implementation to reduce
auditor/preparer workload? If not, why not? Please provide reasons for your view.
Yes, we support the further deferral of IFRS 16. This will reduce our workload by not having
to revise disclosure notes, process additional accounting entries and so on. The workload of
the auditor will be reduced correspondingly by not having to audit these changes.
Q7 Do you have any comments on the practical impact of the adoption of this
approach? Please provide details to support your view.
Further deferring IFRS 16 would have little or no practical impact on us.
Q8 Do you have any comments on the jurisdictional application of this approach?
No preference
Q9 Do you have any other comments on the proposal?
No further comments
Further comments
Q10 Do you have any other comments on the issue of the timeliness of the
publication of audited financial statements in local government and the impact on the
Code?
Local authority accounts are too complex to be accessible to anyone except local
government practitioners or auditors. The current accounting framework is not fit for
purpose and does not provide adequate value to our members or residents in terms of
accountability or transparency.
The range of statutory adjustments that are required in local government accounts means
that full compliance with IFRS accounting standards is not working.

Page 82

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2

1. Accounting Policies
General
The Statement of Accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2022-23 financial
year and its position at the year end of 31 March 2023. The council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with the statutory framework established in
England by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require the accounts to be
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practice. These primarily comprise the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 (the Code)
supported by the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.
Unless otherwise stated the figures in these accounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
pounds, and revenue and credit balances are shown in brackets.

Going Concern
Going concern assumes that an authority’s functions and services will continue to operate
for the foreseeable future. There is a high degree of uncertainty over future levels of funding
for local government, however the council has robust financial management procedures in
place and maintains sufficient reserves to mitigate adverse economic trends. Furthermore,
as authorities cannot be created or dissolved without statutory prescription, it would not
therefore be appropriate for local authority financial statements to be prepared on anything
other than a going concern basis.
The accounting policies that have been adopted are set out in the following paragraphs.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Revenue streams are accounted for in the year they are due irrespective of whether the
sums have been paid or received as follows:
●

●

●

●

Revenue from contracts with service recipients for either goods or services is
recognised when/as the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in
accordance with the performance obligations of the contract
Supplies of goods are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed, when there
is a delay between the date the supplies are received and when they are consumed,
they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet
Expenditure in relation to services received (including the services provided by
employees) are recorded when the services are received rather than when payments
are made
Revenue from non-exchange transactions such as council tax and non-domestic
rates are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the council and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Page 83

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
Exceptions to this principle are public utility accounts which are charged according to the
date of the meter reading and some recurring sundry debtor accounts and annual fees for
which the due dates do not coincide with normal quarter or year dates, subject to materiality.
This policy is applied consistently each year and does not have a material effect on the
year’s accounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that
mature no more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash
Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.

Material Items of Income and Expenditure
Where material items of income and expenditure are not disclosed on the face of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement a separate note will set out the nature
and amount of the relevant item.

Prior Period Adjustments
Material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting policies or
standards will be reflected retrospectively in the Statement of Accounts when required by
proper accounting practice, by restating both the opening balances and the comparable
figures for the prior year, together with a disclosure note detailing the reasons for such
restatement. Material errors in prior period figures are also corrected retrospectively in the
same way.

Employee Benefits
Pensions General
The Accounting Standards, IAS 19 and 26 regarding Employee Benefits and Retirement
Benefits, require recognition of pension assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the
operating costs of providing retirement benefits together with changes in the value of assets
and liabilities to be reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
In order that IAS 26 requirements do not impact upon council tax levels, the movement on
the net assets and liabilities (net of the employer’s contributions and actuarial gains and
losses) is reversed out to the Pension Reserve through the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
Benefits Payable During Employment
The full costs of employees are charged to the accounts of the period within which the
employees worked.

Page 84

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
The costs of any short term employee benefits untaken at the balance sheet date such as
untaken leave, flexitime and lieu time due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end are
accrued subject to materiality. The value of the accrual is calculated at the wage and salary
rates applicable to the period in which the employee takes the benefit (the following year),
and is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but is then reversed out
through the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Accumulated Absences Account so
that the entitlements are charged to the year the absence occurs.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council is
demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment or makes an offer to
encourage voluntary redundancy.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to
the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.
Post Employment Benefits
The Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Kent County Council (KCC) is a
defined benefit scheme. Contributions to the pension scheme are determined by the Fund’s
actuary on a triennial basis. The formal valuation of the Fund for the purpose of setting
employers’ actual contributions disclosed in these accounts was as at 31 March 2022 and
this has been used to update the service cost figures.
Liabilities of the pension scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method. This requires an assessment of
the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and
projections of earnings for current employees.
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.4% based
on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds.
The assets of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet
at their fair value:
●
●
●
●

Quoted securities – current bid price
Unquoted securities – professional estimate
Unitised securities – current bid price
Property – market value

The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

Page 85

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
Service Costs comprising;
Current Service Cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this
year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the revenue
accounts of services for which the employees worked.
Past Service Cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Cost of Services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability – the expected increase in the present
value of liabilities during the year as they move one year closer to being paid – debited to
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
Remeasurements;
Expected Return on Assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable
to the Council, based on an average of the expected long-term return – credited to Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Actuarial Gains and Losses – changes in the net pension liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because
the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve.
Contributions Paid to the Funds – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension
fund.
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to
be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises
on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of
being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as
the benefits are earned by employees.
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to
any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension
Scheme.

Events after the Reporting Period
Where an event occurs after the Balance Sheet date, whether favourable or unfavourable,
and also provides evidence of conditions that existed at the Balance Sheet date, the
amounts recognised in the Statement of Accounts will be adjusted. Any disclosures affected

Page 86

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
by the new information about the adjusting event will also be updated in light of the new
information.
Events that occur after the Balance Sheet date indicative of conditions arising after the
Balance Sheet date will not be adjusted in the Accounting Statements, but will be disclosed
in the Notes to the Core Financial Statements if it would have had a material effect, to
include:
●
●

the nature of the event, and
an estimate of the financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be
made reliably

Events taking place after the date the accounts are authorised for issue are not reflected in
the Statement of Accounts.

Financial Instruments – Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was
originally recognised. For the Council’s borrowings this means that the amount presented in
the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable
for the year in accordance with the loan agreements.

Financial Instruments – Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow
characteristics. The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual
cash flow, these assets are therefore classified and measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For
most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable
for the year in the loan agreement. A small element of the loans are classified as soft loans
(made at less than market rate) so there is a requirement to record any loss in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to represent interest forgone over the
life of the loan if material.

Page 87

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
Expected Credit Loss
Trade debtors - classified as financial assets, any loss allowance is calculated by
considering the age of the debt, historic payment trends and any lifetime expected credit
loss. Where these assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a
past event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down
and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under the heading ‘Impairment of
Financial Instruments’.
In exceptional circumstances where there is an increased risk of default due to adverse
economic conditions, the council may apply an additional general provision to it’s usual
assessment.
No loss allowance is set aside for local authority and central government debts as statutory
provisions under the Local Government Act 2003 prevent default.
Loans - the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the assets original effective
interest rate. Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited
or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Fair Value Measurement
The Council measures some of its property assets and some of its financial instruments at
fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
●
●

in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset,
the Council takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Council uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy as follows:
●

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Council can access at the measurement date

Page 88

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
●
●

Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Government and Non-Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:
●
●

the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must
be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure (non-ring fenced
revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.
Revenue grants are matched in service revenue accounts with the service expenditure to
which they relate. Grants to cover general expenditure (e.g. Revenue Support Grant) are
credited to the foot of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under
Taxation and Non–Specific Grant Income.
Grants where the Council acts as an agent rather than as the principal will not impact on the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and will be reflected only in the balance
sheet.

Heritage Assets
A heritage asset is a tangible or intangible asset that is intended to be preserved in trust for
future generations because of its historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities and is held and maintained principally for its contribution to
knowledge and culture.
The council has identified the following asset groups as classified as Heritage Assets:

Page 89

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
●
●
●
●
●

Public statues
Artefacts and or collections within museums
Art collections
Civic regalia
Historic amusement park and rides

Heritage assets (other than operational heritage assets) shall normally be measured at cost
in accordance with FRS 102 since it is deemed to be more appropriate and relevant than
applying any valuation model.
Acquisitions are initially recognised at cost or if bequeathed or donated at nil cost, at
valuation.
Heritage assets are reviewed for evidence of impairment, including doubts as to authenticity.
Any impairment is accounted for in accordance with the council’s policy within the Property
Plant and Equipment accounting policy. The proceeds of any disposals likewise follow the
council’s general accounting policy.

Intangible Assets
In line with IAS 38 (Intangible Assets), expenditure on intangible fixed assets is capitalised at
cost. An intangible fixed asset is one that has no physical substance but is identifiable and
the council has control, (either through custody or legal protection) over the future economic
benefits derivable from it.
Purchased intangible assets (e.g. software licences) should be capitalised as assets.
Internally developed intangible assets should only be capitalised where criteria set out in
section 4.5.2.7 of the Code are met. The council must satisfy itself that these criteria can be
met and that internal systems are able to distinguish between Research and Development
phases of a project.
Council policy is to write down intangible assets to the relevant service revenue account in
the year that they occur.

Interests in Companies and Other Entities
The Code’s definition of an interest in another entity includes ‘the means by which an entity
has control or joint control of, or significant influence over, another entity’. In accordance with
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, assessment
of any involvement/interest for the purposes of group accounts will consider the above when
determining whether or not a group relationship exists. This is considered to apply where the
Council has all of the following:
●
●
●

sole control of another entity and power over it;
exposure to risks or rights to variable returns;
and the ability to use its power over the other entity to influence those returns.

Subject to the assessment set out above if the council’s interest is deemed to be a group
relationship the Council may still only prepare single entity accounts if the group interest is
not material.

Page 90

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
Inventories, Rechargeable Works and Long Term Contracts
Inventories relate to printing, stationery and marketing merchandise held at Visitor
Information Centres and Museums and stores held at the Parks and Waste Direct Labour
Organisations.
The Code and IAS 2 (Inventories), require stocks to be shown at the lower of actual cost or
net realisable value. The stock at the printing unit is measured at the average cost of stock
held as it is considered that the financial effect of the different treatment is not material.
Any work in progress is subject to an interim valuation at year end. Rechargeable Works are
included at cost.
Long Term contracts are defined as “contracts entered into for the design, manufacture or
construction of a single substantial asset or the provision of a service (or of a combination of
assets or services which together constitute a single project) where the time taken
substantially to complete the contract is such that the contract activity falls into different
accounting periods.” The council makes a disclosure in the notes to the Core Financial
Statements in respect of any capital contracts meeting this definition. Long term contracts
are accounted for by charging the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services with the
consideration allocated to the performance obligations of the contract that have been
satisfied, based on the goods or services that have been transferred to the service recipient
during the financial year.

Joint Operations
Joint Operations are activities undertaken by the council in conjunction with other bodies
where there is joint control and the parties have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities of the arrangement. Joint control exists where unanimous consent is required from
the parties sharing control for decisions about relevant activities. The council recognises on
its Balance Sheet its own assets and the liabilities that it incurs, and debits and credits the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the expenditure it incurs and the
share of the income it may earn from the activity of the operation.

Leases
The accounting treatment for leases depends on whether the Council is a lessee; is paying a
third party rental payments for the right to use an asset, or a lessor where it is granting the
right to use an asset to an external third party. The accounting treatment for each is given
below:
Where the Council is a Lessee
Where the Council enters into a lease, and recognition exemptions do not apply, the asset is
recognised in the Council’s Balance Sheet, together with any associated liability to recognise
the Council’s obligations to fund the asset through future lease payments.
The asset and liability is measured with regard to the present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if this cannot be readily determined,
the Council’s incremental borrowing rate. The cost of the right-to-use asset will also include
any lease payments such as premiums made at or before the commencement date (less any

Page 91

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
lease incentives received), any initial direct costs incurred by the Council, and an estimate of
any restoration costs to be incurred by the Council.
The asset is subsequently revalued on the same basis as if it were owned by the Council,
with the practical expedient that cost may be used where it is a reliable proxy for current
value. The valuation only reflects the rights that the Council has acquired and not the full
value of the asset.
The liability is subsequently revalued if the lease term and/or payments change. The lease
term is the non-cancellable period of the lease plus periods covered by an option to (a)
extend the lease if the Council is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and (b) to
terminate the lease if the Council is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.
The cost of the fixed asset is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement over the life of the asset in accordance with the Council’s depreciation policy.
Rentals payable under the lease are apportioned between a finance charge and a reduction
in the liability. The apportionment basis used ensures that the finance charge is allocated
over the term of the lease.
There are two specific recognition exemptions (in addition to the general rules on
materiality), being for:
1) Short-term leases: leases with a term of 1 year or less; and/or
2) Leases where the underlying asset is of low value: this is assessed using the
Council’s de minimis level of £15k for capital recognition.
Where recognition exemptions do apply, the rentals payable are charged to the relevant
service revenue account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, generally
meaning that rentals are charged when they become payable.

Where the Council is a Lessor
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
Council to the lessee. Where the Council is an intermediate lessor (i.e. it has sub-let property
that it has itself leased) this is assessed by reference to the right-of-use asset acquired by
the Council under the head-lease rather than the underlying asset itself.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Finance Leases: The asset is removed from the Balance Sheet as the risks and rewards
are with the lessee, with the amounts due from finance leases recorded in the Balance
Sheet as a debtor. Rentals received are apportioned between reducing the debtor and
finance interest earnings. The apportionment basis used ensures that earnings are allocated
to the lease term to give a constant periodic rate of return to the Council.

Page 92

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
Operating Leases: Rentals receivable are credited to the relevant service revenue account
over the term of the lease, generally meaning that rentals are credited when they become
receivable.

Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in
accordance with the council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as either Property, Plant and
Equipment or Investment Properties.
Recognition: Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of non-current assets
has been capitalised on an accruals basis at cost with subsequent measurement as
explained below. Expenditure on non-current assets is capitalised, provided that the asset
yields benefit to the Council and the services it provides, for a period of more than one
financial year. Subsequent expenditure on non-current assets is capitalised in accordance
with IAS 16. This excludes expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of non-current
assets, which is charged directly to service revenue accounts. The Council has set a de
minimis level in respect of the recognition of capital expenditure of £15k.
Non-current assets are classified into groupings required by the Code, comprising
a)
Property, Plant and Equipment, which can be further analysed as
● Land and Operational Buildings
● Council Dwellings
● Infrastructure Assets
● Vehicles Plant and Equipment
● Community Assets
● Assets under Construction
● Surplus Property
b)
Heritage Assets
c)
Investment Properties
d)
Intangible Assets (see separate accounting policy)
Measurement: Non-current assets have been valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA
and in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes
issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). They have been classified in
accordance with the IFRS Code and have been valued on the following bases:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Land and Operational Buildings – the lower of net current replacement cost or net
realisable value (as certified by the Estates Surveyor)
Council Dwellings – existing use value for social housing, including regional
adjustment factors as amended from time to time
Heritage Assets – (see separate accounting policy)
Infrastructure Assets – historical cost net of depreciation

Page 93

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
e)

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment – the lower of net current replacement cost or net
realisable value
Community Assets – historical cost
Investment Properties – normally open market value
Surplus Property - fair value

f)
g)
h)

Net current replacement cost is assessed as:
●
●
●

Non-specialised operational properties – existing use value
Specialised operational properties – depreciated replacement cost
Investment properties and surplus assets – market value

Depreciated replacement cost is only used where there is no active market for the asset
being valued: that is where there is no useful or relevant evidence of recent sales
transactions due to the specialised nature of the asset.
Revaluation: Revaluations of non-current assets are undertaken on an annual basis for
Council Dwellings using the Beacon principle, investment properties with a value over
£100k, and General Fund Operational Land and Buildings with a value over £800k.
Revaluations of other non-current assets are undertaken on a 5-year rolling programme,
revaluing approximately one fifth of these Council’s assets annually. Identified material
changes to asset valuations will be adjusted in the interim period, as they occur. The Asset
Valuations in these accounts have been prepared using the services of external valuers. The
valuations were produced in accordance with guidelines issued by CIPFA, and in
accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors current guidance notes for Asset
Valuation. The date of valuation for the General Fund is 31 December 2022.
The basis for Council Dwellings valuations is Existing Use Value for Social Housing
(EUV-SH). Under this method the vacant possession value of the dwellings is reduced to
33% of the market value, to reflect the occupation by a secure tenant. A full valuation of the
Beacon properties is undertaken every five years but an annual adjustment is made to
reflect market changes during the year. The date of valuation for the Housing Revenue
Account is 31 March 2023.
Surpluses from any revaluation of assets are credited to the Revaluation Reserve and are
used to offset any subsequent revaluation loss with the exception of investment properties
that are charged directly to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
reversed out to the Capital Adjustment Account to ensure that no cost falls to the taxpayer.
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.
Investment Property: Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to
facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount
at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arms length.
Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at
the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. Rentals received in relation to

Page 94

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result in
a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for
any sale proceeds greater than £10k) the Capital Receipts Reserve.
Components: The Code requires local authorities to identify elements of major assets that
have either a capital cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset and/or has
a different useful life or depreciation method. The Council accounts for components for
assets with a gross book value in excess of £1m and where any individual component has a
value in excess of £100k. The component proposals for the HRA dwelling stock differ from
that above. The Council componentises its council dwelling stock on a dwelling basis and
proportions the overall valuation into four key components. Those components that are
depreciable are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the council dwelling, resulting in
an overall stock depreciation figure.
Impairment: Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication
that an impairment charge may be required. Where indications exist that may give rise to
impairment of an asset and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, the accounting entries are:
●

●

where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to
the amount of the accumulated gains)
where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had
not been recognised.
The HRA dwelling stock is revalued annually using beacon property values. Any change in
valuation is assessed to determine any annual impairment charges.
Disposals: Income from the disposal of non-current assets is accounted for on an accruals
basis. When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the
Balance Sheet, any receipt from disposal and any costs associated with the disposal are
accounted for in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement so comprising any
gains or losses on disposal. Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in excess of £10k are categorised
as capital receipts. A proportion of receipts relating to Right to Buy disposals are payable to
the Government, net of allowable deductions. Since the changes to the pooling of capital
receipts (1st April 2012) and the introduction of the Government’s 1-4-1 replacement
programme, which the Council adopted, a higher proportion of receipts are retained. These
housing receipts are retained for the 1-4-1 replacement of Council Dwellings and for

Page 95

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
investment in certain regeneration projects or affordable housing. The balance of receipts is
required to be credited to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used
for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow
(the Capital Financing Requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the reserve through the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of
non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account through the Movement in
Reserves Statement.
Depreciation: With the exception of Investment Properties and Land (which are not subject
to depreciation), assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful economic
life as follows:
Council Dwellings
Infrastructure
Heritage Assets
Other Buildings
Vehicles
Plant
Surplus Assets

Up to 60 years
Up to 40 years
Varies on asset type, see separate accounting policy
Specifically determined by Estates Officer
Up to 12 years
Up to 10 years
Up to 40 years, or as specifically determined by Estates
Officer

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is
written out for both current value and historical cost with subsequent depreciation calculated
on a straight line basis over the remaining useful life of the asset.
Newly acquired assets are depreciated in the year of acquisition unless the purchase is near
to the financial year end and the change in depreciation charge is considered material in
which case depreciation will apply to the following year. Assets in the course of construction
are depreciated when they are brought into use.
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately
(see Component section above).
The Council componentises its housing stock and then depreciates the depreciable
components over the useful economic life of each council dwelling.

Provisions
Provisions represent sums set aside for liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be
incurred where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal obligation that
probably requires settlement and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of that
obligation. Provisions are charged directly to the appropriate service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the obligation arises and when
the expenditure is actually incurred it is charged directly to the provision.

Page 96

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
New arrangements for the retention of business rates came into effect on 1 April 2013 along
with the requirement for an additional provision to be set aside for potential changes to
rateable values as a result of appeals. This provision is calculated using Valuation Office
(VO) data on successful and outstanding appeals. As there is potential for such appeals to
be backdated to previous as well as current VO rating lists, the amount set aside includes an
element for backdating. An estimate is also made for appeals that may yet be lodged under
the new Check, Challenge and Appeal process, based on a percentage of the likelihood of
appeal for those properties that are not currently in receipt of mandatory or discretionary
relief.
HRA Leasehold Service Charge accounts are raised after the accounts have closed as they
are based on actual cost in order to comply with Leasehold conditions. A provision is made
on the Leasehold Maintenance Holding Account for the estimated cost of services, day to
day repairs, recurring maintenance and major works incurred during the financial year.

Reserves
Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside of the definition of provisions are considered
as reserves. The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes
or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the
General Fund Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is
charged to the appropriate service line within the Cost of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and an equal amount is appropriated back to the
General Fund from the relevant reserve so that there is no impact on the council taxpayer.
Details of the Council’s reserves can be found within the notes to the Core Financial
Statements. Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for tangible
non-current assets and retirement benefits and they do not represent usable resources for
the Council.
The Statement of Accounts also clearly separates the usable and unusable reserves in the
Financing section of the Balance Sheet.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities are defined as possible obligations that arise from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the Council's control. Contingent liabilities can also arise where a
provision would have been made but it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required or the amount cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised on the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note to the accounts.

A Contingent Asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent Assets are not
recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable
that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Page 97

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Council policy is to write down this expenditure in the year that it occurs. The full cost is
charged to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
but then reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement to ensure that there is no
impact on the council taxpayer.

Current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an
Asset Held for Sale and has the following specific criteria attached to it:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Management is committed to sell
The asset is available for immediate sale
A buyer is being actively sought
The sale is highly probable (within 12 months)
The asset is for sale at a fair price
It is unlikely that the sale process will stop

If the asset meets these criteria it should be newly classified as a current asset and no
longer depreciated. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment of Non-Contractual Debts
Provisions are made for the impairment of non-contractual (non-exchange) statutory debts
such as Council Tax and Business Rates by evaluating the risk of impairment on a collective
basis, based on their past-due status, using recovery stages and age analysis. The
requirement is to set aside a provision where there is evidence of non-recoverable losses.
Debts relating to garage rents are subject to a flat rate percentage based on historical
trends. All other HRA related debts over £2.5k are analysed and a provision made
depending on individual circumstances, with the exception of leaseholder accounts as the
Housing Act states that tenants should not subsidise Leaseholders, therefore no bad debt
provision is made within the HRA. Housing benefit overpayment debt provision is subject to
a range of specific percentages which is dependent on whether the debt is to be collected
from on-going benefit.

Collection Fund
Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund for the collection and
distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax and Business Rates. Statute
determines the amount required to be transferred from the Collection Fund to the General
Fund (an authority’s precept for the year plus/minus its share of the surplus/deficit on the
Collection Fund for the previous year estimated on 15 January for Council Tax and 31

Page 98

Agenda Item 7
Annex 2
January for Business Rates). The Council Tax and Business Rate income included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the accrued income for the year. The
difference between this amount and the amount required by regulation is taken to the
Collection Fund Adjustment Account, and is included as a reconciling item in the Movement
in Reserves Statement to negate the effect on the taxpayer. Council Tax and Business Rates
are collected on an agency basis, so the Balance Sheet reflects the debtor/creditor position
between the Council, Central Government and major preceptors, since the cash paid to
preceptors in the year is not the share of actual cash collected from council tax and business
rate payers.

Business Rate Pool
Income or expenditure generated as a result of membership of the Kent Business Rate Pool
(from 1 April 2015) is accounted for in the proportions set out in the pool agreement. The
Council’s share of any income or expenditure is credited or debited respectively to Taxation
and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the relevant financial year. Levy or safety net payments due to or
from the lead authority at the end of the accounting year are reflected as creditors or debtors
in the Balance Sheet and any increase or decrease in the Growth Fund share (to be utilised
to promote growth within the district pool based area) is set aside in the Equalisation
Reserve within the council’s Balance Sheet for future use.

Value Added Tax
In accounting for VAT, the Council complies with FRS 102 (The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK). VAT payable is excluded from the main accounting statements unless
it is not recoverable under normal tax rules. VAT receivable is excluded as it is due to Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC).

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Contract Standing Order Waivers
Governance and Audit Committee 9 March 2022
Report Author

Chris Blundell, Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer

Portfolio Holder

Cllr David Saunders, Cabinet Member for Finance

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

All Wards

Executive Summary:
This is the first of what will be on-going regular update reports to the committee on the
council’s use of waivers to its Contract Standing Orders (CSOs).
The council’s purchasing decisions and processes are important because the money
involved is public money. The council’s CSOs provide a structure within which purchasing
decisions are made and implemented and contain the core obligations that all officers who
are in a position of spending the Council's money must follow.
The table below sets out the procurement route to be used depending on the value of
‘Goods, Supplies and Services’ contracts.
Value

Procurement Method

Below £10,000

At least one quote in advance

£10,000-£24,999

At least three written quotes in advance using the council's Invitation
to Quote documents or electronic method agreed with procurement
At least three written quotes in advance using the council's Invitation
to Quote documents or electronic method agreed with procurement

£25,000 - £99,999
Published on Contracts Finder
£100,000 £213,446

At least three written tenders in advance, using the council’s
Invitation to Tender documents
Published on Contracts Finder, and the Kent Business Portal

£213,477 and
above

Full competitive process, to be published on Contracts Finder and
the Kent Business Portal

Page 101

Agenda Item 8
The limits for ‘Works’ contracts are higher and full competitive tender processes are required
for contract values above £5,336,936. The council is also able to utilise framework
agreements as an alternative way to procuring, without advertising.
There is a general presumption in favour of competition and that contracts will be put out to
competitive quote/tender when they are of an estimated value of £10,000 and above,
however the requirement for the Council to conduct a competitive purchasing process more
can be waived under certain circumstances. For example:
●
●
●

Where the work, supply or service is required as a matter of urgency and a delay
would be likely to lead to financial loss, personal injury or damage to property,
Where the work is of a specialist nature and the supply market has been tested and
found to be limited
At the discretion of the relevant Director who may proceed in a manner most
expedient to the efficient management of the service/Council with reasons recorded
in writing.

For a full list of justified circumstances, please refer to Appendix 1.
The following table summarises the Council’s approved Waivers for 2021/2022:

No. Approved Waivers for 2021/22 as at 18 Sept 2022.
Department /
Directorate
Chief Executive

Below
£100k

£100k and
above

Total

No.
Rejected
Waivers for
2021/202 as
at 18 Sept
2022

Total no. of
Waivers
received
for
2021/2022
as at 18
Sept 2022

7

1

8

0

8

Deputy Chief Executive

13

4

17

1

18

Corporate Governance

0

1

1

0

1

Operational Services

16

3

19

2

21

Total Number of
Waivers

36

9

45

3

48

A detailed list of 2021/2022 Waivers can be seen in Appendix 4
The Council’s CSOs are due to be refreshed shortly, which if approved, will include an
increase to the value of works, supplies and services that are considered to be of quotation
threshold, currently £10,000 and above. The new value would be £25,000 and will enable
officers to seek one quote up to a value of £24,999.

Page 102

Agenda Item 8
Recommendation(s):
1. The committee notes the report

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money

As detailed within the body of the report
Legal
Local Government procurement is governed by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.
The Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015 require
additional contracting information to be published beyond the legislative requirements of the
Public Contracts Regulations 2015.
Corporate
The overriding procurement policy requirement is that all public procurement must be based
on value for money, defined as “the best mix of quality and effectiveness for the least outlay
over the period of use of the goods or services bought”
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.

There are no equity and equalities implications arising directly from this report, but
the Council needs to retain a strong focus and understanding on issues of diversity
amongst the local community and ensure service delivery matches these.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

Page 103

Agenda Item 8
1.
1.1.

2.

Introduction
This is the first of what will be on-going regular update reports to the committee on the
council’s use of waivers to its Contract Standing Orders (CSOs). The purpose of the report
is to provide the committee with oversight of the application of waivers to the council’s
contract standing orders have been raised, setting out the number of instances and the
rationales for the decisions taken by officers.

Background

2.1.

The council’s purchasing decisions and processes are important because the money
involved is public money.

2.2.

The council’s CSOs provide a structure within which purchasing decisions are made and
implemented and contain the core obligations that all officers who are in a position of
spending the Council's money must follow. CSOs provide guidance and protection to both
officers and members, form part of the Council's Constitution.

2.3.

CSOs apply to all contracts the council enters with the following exceptions:
●
●
●
●
●

3.

Employment contracts
Acquisition or rental of land, buildings or other property
Arbitration or conciliation
Retention of legal councils and appointment of expert witnesses in legal proceedings
Service Level Agreements setting out funding arrangement to voluntary bodies

General Principles Applying to All Contracts

3.1.

There is a general presumption in favour of competition and that contracts will be put out to
competitive quote/tender when they are of an estimated value of £10,000 and above. This is
to ensure that the Council uses its resources efficiently, purchases quality goods, services
and works, safeguards its reputation from any implication of dishonesty or corruption and is
able to demonstrate principles of sustainability, efficiency, whole life costing and cost
savings.

3.2.

All contract opportunities with a value over £25,000 and above must be published on the
government’s ‘Contracts Finder’ portal. Subsequent awards over this value must also be
published. Contracts in excess of £100,000 are also published on the Kent Business Portal.

3.3.

The tables below sets out the procurement route to be used depending on the value of the
contract.

Page 104

Agenda Item 8
Table 1: Goods, Supplies and Services contracts
Value

Procurement Method

Below £10,000

At least one quote in advance

£10,000-£24,999

At least three written quotes in advance using the council's Invitation
to Quote documents or electronic method agreed with procurement
At least three written quotes in advance using the council's Invitation
to Quote documents or electronic method agreed with procurement

£25,000 - £99,999
Published on Contracts Finder
£100,000 £213,446

At least three written tenders in advance, using the council’s
Invitation to Tender documents
Published on Contracts Finder, and the Kent Business Portal

£213,477 and
above

Full competitive process, to be published on Contracts Finder and
the Kent Business Portal

Table 2: Works Contracts
Value

Procurement Method

Below £10,000

At least one quote in advance

£10,000-£24,999

At least three written quotes in advance using the council's Invitation
to Quote documents or electronic method agreed with procurement
At least three written quotes in advance using the council's Invitation
to Quote documents or electronic method agreed with procurement

£25,000 - £99,999
Published on Contracts Finder
£100,000 £5,336,936

At least three written tenders in advance, using the council’s
Invitation to Tender documents
Published on Contracts Finder, and the Kent Business Portal

£5,336,937 and

above

3.4.

Full competitive process, to be published on Contracts Finder and
the Kent Business Portal

The council is also able to utilise framework agreements as an alternative way to procuring,
without advertising.

Page 105

Agenda Item 8

3.5.

As a minimum, all contracts of a value of £10,000 or more shall include clauses which set
out:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

4.

The works, supplies (goods), services, material, matters or things to be carried out or
supplied
Specify the price to be paid, the estimated price or the basis on which the price is to
be calculated
The time within which the contract is to be performed
Quality requirements and/or standards which must be met
Requirements on the contractor to hold and maintain appropriate insurance
Adequate contract management and audit provisions
What happens in the event that the contractor fails to comply with its contractual
obligations (in whole or in part)
A duty on the contractor to comply with all relevant legislative requirements and
discharge of obligations under said legislation.

Waivers

4.1.

The requirement for the Council to conduct a competitive purchasing process for contracts of
£10,000 or more can be waived under certain circumstances.

4.2.

This arises where officers request to waiver some of the CSOs in order to progress a
purchase that is deemed in the best interest of the public or service for reasons such as,
where a full competitive exercise is not able to be carried out, where a competitive process
was carried out but less than three Quote/Tenders were achieved, in order to progress the
award of a contract the Council’s T&C are not able to be used.

4.3.

CSO 12 sets out the provisions under which a waiver must be complied with, ensuring a
clear decision has been made, for what reason and by whom. For example:
●

●
●

4.4.

where contracts are below Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) threshold and
the work, supply or service is required as a matter of urgency and a delay would be
likely to lead to financial loss, personal injury or damage to property,
Where the work is of a specialist nature, the skill of the contractor is of primary
importance, and the supply market has been tested and found to be limited
At the discretion of the relevant Director who may proceed in a manner most
expedient to the efficient management of the service/Council with reasons recorded
in writing.

For a full list of justified circumstances, please refer to Appendix 1.

Page 106

Agenda Item 8
5.
5.1.

Waiver Application Process
The waiver application is completed by the lead contracting officer (typically the service
manager/budget holder) and sets out the following:
●
●
●
●

details of the department and lead officer, contract information, budget information,
CSOs being waived
business reasons for the application waiver (economical, technical, operational)
evidence to demonstrate probity and value for money (selection process, market
competition, benchmarking exercises)
Signature of four separate officers of the Council; Lead Officer, Corporate Director,
Procurement Manager and Section 151 Officer.

5.2.

A copy of the Waiver Application can be seen in Appendix 2.

5.3.

CSOs should only be waived in exceptional circumstances and only be waived in advance.
Retrospective waivers will not be approved by the section 151 officer and the spend will be
recorded as non-compliant with CSO in such instances.

5.4.

Furthermore, not CSOs cannot be waived in all instances. For example where the value
exceeds the Public Contract Regulations 2015 threshold, which is currently £5,336,937
(£4,447,447 before VAT if applied at 20%) for works contracts and £213,447 (£170,782
before VAT if applied at 20%) for goods and services contracts.

5.5.

Lack of planning in providing insufficient time available to carry out a full procurement
exercise or when going out to Quote/Tender would cause administrative, procedural burdens
or a short delay to progress, would also not be considered justified reasons for waiving
CSOs.

Page 107

Agenda Item 8
6.
6.1.

Waivers in 2021/22
Table 3 below summarises the Council’s approved Waivers for 2021/2022:
Table 3: Waivers 2021/22
Total no. of
No.
Waivers
Rejected
received
Waivers for for
2021/202 as 2021/2022
at 18 Sept as at 18
2022
Sept 2022

No. Approved Waivers for 2021/22 as at 18 Sept 2022.
Department /
Directorate
Chief Executive

Below
£100k

£100k and
above

Total

7

1

8

0

8

Deputy Chief Executive

13

4

17

1

18

Corporate Governance

0

1

1

0

1

Operational Services

16

3

19

2

21

Total Number of
Waivers

36

9

45

3

48

6.2.

A comparison table of the number of Waivers across 2019/2020 to 2021/2022 can be seen
in Appendix 3.

6.3.

There have been 48 Waiver applications received as of 18 September 2022 for the
2021/2022 period. 45 waivers were approved and 3 rejected. The vast majority of Waiver
applications are under the 100K threshold. Waiver applications have reduced in comparison
to the previous year. This is likely due to the reduction in Covid 19 pressures on Council
services. In contrast, there has been a rise in waiver applications received in relation to
additional funding received by the Council, that was either not known or could not have been
guaranteed at the time of the contract opportunities being advertised. Similarly, waiver
applications have been requested due to funding deadlines imposed, which has meant the
Council will lose funding if the contract has not been awarded, started or completed by the
funding deadline.

6.4.

Other reasons for Waivers in 2021/2022 include suppliers not willing to accept or incorporate
the Council’s T&C’s, carrying out a competitive process, however, not achieving the full three
Quotes/Tenders required within CSOs, a limited market, a limited market due continued
knock on effect of Covid 19 pressures on particular services, specialist skills required that
cannot be delivered within current frameworks, unexpected interim cover needed urgently.

Page 108

Agenda Item 8
6.5.

The 3 Waiver applications that were rejected were on the basis of one being retrospective
and two were rejected on the basis of being non-compliant with CSOs and the Financial
Procedure Rules (FPRs).

6.6.

A detailed list of 2021/2022 Waivers can be seen in Appendix 4.

7.

2022/2023 Objectives

7.1.

The Council’s CSOs are due to be refreshed shortly, which if approved, will include an
increase to the value of works, supplies and services that are considered to be of quotation
threshold, currently £10,000 and above. The new value would be £25,000 and will enable
officers to seek one quote up to a value of £24,999. A waiver will therefore no longer be
required to waiver a competitive process below this value at CSO 6.6. Other CSOs will still
apply however, and waivers may still be required below this value depending on the nature
of the CSO that applies, for example, when not using the Council’s T&C.

7.2.

Updated CSOs training in the form of induction training and digital e-learning which includes
a progress report. This will help ensure a greater understanding of CSOs; how and why
these should be followed, the use of waivers, and an improvement to contract management,
helping to mitigate the need for unnecessary waivers.
Contact Officer: Chris Blundell, Director of Finance
Reporting to: Madeline Homer (Chief Executive)

List of Appendices:
Appendix 1 - CSO 12 Waivers extract
Appendix 2 - CSO Waiver Application
Appendix 3 - Comparison table of Waivers across 2019/2020 to 2021/2022
Appendix 4 - Detailed list of 2021/2022 Waivers

Corporate Consultation
Finance: Not applicable
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 109

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Annex 1
Extract from Contract Standing Orders (CSOs) October 2018
12 Waivers
12.1 The requirement for the Council to conduct a competitive purchasing process for
contracts of £10,000 or more may be waived in the following circumstances:
12.1.1 For contracts which are not subject to the EU Rules, the work, supply or
service is required as a matter of urgency and a delay would be likely to
lead to financial loss, personal injury or damage to property; or
12.1.2 the circumstances set out in the Public Contract Regulations 2015
Regulation 32 apply (whether or not the contract is of a type which is
subject to the application of the EU Rules); or
12.1.3 where the supply is for parts for existing machinery, or where the terms of
supply of equipment require that maintenance be undertaken by a
specified provider; or
12.1.4 where the work is of a specialist nature, the skill of the contractor is of
primary importance, and the supply market has been tested and found to
be limited; or
12.1.5 where the supply is for maintenance to existing IT equipment or software,
including enhancements to current software, which can only be performed
by the licensed developer or owner of the system; or
12.1.6 at the discretion of the relevant Corporate Director who may proceed in a
manner most expedient to the efficient management of the
service/Council with reasons recorded in writing.
12.2 A Responsible Officer who seeks a waiver of Contract Standing Orders shall do
so only in advance and only in exceptional circumstances. Further guidance
on what may constitute exceptional circumstances permitting waiver of these
Contract Standing Orders is set out in the Council’s Purchasing Guide.
12.3 All waivers from these Contract Standing Orders must be:
12.3.1 Fully documented
12.3.2 Subject to a written report in an approved format, available on the
intranet, to be submitted in advance to the relevant Corporate Director
for endorsement which shall include reasons for the waiver which
demonstrate that the waiver is genuinely required
12.3.3 Subject to comment and/or endorsement as to existence of exceptional
circumstances by the Strategic Procurement Manager
12.3.4 Subject to approval in advance by the Deputy Chief Executive/Section
151 Officer or his/her authorised representative, who shall record that
they have considered the reasons for the waiver and that they are
satisfied that the circumstances justifying the waiver are genuinely
exceptional.
12.4 All decisions on waivers must take into account:
12.4.1 Probity
12.4.2 Best value/value for money principles.
1

Page 111

Agenda Item 8
Annex 1
12.5 For contracts subject to the EU Rules, any waiver from the requirement for
competition must meet without exception the conditions set out in the EU Rules,
in addition to the general requirements above.
12.6 Once a waiver is approved in respect of a specific contract value, the waiver
shall cover contract spend up to the next spend threshold negating the need for a
further waiver application on occasion when there may be a slight increase in
contract spend.

Page 112

Agenda Item 8
APPLICATION TO WAIVER CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS
(FOR CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF £9,999)

Annex 2

This form must state appropriate CSO numbers under which application is made with
sufficient explanation as to:
1) Actions/process to be waived
2) The CSO which provides authority to apply waiver
3) The business reasons and circumstances leading to the application (i.e.
economical/technical/operational)
Please note – Waivers can only be sought in advance. (CSO 12.2) Retrospective CSO
waivers will not be authorised. Waivers can only be agreed where informed by sound
business reasons.
Responsible Officer:

Tel Ext:

Department:

Section

Date:

Contract Title and brief
description
Supplier
Existing Supplier

Yes/No

Value of total contract including:
proposed extensions and options
Expenditure Code:
Allocated Budget:
CSO Clause/s number/s to be
waived on which application
based
(N.B. all non-waived clauses will
still apply)
Specific CSO clause number
providing authority to apply to
waiver (as defined under CSO12)

Please describe reason for waiver (This should give clear explanation as to the circumstances
that have lead you to require the CSO waiver i.e. a) what has gone wrong, including reason for
failure as applicable which must include remedial action being taken to avoid a reoccurrence b)
steps and reason required to utilise an opportunity)

CSO WAIVER FORM Updated August 2020
-1-

Page 113

Agenda Item 8
Annex 2

All decisions on waivers must take into account probity and value for money. Please
provide evidence to demonstrate this has been achieved.
List information (This should include information such as selection process/market
competition/benchmarking)

I understand and will ensure all necessary contract documentation appropriate to Council
requirements is in place and validated. These to include financial check, Insurances, CIS
details, Health and Safety, Equalities and Diversity, Child Protection and Safeguarding
Generally, TUPE as and where appropriate to the nature of the contract and as required by
Council procedures.
The information provided on this form is correct and detail provided is representative of the
full requirement and circumstances. I understand approval is based on information provided
and therefore limited to the scope contained. The proposed expenditure is within the
Budget/Capital Programme and Policy Framework and I have read the Council’s Contract
Standing Orders and have complied with all the requirements.
NB Officers who breach the Council’s Contract Standing Orders will be subject to
disciplinary proceedings.
Responsible Officer completing form

Date:

Name
Signature

CSO WAIVER FORM Updated August 2020
-2-

Page 114

Agenda Item 8

Having rigorously challenged this application I agree that this waiver demonstrates reasons as
allowed for in CSOs and is therefore approved by me as genuinely required.

Annex 2

Corporate Director

Date

Name
Signature

Strategic Procurement Manager/Senior Procurement
Officer

Date

Name
Signature
I have considered the reasons for the waiver and I am satisfied that the circumstances are
genuinely exceptional as allowed for in CSOs and is therefore approved by me as the
Section 151 officer.
Section 151 Officer

Date

Name
Signature

ALL SIGNATURES (X 4) MUST BE PRESENT FOR THIS APPLICATION TO BE VALID
Where a CSO waiver application has been fully approved this will “cover off” increases in contract
value as long as, any subsequent increase/s does not take the contract value over the “value
threshold” that the original waiver application was approved for i.e. value threshold
£10,000-£99,999.99 applied, therefore, if the value increased over this threshold, say to £101,000 a
new waiver application would need to be sought.

CSO WAIVER FORM Updated August 2020
-3-

Page 115

This page is intentionally left blank

DIRECTORATE

2021-2022

2020-2021*

2019-2020

2021-2022

2020-2021*

Below 100k

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
OPERATIONAL SERVICES
EK SERVICES
EAST KENT HOUSING

2019-2020

100k and above Below 100k

8
17
1
19
0
n/a

1
18
6
29
0
1

0
13
10
16
1
11

45

55

51

36

100k and above Below 100k

100k and above

7

1

1

0

0

0

13

4

16

2

9

4

0

1

4

2

6

4

16

3

27

2

10

6

0

0

0

0

1

0

n/a

n/a

1

0

8

3

9

49

6

34

17

*Now includes contracts previously under EKH
*Some additional Waivers due to Covid impact
*Not a complete year - up to 18 Sept 22 only

Agenda Item 8

Annex 3

Page 117

This page is intentionally left blank

Service

Contract Name

Reason for Waiver

Contractor

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Margate Town Deal Phase 2

Last minute extension on Funding for
project, and to ensure continuity the same
supplier has been selected.
A competitive ITQ process was followed with
one bidder withdrawing, leaving only two
viable quotes, therefore, unable to achieve
the required three Quotes as per CSOs.
Last minute extension on Funding for project
from 31.03.21. Extension needed until June
21 to ensure continuity, leaving insufficient to
time to go out to the market, without causing
delay to project. Funding could not have
been guaranteed at time original work was
commissioned.
Recommendations made by the external
auditor under s24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and accepted by
Council at its meeting on 2 November 2021.
A delay in the appointment process is likely
to lead to further financial and reputational
damage to the Council.

Pleydell Smithyman Limited

£28,200.00 01/04/2021

Lee Evans Partnership

£19,715.00 22/04/2021

Syndic Solutions

£22,000.00 24/06/2021

Condition Survey & Report Theatre Royal

RHSS (R/gte High Street Safely)

Appointment of Independent Monitoring
Officer

Value of total Contract

Date (S151 Officer)

Independent Consultant TBC - Full time positions
25/11/2021
will be sourced via the Local (Initially 6 months, could be
Government Association
shorter or longer if needed)
£1000 IMO and £500 for
Assistant. Based on £1500
FTE for 6 months, initial
cost to be in the region of
£180K to £225K.
Oyster Partnership
£90,000.00 20/01/2022

Occupational Health (includes Employee
Assistance
Programme EAP)

The Occupational Health (OH) was procured Maitland Medical
between 3 councils as part of East Kent
Housing (EKH) framework contract. There
should have been provision within the terms
to extend the contract for a further 12
months, however, this was not possible due
to EKH no longer existing. The imminent
expiry date resulted in their being insufficient
time to go out for a full procurement. 1 year
direct award agreed by TDC alone to ensure
time for a competitive process to be
undertaken properly.

£15,500.00 31/01/2022

Agenda Item 8

Director or Property vacancy arose at short
notice. Recruiting via the standard
recruitment process (HR) would leave the
post vacant for 3 months, resulting in an
urgent need to provide interim cover in the
meantime. Local government property is a
fairly niche market.

Annex 4

Page 119

Interim Cover for Director or Property
Services post

Service

Contract Name

Reason for Waiver

Contractor

Extension to Margate Town Deal - Creative Financial loss may be incurred if project not Work Wild Ltd
delivered on time and work is of a specialist
Land Trust Phase 2
nature. When commissioning previous
projects, it could not with any certainty have
been packaged to include this requirement
when the resulting projects going forward
were unknown at the time. Nature of the
work is highly dependent on previous
experience/knowledge of those prior
projects.
Ramsgate Future - Ramsgate LUF Project Financial loss may be incurred if project was Partnering Regeneration
Development Consultancy Service
not delivered on time and work is of a
Development Ltd
specialist nature. When commissioning
previous projects, it could not with any
certainty have been packaged to include this
requirement when the resulting projects
going forward were unknown at the time.
Nature of the work is highly dependent on
previous experience/knowledge of those
prior projects.

DEPUTY CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S DEPT

Fire Safety Patrols to Tower Block

FRA & call off Fire Works Consultancy

ITQ docs currently being prepared for
competitive process.

£35,000 for main commission
(12 months),
up to £5,000 for a website
contract and up to £4,000 for
legal advice - both
commissioned by Work Wild
LTd
on behalf of the CreativeLand
Trust board.

03/02/2022

£25,000.00 08/02/2022

Serveco

£80,000.00 19/04/2021

DDS

£75,000.00 19/04/2021

Specialist Building Products
Ltd

Agenda Item 8

Replacement UPVC windows and doors

Date (S151 Officer)

Annex 4

Page 120

REJECTED

This contract was carried forward from EK
Housing, where the contract had not been
re-procured. It was vital that the service
continued until it could be procured under a
competitive process (12 months).
This contract was carried forward from EK
Housing, where the contract had not been
re-procured. It was vital that the service
continued until it could be procured under a
competitive process (12 months). Against
legislation and regulations to cease the
service.
Not approved. No value of duration
indicated.

Value of total Contract

Service

Contract Name

Reason for Waiver

Contractor

Value of total Contract

Date (S151 Officer)

Civica W360

£60,000.00 06/05/2021

Vodaphone

£20,300.00 03/06/2021

Local Sash Windows Ltd

£39,250.00 05/07/2021

Hosted solution and continuation of annual Soft market testing completed, which
maintenance
confirmed the existing cloud service meets
TDC's Corporate and Digital strategies.
Having already implemented the solution in
their cloud hosted environment, there is
confidence the continued use of the system
will meet TDC needs. Entering into a new
contract with the existing provider is a much
simpler process than migrating to a third
party product which will save both time and
resources in the project and user training
and adoption costs.

Paygate Solutions Limited

£27,300.00 26/08/2021

True Compliance

£115,000.00 17/06/2021

Agenda Item 8

Annex 4

Page 121

Consultancy to extract the documents from Review, a declining usage of the Civica
Civica W360
W360 system, that it had been costly and
has negatively impacted on performance and
efficiency. As part of the termination of this
contract, an extract of the current and live
data is required. As the data is encrypted
and stored in the Civica W360 servers, only
Civica consultancy can decrypt and extract
this data. This is an additional cost from
Civica and not part of the contract. As the
data is encrypted, no other suppliers or
contractors would reasonably have access to
do this.
Mobile Phone Contract (Sim only)
Due to changing circumstance within the
organisation, which could affect choice of
products down the line, a one year extension
was agreed to enable time to identify
requirement needed in line with future
changes.
Data Compliance Software
Using the G Cloud 12 Framework does not
allow the use of TDC T&C and executing as
a deed.
Wooden Window Replacements
Due to failings within EKH to carry out the
replacement of windows and TDC now
owning responsibility, there is an urgent
need to resolve TDC is now in breach of the
settlement that was made. TDC's current
window replacement contractor does not
deal with wooden window replacements.
TDC could be under financial and
reputational risk of delaying works further by
running a competitive ITQ process.

Service

Contract Name

Reason for Waiver

Value of total Contract

Date (S151 Officer)

G2 Recruitment and Others
noted on Waiver if needed

£18,278.00 31/08/2021

Buckingham Futures and
Others noted on Waiver if
needed

£61,642.00 02/09/2021

Tetlow King

£30,000.00 17/076/2021

Lot 1 Zurich £523,360 08/12/2021
Lot 2 RMP £15,000
Lot 3 Zurich £220,497
Lot 4 Zurich £54,650
Lot 5 Travelers £634,350
Lot 6 Zurich £18,000
Lot 7 RMP £3,957
Lot 8 Zurich £98,646
Lot 9 RMP £452,280

This insurance is a limited and specialist
IGI
market and therefore unable to do a full
competitive process.
Compartmentation Works To Churchfields Loft
Due
Space
to the urgent health and safety concern, Knightsbridge Fire Group
there was not sufficient time to follow a full
procurement process.

£135,584.59 09/12/2021

Insurance for Thanet District Council for
Marine insurance

£75,478.62 09/12/2021

Agenda Item 8

Lot 1 Zurich £523,360
Lot 2 RMP £15,000
Lot 3 Zurich £220,497
Lot 4 Zurich £54,648.27
Lot 5 Travellers £634,350
Lot 6 Zurich £18,000
Lot 7 RMP £3,957
Lot 8 Zurich £98,646
Lot 9 RMP £452,280

Annex 4

Page 122

Specialist Agency Staff for Maternity Cover Urgent need for specialist assistance in the
form of a competent and experienced
agency officer to provide maternity cover for
a Housing Improvement Officer position.
Post is usually occupied by a qualified
Environmental Health Officer who
specialises in private sector housing
enforcement and there is currently a skill gap
in the sector. Other local Council's are in a
similar position, which means it is a
competitive market to recruit from, therefore
there are additional time pressures.
Specialist Agency Staff for MEES Grant
Recruitment of very specialised roles
Project
required to carry out grant funding.
Timescales are tight for both grant spend
and the recruitment of these roles, as it is a
very competitive market and an employment
contract is needed ASAP.
Planning Application Processing
Due to an increase in workload and
maternity leave requirements, an interim
replacement was needed and not able to be
sourced via usual recruitment channels,
therefore consultancy was looked at. Lack of
consultants being able meet the requirement
meant a competitive process could not be
achieved and a direct Award requested to an
available supplier who could meet
requirements.
Insurance for Thanet District Council
Due the nature of the contract, the Insurance
Cover would be via policies, not contract.
The policies were therefore not able to be
executed as a deed and TDC T&C could not
be included.

Contractor

Service

Contract Name

Tenancy Fraud Consultancy

Reason for Waiver

Ashford Borough Council
(ABC)

NRT

VLH Associates Ltd (Vic
Hestor Consultants)

Value of total Contract

Date (S151 Officer)

£16,000.00 09/09/2021

£99,999.00 - (£56000.00 for
servicing, £43,999 for
remedial works unknown)

10/01/2022

Value up to £20,000 15/12/2022

Agenda Item 8

Annex 4

Page 123

Following the newest Fire Risk Assessment,
H&S risks were identified that needed to be
resolve urgently. FRA has given TDC till 8
Jan 22 to complete the emergency works.
The market was tested against three
Specialist Fire Contractors. Direct Award
made to supplier who could meet
requirements and demonstrated value for
money.
Electrical Installation Condition Report
TDC is currently under notice from the
(EICR) and Associated C1 and C2 Failure - Regulator for Social Housing due to failures
Catch Up Programme
within some areas of statutory tenant and
leaseholder health and safety compliance,
due to the failings of EKH. TDC current
contractor has been assisting with additional
works, however, unable to meet full
requirement in time for March 22 deadline.
Appoint of an additional suitable Electrical
Contractor needed urgently resulting in
insufficient time to go out to full competitive
process. Market tested to demonstrate value
for money.
Planning Consultant
Due to complex nature of the requirement,
an experienced practitioner/consultant is
needed to make the Council’s case. Soft
marketing tests highlighted that the major
national firms of consultants either work with
the appellant for the appeal or are
representing site promoters in the district
(therefore conflicted out). Speed of securing
a consultant is also key, with deadlines
imminent with a public inquiry scheduled on
11th January and proofs of evidence due on
the 14th December. The consultant has
been previously used by the Council for the
same type of work and is not conflicted out
by representing applicants with current
submissions with the department.

Contractor

Service

All Taxes Subscription

Benchmarking test completed. Use of the
LAVAT Consulting Limited
existing contractor and the availability of a 3
year contract term instead of an annual
subscription (which was the case previously)
will lock in contract savings of £3,450 over
the contract term (prices are fixed at last
year’s subscription/hourly rates as a loyalty
discount if renewed by 12th February 2022).
In addition, it will provide the ability to roll
forward any unused prepaid consultancy
hours from prior years subscriptions, which
would otherwise be lost.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Appointment of Consultant to act as
Independent Monitoring Officer

Appointment of an Independent Monitoring
Officer (IMO) is a specialist role and urgent
following the outcome of an audit.

OPERATIONAL
SERVICES

Water Injection Dredging

Van Oord
Competitive ITQ process carried out,
however, only one bid received for Lot 2,
therefore three competitive quotes could not
be achieved.
Benchmarking testing carried out. There is a Ovenden
need to ensure TDC has welfare facilities
capacity as added resilience for Brexit
transition as identified within the contingency
fund programme. Due to the urgency of the
requirement this item is being purchased
through a supplier who can deliver within 12
weeks, which will reduce time on seeking
other costs via a competitive ITQ exercise,
which could impact on delivery time.

EU Transition Emergency ground works to
facilitate install of welfare building

Page 124

TDC Cycle Safety

Funding rules stipulate use of a preferred
supplier
KIC Decarbonisation Consultancy Services ITQ process carried out, however, only one
to produce works specification
quote received, therefore was not able to
achieve three required quotes as required
within CSOs

Contractor

Independent Consultant will be sourced via the Local
Government Association

Value of total Contract

Date (S151 Officer)

£26,850.00 08/02/2022

£180k-£225K 25/11/2021

£72,500.00 26/04/2021

£15,874.80 14/05/2021

KCC

£35,000.00 27/05/2021

Ingleton Wood

£83,681.00 16/06/2021

Agenda Item 8

Reason for Waiver

Annex 4

Contract Name

Service

Contract Name

Reason for Waiver

High Speed Road Cleaning

It is a legal obligation for the TDC (as a
sage Enviro
principal litter authority) to clear litter and
debris from high speed roads. A cost saving
has been identified if we no longer
subcontract via KCC and contract direct with
supplier appointed. Continuation of service is
required for H&S reasons.
There is a need for purchasing a second
Access Commercial (UK)
hand vehicle with low mileage to provide a
Ltd
vehicle fit for purpose within the budget
available. The company identified has a
vehicle which fits this criteria and would be
available for purchase. TDC has used the
company previously. Comparisons were
made online with similar type vehicles as a
benchmarking exercise and officers are
satisfied that the quoted price reflects the
market price for the vehicle illustrated, taking
into account age mileage and specification.
TDC T&C could also not be included.

£15,750.00 17/06/2021

Economic and specialist nature reasons.
Policy in Practice
Dashboard Project led by KCC will deliver
economies of scale and provide TDC with
monthly administrative datasets that are held
on its low income households and allows the
Council to analyse and interrogate them via
one accessible and easy to navigate cloud
based dashboard. .
Due to system used, only current supplier
Bartec Municipal
can meet requirements.
Technologies

£25,571.00 26/07/2021

Transit van - Samms officer

Low Income Family Tracker (LIFT)

Implementation of the web portal and
Green Waste Module

Contractor

Commercial Waste Bins for immediate
requirements ONLY

One 51 ES Plastics UK Ltd
For continuation of fulfilling residents
requirements until a formal arrangement for and UK Containers
bin purchasing has been in place by the end
of March 2022.

£20,995.00 28/06/2021

Proposed extension to existing 30/07/2021
contract: £50,250.00
Total of proposed new contract
£195,050.00
£18,000.00 03/08/2021

£80,000.00 18/10/2021

Agenda Item 8

The current supplier cancelled the order due Container Care Solutions
sourcing issues. To ensure the service
Ltd
requirement continued to be met, an
alternative supplier was selected until March
2022 or for when the tender process is
completed.

Date (S151 Officer)

Annex 4

Page 125

Commercial Waste Bins (1100L)

Value of total Contract

Service

Contract Name

Reason for Waiver

Contractor

360 Digger

Requirement is specialist and needed a trial
of vehicles. A benchmarking exercise was
also completed, however, specification was
narrow and this is the only supplier which
provides this model that meets TDC full
requirements.
A review was needed of current system and
it was decided alternative options needed to
be considered. Options reviewed with Digital
were not viable, therefore the System App
was the only one that would meet the
Council's requirements. This was supported
by other Council's also using this App with
good feedback.
It is a relatively niche market for the
Environmental Services Manager. Attempts
have been made to fill this post permanently
in recent months using standard recruitment
processes, however, to date they have been
unsuccessful. The procurement of a
recruitment agency who specialise in the
waste/environmental sector is far more likely
to achieve a successful outcome more
quickly
Contract is being delivered via the ESPO
Framework, therefore TDC's T&C are not
able to be included.
Due to system used, only current supplier
can meet requirements.
H&S risk identified, which needs to be
rectified urgently. Due to the criticality of risk
and historical failures of the mitre gate, it is
considered going out to a full ITQ process
will cause delay and pose further risk.
Requirement sourced via a Framework,
therefore, TDC's T&C are not able to be
included and it agreement. Due to tight
timescales, agreement may not be able to be
signed as a deed.

Lister Wilder

£21,850.00 18/10/2021

Apply 4

£10,500.00 08/11/2021

Waste Recruit Ltd

£15,000.00 27/09/2021

G4S

£50,000.00 26/10/2021

Bartec Municipal
Technologies
Upland Engineering, UK
Diveworks, Hydraulic and
Engineering

£21,781.00 29/11/2021

Event App

Recruitment of Environmental Services
Manager

Cash Collection & Cash in Transit

Incab devices and software
Emergency Repair of Flap Gate Rams

£29,000.00 15/12/2021

£112,825.00 22/12/2021

Agenda Item 8

IDOX

Date (S151 Officer)

Annex 4

Page 126

Upgrade IDOX Uniform to IDOC Cloud
based
Building Control System Tascomi

Value of total Contract

Service

Contract Name

Reason for Waiver

Community Parks Grant Funding
Proposed Play Area Improvements
(Ethelbert Crescent)

The condition of the Viking Ship play
Kompan
equipment at Ethelbert Crescent is
deteriorating and action is required to
manage H&S risk. The timescale for delivery
of a project using allocating funding is very
short. The new play equipment or proposed
improvements must be installed/complete by
the end of March 2022 (8 week contract).
Current supplier manages similar project and
has capacity to complete works in time for
deadline.
The original intention was to have a joint
E Saunders
contract with KCC which was then deemed
not appropriate. This caused delays in
carrying out a full procurement process
earlier. The waiver was needed to carry out
urgent works until March 22, to enable a full
procurement process to be carried out in
April 22. The chosen supplier could carry out
the work with immediate effect.
Waiver not agreed. Non Compliant Spend
Wilks, Head and Eves
with CSO's (no contract/no waiver) & FPR's
(no official order raised)

LED lighting Capital - urgent replacements

REJECTED

Annual Valuations

Contractor

Value of total Contract

Date (S151 Officer)

£211,200.00 12/01/2022

£75,504.30 01/02/2022

18th May 2021 discussed RL discussed with
CB (Dep 151) advised again need to tender
and that whilst due invoice would be have to
be paid for work undertaken 20/21 a tender
exercise must be undertaken to be compliant
with CSOs.

EAST KENT SERVICES
None to date

ESPO Framework being considered.
Rejected due to being retrospective.
Dr Alexander Marshall, Dr
Previous appointment was non-compliant
Shakuntala Khemani
with CSOs and new appointment started
before Waiver could be signed. Appointment
had to be made due to a statutory
requirement, therefore, continuation of
service was necessary and could not be
ceased/.

Agenda Item 8

Medical Referee

Annex 4

Page 127

REJECTED

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Meeting

Governance and Audit Committee

Date

9 March 2022

Report Author

Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ashbee, Leader and Portfolio Holder for Governance

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Ward:

All

Executive Summary:
This report recommends the adoption of a revised Local Code of Corporate Governance
which has been updated and sits alongside the Annual Governance Statement.

Recommendation(s):
That the Committee adopts the revised Local Code of Corporate Governance for 2021.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no direct financial implications from the adoption of this revised Code.
Legal
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to conduct a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control every year and prepare an Annual Governance
Statement. Part of that process involves reviewing and updating the Council’s Local Code of
Corporate Governance. This report and document reflect the CIPFA/SOLACE Good Governance
Framework for Local Government 2016

Corporate
This report relates to a statutory and audit requirement and supports the development of an
effective and efficient council.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,

Page 129

Agenda Item 9
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
This report relates to the following aim of the equality duty: ●
●
●

To eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act.
To advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it
To foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it.

Engaging local communities including those with protected characteristics meets a core
principle of the CIPFA/ SOLACE guidance.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

Governance is about our organisational frameworks, responsibilities, systems,
processes, culture and values.

1.2

The Council is required to publish its Annual Governance Statement (AGS) annually,
at or before the publication of its audited annual accounts. The AGS for 2020 - 21
was approved by the Audit and Governance Committee on 1 December 2021,signed
by the Leader and Chief Executive and has been published on the website, link here:
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/council-governance/

2.0

The Current Situation

2.1

The Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance is referred to in the AGS. It sets
out the governance principles which we are committed to and within which we
conduct our business and affairs. The Code forms part of our overall governance
framework which brings together legislative requirements, governance principles and
management processes. This ensures that the way the Council operates is based on
sound decision making with an effective process to support it.

2.2

The Code is based on the principles of good governance A - G described in the
document: “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government” (April 2016),
published by CIPFA and sets out how the Council evidences compliance with those
principles.

Page 130

Agenda Item 9

2.3

The Code should be reviewed and updated regularly. It was previously approved by
this committee in 2019. The Code sits alongside the Annual Governance Statement
(AGS) and is referred to in that document. With the adoption of the AGS for 2020 21, it is appropriate to provide an updated Local Code of Corporate Governance.

2.4

The Local Code has not fundamentally changed but it has been refreshed and
updated. References to out of date policies have been removed and references to
correct up to date policies have been inserted. Current governance practices and
issues are reflected, for example, reference is made to the statutory
recommendations issued by the external auditor.

2.5

Despite these changes, the Local Code of Corporate Governance still provides good
evidence of the many governance controls and systems which the Council has in
place and are working effectively.

3.0

Next Steps

3.1

The approved AGS for 2020-21 is already published. If approved, the updated Local
Code of Corporate Governance will also be published on the website and a link
provided within the AGS.

Contact Officer: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)
Reporting to: Madeline Homer (Chief Executive)
Annex List
Annex 1: Revised Local Code of Corporate Governance
Background Papers
None
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)
Legal: N/A

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

Thanet District Council Local Code of Corporate
Governance
Approved on
LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
INTRODUCTION
Good governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the right way, for the communities it serves, in a timely,
inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. This document is the reviewed and updated Local Code of Corporate Governance for 2021.
GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Agenda Item 9

The local code is based on the following 7 principles, the first 2 of which underpin the remaining 5 with the overall aim of “Achieving the
intended outcomes while acting in the public interest at all times”.

Annex 1

Page 133

Thanet District Council is committed to achieving good corporate governance and this Local Code describes how the Council intends to achieve
this in an open and explicit way. The local code is based upon the CIPFA SOLACE framework “Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government” (April 2016) which replaced the document published in 2007. As laid out in the guidance it “is intended to assist authorities
individually in reviewing and accounting for their own unique approach. The overall aim is to ensure that resources are directed in accordance
with agreed policy and according to priorities, that there is sound and inclusive decision making and that there is clear accountability for the use
of those resources in order to achieve desired outcomes for service users and communities”. Consequently the local Code has been written to
reflect the Council’s own structure, functions, and the governance arrangements in existence.

The principles are as follows:
Acting in the public interest requires a commitment to and effective arrangements for:
A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
In addition to the overarching requirements for acting in the public interest in principles A and B, achieving good governance also requires
a commitment to and effective arrangements for:
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes
E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it
F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability
Many of the requirements of the code are included in the Council’s Constitution and the Council’s key strategies and policies.
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/how-we-make-decisions/
MONITORING AND REVIEW

Agenda Item 9

● Annual review of the Constitution
● Annual report of the Standards Committee
● Overview and Scrutiny Panel Annual Report
● Head of Internal Audit Annual Report
● Governance and Audit Committee Annual Report
● External Audit Annual Letter

Annex 1

Page 134

The Code of Corporate Governance is subject to annual review. This review includes an assessment as to the effectiveness of the processes
contained within the Code. This includes annual assessments such as:

The outcome of these reviews are reported in the Annual Governance Statement.
The following table details how the Council meets the core principles and the systems, policies and procedures it has in place to support this.

Core Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and respecting the rule of law.
To demonstrate its commitment to achieving good governance, Thanet District Council
has:

Agenda Item 9

Behaving with integrity
● A well-established Code of Conduct for Members to ensure that high standards of conduct
are maintained.
● All new members are made aware of the Code as part of their induction process.
● A ‘Declaration of Acceptance of Office’ that is signed by members once elected which
makes reference to the Code.
● Established procedures for dealing with breaches of the Member Code of Conduct.
● All Town and Parish Councils have adopted the Member Code of Conduct.
● The Council’s Standards Committee is responsible for overseeing the conduct of members
and identifying learning and development for members in relation to the Code of Conduct.
● The Committee receives a report at each meeting on the progress of
complaints/investigations.
● An annual report is presented to the Standards Committee on councillors’ compliance with
the ethical standards framework.
● An Employee Code of Conduct sets out standards of behaviour and conduct that the Council
expects of its employees to ensure that public business is conducted with fairness and
integrity. This is signposted as part of staff induction. Officers use a standard decision making
report which is in an accessible template format and ensures that all those responsible for
taking decisions have the necessary information on which to do so and ensures that report
authors cover issues such as financial, legal, corporate and equality implications.
● The Council has a Code of Practice for Employees for declaring interests and registering
gifts and hospitality..
● The Council publishes a register of members’ Interests on its website.

Annex 1

Page 135

Rational: Local government
organisations are accountable not
only for how much they spend,
but also for how they use the
resources under their
stewardship. This
includes accountability for outputs,
both positive and negative, and for
the outcomes they have achieved.
In addition, they have an
overarching responsibility to serve
the public interest in adhering to
the
requirements of legislation and
government policies. It is
essential that, as a whole, they
can
demonstrate the appropriateness
of all their actions across all
activities and have mechanisms
in place to encourage and
enforce adherence to ethical
values and to respect the rule of
law.

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

There is a standing agenda item on all meetings to record members’ declaration of interests.
Minutes show declarations of interest are sought and appropriate declarations made.
The Council publishes a Customer Complaints and Compliments Policy on the website.
A Whistleblowing Policy is published to enable individuals to raise concerns about
malpractice or wrongdoing.
The Council has member and staff induction policies
Job Descriptions are provided to Officers to provide clarity on their roles and
responsibilities
The Council has a Protocol on Member/Officer Relations within its Constitution to manage
the different but complementary roles of members and officers.
The Council has a specific Protocol for Planning Committee members to ensure probity
and robust decision making.
The Council requires compulsory training for members of the Licensing, Planning
and General Purposes Committees to ensure lawful and robust decision making.

Agenda Item 9

Respecting the rule of law
● The Council has three statutory officers, whose roles are set out in the Constitution.
● Councillors' roles are described in the Constitution.
● An Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy is supported by the Whistleblowing Policy.
● A Safeguarding Policy is in place to protect children and vulnerable adults.

Annex 1

Page 136

Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values
● The Council has adopted a regularly reviewed Constitution which sets out how the Council
operates and how it makes decisions. It also states that the Council will exercise all its duties
in accordance with the law.
● All committees and decision making bodies have clear terms of reference set out in the
Constitution.
● Policies and procedures that are updated, to ensure adherence to ethical standards
including online HR resources, Contract Procedure Rules, Financial Procedure Rules etc .
● Many council staff are also subject to regulation by and the standards of their professional
body.

Core Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
Rational: Local government is run
for the public good, organisations
therefore should ensure openness
in their activities. Clear, trusted
channels of communication and
consultation should be used to
engage effectively with all groups
of stakeholders, such as individual
citizens and service users, as well
as institutional stakeholders.

Ensuring Openness:
●
●
●

●
●

●
●
●
●

Agenda Item 9

Engaging comprehensively with institutional stakeholders
● Established strong partnerships with the public sector, business and community and
voluntary sector across Thanet, including statutory arrangements for Community Safety,
Safeguarding and the East Kent Health & Care Partnership.
● Mechanisms in place to consult where necessary with public sector bodies such as
Police, Fire and Town and Parish Councils.
● Working through the Thanet Leadership Group (a forum for Senior Officers of member
public sector organisations) to work collectively as ‘Place Leaders’ to improve outcomes for

Annex 1

Page 137

●

A range of annual reports that summarise achievements for the year across a range
of functions.
The Council’s annual statement of accounts published annually and are subject to approval
by external audit.
A Publication Scheme that describes the kinds of information available and provides
guidance about how to access personal information and submit a Freedom of Information
request.
Systems in place to ensure that relevant decisions taken by officers are published in
accordance with legislative requirements.
A standard decision making report format is used to ensure the decision maker is
presented with all the information necessary to inform the decision including outcomes of
consultation.
Appropriate background papers are cited and links provided in the standard report format.
Agendas, reports and minutes are published on the Council’s website.
Meetings are open to the public unless there are good reasons for not doing so in accordance
with the exemption rules in Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972.
Dates for submitting, publishing and distributing timely reports are set and adhered to.
Corporate Statement 2019-2023 that sets out the vision and priorities for Thanet and
strategic direction for the Council.
The Council’s Constitution which is available on the Council’s website.

●
●
●

●
●

people and place.
Engaging stakeholders effectively including individual citizens and service users
Information is provided to the public about Council activities and its business
Public consultations are conducted using online tools, via the Council website. A
Public Engagement Framework, which sets out the plan for public engagement
development.
Established mechanisms to seek the views from individuals, organisations and
businesses on a number of areas.
A Petition scheme for the public to bring concerns to the Council’s attention.

Core Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefit
To demonstrate its commitment to achieving good governance, Thanet District Council has:

Set the budget around the outcomes.
● A Business Case Framework that is used for projects that meet the key decision definition. ●
An agreed set of principles for the purposes of budget setting.

Agenda Item 9

Defining Outcomes
● A Corporate Statement that sets out the Council’s ambitions and defines the outcomes for
people and place.
● A strategic planning framework.
● A Community Safety Partnership Plan 2020-23 which includes a Thanet wide approach
to community safety
● Economic Development and Growth Strategies including the Margate Town Deal
● The Council works with others through structures like the Thanet Leadership Group and
Multi-Agency Task Force to collectively improve the wellbeing of Thanet residents.

Annex 1

Page 138

Rationale: The long-term nature
and impact of many of local
government’s responsibilities
mean that it should define and
plan outcomes and that these
should be sustainable. Decisions
should further the organisation’s
purpose,
contribute to intended benefits
and outcomes, and remain
within the limits of authority and
resources. Input from all groups
of stakeholders, including
citizens, service users, and
institutional stakeholders, is vital
to the success of this process
and in balancing competing
demands when
determining priorities for the
finite resources available.

Core Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes
To demonstrate its commitment to achieving good governance, Thanet District Council has:
Determining interventions
● A financial planning process that determines level of resources to achieve Council
priorities and outcomes and meet statutory duties
● A clear and regularly reviewed Constitution which sets out the decision making process
and a scheme of delegations
Planning interventions
● A Strategic planning framework and adopted Local Plan (2020) which is subject to early
review
● Annual work programmes developed by Overview and Scrutiny committees
● A performance management framework which provides reporting at operational, strategic
and executive levels
● Financial management and reporting processes that enable regular and timely reporting
to budget holders, leadership team and Cabinet

Agenda Item 9

Optimising achievement of intended outcomes
● Service Plans that identify service developments and specifications.
● A medium term financial strategy agreed and reviewed annually based upon Council
Plan ambitions and priorities
● Securing continuous improvement through engagement with external and peer
review mechanisms
● Annual Performance and Finance reports
● Annual Capital Programme
● Treasury Investment Strategy
● Strategic Asset Management Plan 2017 - 21
● Organisation Plan
● Performance Framework
● Risk Management Policy
● HRA Business Plan

Annex 1

Page 139

Rationale: Local government
achieves its intended outcomes
by providing a mixture of legal,
regulatory, and practical
interventions (courses of
action). Determining the right
mix of these courses of action
is a critically important strategic
choice that local government
has to make to ensure intended
outcomes are achieved. They
need robust decision making
mechanisms to ensure that
their defined outcomes can be
achieved in a way that provides
the best trade-off between the
various types of resource inputs
while still enabling effective and
efficient operations. Decisions
made need to be reviewed
frequently to ensure that
achievement of outcomes is
optimised.

●

Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy

Core Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

To demonstrate its commitment to achieving good governance, Thanet District Council has:
Developing the entity’s capacity
● A suite of published employment policies
● Mechanisms established for staff engagement, for example Manager’s Forum, team
briefings, all staff briefings and the Chief Executive’s coffee mornings
● Engagement with the recognised unions through Employee Council and more informal
meetings
● Engagement with members through all member briefings, Cabinet/CMT meetings, Service
Director meetings etc
● Governance structures for strategic planning of workforce development including the People
Strategy 2017-20 (which is currently subject to review)
● The Council has an employee Appraisal System which is reviewed regularly

Agenda Item 9

Developing the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals
● Strong Leader and Cabinet political management model is well established
● Opposition groups within the Council have their own CMT briefing meetings
● The political management model provides opportunities for non-executive members to
focus on their key roles in overview and scrutiny, on regulatory committees, outside bodies
and as local community representatives.
● Protocols are in place for governing members’ and officers’ responsibilities.
● Member role descriptions are set out in the Constitution.
● A Scheme of Delegation to Officers and Appointment of Proper Officers that are
reviewed annually in light of legal and organisational changes.
● A Constitution that sets out financial management arrangements through the
Financial Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules
● Member induction and development programme to ensure specific and specialist roles
have up to date training to effectively carry out role.
● E-learning packages are available for members and officers.
● Specific training for officers is funded and made available through the annual

Annex 1

Page 140

Rationale: Local government
needs appropriate structures and
leadership, as well as people
with the right skills, appropriate
qualifications and mindset, to
operate efficiently and
effectively and achieve
intended outcomes within the
specified periods. A local
government organisation must
ensure that it has both the
capacity to fulfil its own
mandate and to make certain
that there are policies in place
to guarantee that its
management has the operational
capacity for the organisation as a
whole. Because both individuals
and the environment in which an
organisation operates will change
over time, there will be a
continuous need to develop its
capacity as well as the skills and
experience of individual staff
members. Leadership in local
government is strengthened by the
participation of people with many
different types of backgrounds,
reflecting the structure and

diversity of communities.
●
●

Corporate Training Programme.
Health & Safety policies designed to protect and enhance the welfare of staff are
actively promoted and monitored.
The Council has adopted an Apprenticeship Programme offering training, skills and
experience in careers in Local Government.

Core Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management
Rationale: Local government
needs to ensure that the
organisations and governance
structures that it
oversees have implemented,
and can sustain, an effective
performance management
system that facilitates effective
and efficient delivery of planned
services.

Managing risk
● The Governance and Audit Committee which provides strategic oversight of the processes
in place to manage risk and to identify and manage council and strategic risk.
● The Council has in place a Risk Management Strategy and Process which include robust
systems of identification, evaluation and control of risks which threaten the Council’s ability to
meet its objectives to deliver services.
● Responsibilities for managing individual risks are devolved through CMT to Service
Managers.
● The Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for considering the effectiveness of the
authority’s risk management arrangements.
● The Council has a very active internal Audit team, through the East Kent Audit Partnership

Agenda Item 9

Managing performance
● A well-established performance management framework, with various levels and
frequencies for reporting.
● Performance monitoring reports that are produced periodically throughout the year.
● The format of decision making reports ensure that all relevant information is considered
such as analysis of options, resource implications etc.
● Reports and minutes and decisions under member consideration are published on the
website and are available in hard copy in a variety of formats on request.
● Work Programmes are developed involving all members applying the overview and
scrutiny disciplines of policy review and development, call-in, added items and monthly
review meetings with Cabinet members and directors.

Annex 1

Page 141

Risk management and internal
control are important and integral
parts of a performance
management system and are
crucial to the achievement of
outcomes. Risk should be
considered and addressed as part
of all decision making activities. A
strong system of financial
management is essential for the
implementation of policies and the
achievement of intended
outcomes, as it will enforce
financial discipline, strategic

To demonstrate its commitment to achieving good governance, Thanet District Council has:

allocation of resources, efficient
service delivery and
accountability.
It is also essential that a culture
and structure for scrutiny are in
place as a key part of accountable
decision making, policy making
and review. A positive working
culture that accepts, promotes and
encourages constructive challenge
is critical to successful scrutiny
and successful service delivery.
Importantly, this culture does not
happen automatically, it requires
repeated public commitment from
those in authority.

●

Overview and Scrutiny training for members is provided initially at induction, also on an
annual basis or on request regarding specific subjects.

Agenda Item 9

Managing data
● Effective information sharing is undertaken in accordance with the Data Protection Act and
the Council’s Data Protection Policy and procedures.
● The Council has a registered Data Protection Officer with the Information Commissioners’
Office and communicates with the ICO for advice and information on data security as

Annex 1

Page 142

Robust internal control
● An annual report is produced by Internal Audit which provides an opinion on the
Council’s control environment, and a self-assessment of its arrangements against the
public sector internal audit standards and CIPFA’s guidance.
● Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy which is subject to regular review and is approved by
the Audit Committee.
● An annual fraud report summarises anti-fraud activity in the year.
● Annual Governance Statement (AGS) that provides a high level summary of how the
Council is meeting the principles of good governance.
● The AGS is reviewed annually by the Governance and Audit Committee and the external
auditors and is published prior to or at the same time as the Council’s audited annual
financial statements.
● An effective internal audit service is resourced and maintained through EKAP
● Internal Audit prepares and delivers a risk based audit plan which is kept under review
to reflect changing priorities and emerging risks.
● The Council is subject to external Audit and inspection regimes which require action
plans which are assigned to officers.
● The Governance and Audit Committee, which is independent of the Executive, oversees the
management of governance issues, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting.
● Training is provided to new Governance and Audit Committee members on their role and
responsibilities.
● The Constitution, through its Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules provides opportunities
for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to challenge and debate policy and objectives
before, during and after decisions are made.

●
●
●
●

●

●
●
●

necessary.
The Council is a signatory to the Kent and Medway Information Sharing Agreement.
The Council’s ICT and Information Security Standards provide guidance on the
arrangements that must be in place to ensure personal data is kept protected and secure.
Information governance and security awareness with officers and members through
mandatory information governance training, Council wide messages
Data subjects are informed why their personal information is being collected and how it will
be processed (including when shared with other bodies) through the Council’s overall Privacy
Notices published on the website and individual Privacy Statements
Information Sharing Agreements are reviewed on a regular basis, are in place to document
the sharing of information using national agreements, or inter-council protocols and
agreements
Data verification and validation processes are integrated within systems and processes.
A system for Data Protection Impact Assessments has been put in place to ensure that data
protection is considered in relevant reports.
The Council completes external self-assessments when required

Agenda Item 9

Annex 1

Page 143

Strong public financial management
● The Medium Term Financial Plan makes a realistic assessment of the resource that growth
allows and allocates that resource to create a sustainable council capable of delivering
council priorities and outcomes.
● The Council has effective financial management secured through budget planning and
control using a system of devolved budget management.
● Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Regulations within the Constitution set out the
Council’s arrangements and ensure that processes continue to operate consistently.
● Financial accountability applied through a hierarchy of reporting arrangements up to the
level of full Council.
● Financial procedures documented and available for reference on the Council’s TOM intranet

Core Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability
Rationale: Accountability is
about ensuring that those
making
decisions and delivering services
are answerable for them. Effective
accountability is concerned not
only with reporting on actions
completed, but also ensuring that
stakeholders are able to
understand and respond as the
organisation plans and carries out
its activities in a transparent
manner. Both external and internal
audit contribute to effective
accountability.

To demonstrate its commitment to achieving good governance, Thanet District Council has:

●
●

●
●
●

●

●

Assurance and effective accountability
The Council responds to the findings and recommendations of Internal Audit, external
Audit, Scrutiny and Inspection bodies.
For example, the Council is currently responding to statutory recommendations made by the
external auditors on 12 October 2021 under s24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. The Council is taking immediate steps to address those recommendations.
The relevant committees involved in scrutiny, assurance and accountability provide annual
reports which are published and linked to within the Annual Governance Statement (AGS).
The following annual reports are provided: Governance and Audit Committee, Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, Standards Committee.
The AGS sets out the Council’s governance framework and the results of the annual review

Agenda Item 9

●

Implementing good practices in reporting
Production of Annual Reports on various areas summarising achievements in the year
published on the Council’s website.
All reports, agendas and minutes are published on the Council’s website
Annual Financial Statements are produced to meet legal requirements on timeliness and
accuracy; are subject to independent external audit; and published on the Council’s
website.

Annex 1

Page 144

●

Implementing good practice in transparency
Agendas, reports and minutes are published on the Council’s website.
The Council publishes information on its website in accordance with the Local Government
Transparency Code

●
●
●
●

●

●

of the effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements.
The AGS includes areas for improvement and an action plan which is reviewed and reported
to quarterly meetings of the Governance and Audit Committee.
An effective, robust and active internal Audit service is resourced and maintained through
membership of EKAP.
EKAP produces an audit plan each year setting out those areas of the Council it intends to
audit. These audits are robust and rigorous
EKAP has direct access to members and provides assurance on governance
arrangements via an annual report containing an opinion on the Council’s internal
control arrangements.
An annual report is produced by Internal Audit which includes a self-assessment of its
arrangements against the public sector internal audit standards and CIPFA’s guide to the
role of the Head of Internal Audit.
External Audit provides an annual opinion on the Council’s financial statement
and arrangements for securing Value for Money.

Agenda Item 9

Annex 1

Page 145

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN
2021/22 UPDATE
Meeting

Governance and Audit Committee

Date

9 March 2022

Report Author

Director of Law and Democracy

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ash Ashbee, Leader

Status

For Information

Classification:

Unrestricted

Previously Considered by Governance and Audit Committee 1 December 2021
Ward:

All

Executive Summary:
A report to update the committee on progress in the 2021/22 Annual Governance Statement
Action Plan

Recommendation(s):
The committee is asked to note the update.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no financial implications to the report.
Legal
Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit regulations 2015 requires the council to
conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control
and include a statement reporting on the review with any published statement of accounts.
Regulation 6(1)(b) of the Regulations requires that the statement is the Annual Governance
Statement. The regular review of the action plan under the AGS supports its system of
internal control.
Corporate
The Annual Governance Statement and its Action Plan is a corporate document and as such
should be owned by all senior officers and members of the authority.

Page 147

Agenda Item 10
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
The Annual Governance Statement and its Action Plan supports the public sector equality
duty directly.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: (delete as appropriate)
● Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2020/21 was approved by this
committee at its meeting on 1 December 2021, signed by the Leader and Chief
Executive in January 2022 and has been published.

1.2

The Action Plan contained in the AGS is set out below.

No

Issues

Summary of Action Proposed

1

Statutory
Recommendations issued
by external auditor

An independent consultant will be appointed to act as
Independent Monitoring Officer and the actions set out in the
auditor’s report will be actioned and reported to GPC and
Council as required

2.

Financial Regulations are
out of date and need to be
refreshed

A consultant was commissioned to undertake an
independent review of the council’s financial regulations and
wider approach to Financial Management in May and June
2021. The council will consider how to implement the
recommendations of this review later this year, which will
help stabilise finances and to build for the future.

3.

Constitution is becoming
out of date and in need of
a comprehensive review

The following items were recommended by CRWP on
10 November and will be considered by the
Standards Committee and Council in late

Page 148

Agenda Item 10
November/early December 2021:
●

●

●

Amending for clarity the wording of the delegations
for the Planning Committee in light of a recent
Judicial Review case.
Amending the training timetable for members of
Planning Committee and Licensing Committee to
yearly training.
Amending the guidance within the Code of Conduct
for Councillors in line with the LGA Guidance on
Social Media
In addition, the following items will be completed
during this year:

●
●

The Scheme of Officer delegations
Financial Procedure Rules - in process

4.

Is the Council’s
Constitution robust in
times of emergency?

To review the lessons learnt locally and nationally from the
coronavirus epidemic and to determine what changes (if any)
should be made to our governance arrangements to cover
future emergency situations.

5.

Review of Culture and
Governance by Grant
Thornton

This process is complete and has resulted in the issuing of
the statutory recommendations as set out above and
described elsewhere in the report.

2.0

Update

2.1

It is appropriate to update the committee about the progress against the action plan
which is part of the committee’s role in monitoring the effectiveness of the AGS and
governance within the Council. The update is as follows:

Action No.

Update

1

Mr Quentin Baker, Monitoring Officer for
Hertfordshire County Council, was
appointed as the IMO in early
December 2021. Mr Baker recently
reported to the General Purposes
Committee about progress. He has
been given full access to all documents
he wishes to see and has had several
meetings. He hopes to be able to
finalise his report asap but as yet we do
not have a definite date.

2

A review of the Council’s Financial
Management was presented to Cabinet

Page 149

Agenda Item 10
in August 2021. Cabinet recognised
that some of these changes will take
time, but Members were looking forward
to working through the action plan with
officers.
This will be completed in 2022/23
3

All the items above for review in the
Constitution have been approved by
CRWP, Standards and Council and the
Constitution has been updated. There
may be further revisions required
following Mr Baker’s final report.
Recently, CRWP has considered
possible revisions to the procedure for
members’ questions at Council and the
procedure for asking questions on the
Leader’s statement

4

The IMO will comment on the
robustness of the Constitution and any
major revisions required.

5

Grant Thornton will receive the IMO’s
report and may make further comments
or take further action.

3.0

Options

3.1

The committee is recommended to receive and note the updates.

4.0

Next Steps

4.1

The next review will take place after the final report of the IMO and may therefore
contain additional recommendations arising out of his report.

Contact Officer: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)
Reporting to: Madeline Homer (Chief Executive)
Annex List
None
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)
Legal: N/A

Page 150

Agenda Item 11
REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE GOVERNANCE
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ANNUAL REPORT FOR
2021/22
Committee

Governance and Audit

Date

9 March 2022

Report Author

Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ash Ashbee, Leader

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Ward:

All

Executive Summary:
The annual report summarises the achievements of the Governance and Audit Committee
against its terms of reference for the 2021-22 financial year and details the impact that it has
made on the overall system of internal control in operation for that period.

Recommendation(s):
Members are invited to discuss and note the report and agree that it should be referred to
Council on 31 March.

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Financial and
The committee plays a key role in overseeing the authority’s financial
Value for
administration, including the approval of the Council’s annual statement of
Money
accounts and considering the adequacy of its control environment and
approach to risk management.

Legal

Corporate

The Council is meeting best practice by having in place a Governance and
Audit Committee, as this is not a mandatory or statutory function. In
adopting the CIPFA guidance for the terms of reference for the Committee
the Council is meeting the standards set out for the public sector.
Under its Local Code of Corporate Governance the Council is committed
to comply with requirements for the independent review of the financial
and operational reporting processes, through the external audit and
inspection processes, and satisfactory arrangements for internal audit. The
functions of the Governance and Audit Committee contribute to the overall
internal control environment for the Council and feed into the Annual
Governance Statement process..

Page 151

Agenda Item 11
Equalities Act
2010 & Public
Sector Equality
Duty

Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector
Equality Duty (section 149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to
the aims of the Duty at the time the decision is taken. The aims of the Duty
are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do
not share it, and (iii) foster good relations between people who share a
protected characteristic and people who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, gender, disability, race, sexual orientation,
gender reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only
aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage & civil partnership.
Please indicate which aim is relevant to the report.
Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act,
Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and people who do not share it
Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it.
There no equality and equalities issues arising directly from this report but
the Council needs to retain a strong focus and understanding on issues of
diversity amongst the local community and ensure service delivery
matches these.

1.0

Introduction

1.1

The purpose of the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee is to provide
independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the
associated control environment, independent review of the authority’s financial and
non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk
and weakens the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process.

1.2

To comply with best practice the Committee considers annually how it has met its
terms of reference and how it has impacted on the internal control environment. The
purpose of this report is to consider the self-assessment that has been undertaken
and summarise any improvement opportunities for the forthcoming year.

2.0

Background

2.1

The annual report attached at Annex 1 summarises the work of the Committee for the
year and concludes that it has received clear, concise and relevant information,
training on topics specific to the business of the Committee, and has done all that it
can to meet the aims and objectives for the Committee in the best way that it can.

2.2

The Committee is asked to comment on the report and refer it to Council as its annual
report.

Contact Officer:

Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy) , Deputy Monitoring
Officer

Page 152

Agenda Item 11
Reporting to:

Madeline Homer, Chief Executive

Annex List
Annex 1

Governance and Audit Committee Annual Report 2021/22

Corporate Consultation
Finance
Legal

Chris Blundell, Director of Finance and Acting S151 Officer
N/A

Page 153

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1

Governance and Audit
Committee
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

Page 155

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
Foreword by Councillor Kerry Boyd, Chair of the Governance & Audit
Committee
This report provides an overview of the Governance and Audit Committee's activity during the
municipal year 2021/22.
I am pleased to report that the Committee continues to discharge its responsibilities to provide
independent assurance on the adequacy of the council's risk management framework and the
associated control environment, and provides robust scrutiny and challenge of the Authority's
financial performance.
As outlined in the body of this report, the Committee has been actively engaged with both internal
and external audit, and I would like to thank all the Members who served on the Committee
during 2021. My thanks also go to the Council officers who have supported me in my role as
Chair, and in the work of the Committee.
To assist the committee in improving their understanding of the council’s financial accounts, and
discharge its responsibility for approving them, a novel subgroup was established with the remit
of undertaking a detailed review of the 2021-22 accounts. I would like to thank the members,
who fully engaged with and participated in the work of the subgroup, and the officers for their
support.
This has been a difficult year, with the continuation of the pandemic and restrictions on meeting
in person. However, the committee and all committees, have overcome the challenges by
embracing virtual meetings when necessary and meeting in person in different venues.
The Council has also faced the challenge this year of receiving the Statutory Recommendations
made by Grant Thornton under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Work
to address those recommendations is ongoing, but I am pleased that the council has accepted
the recommendations and members and officers are cooperating fully with the work of the
Independent Monitoring Officer, Mr Quentin Baker.

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

The Council established a Governance and Audit Committee in March 2006. Whilst there
is no statutory obligation to have an Audit Committee, they are widely recognised as a
core component of effective governance. In recent years there has been a significant
amount of regulation and guidance issues in governance arrangements for private and
public sector bodies, the common feature of governance arrangements being the
existence of an Audit Committee.

1.2

The purpose of the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee is to provide independent
assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the associated
control environment, independent review of the authority’s financial and non financial
performance to the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the
control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process.

1.3

There are many benefits to be gained from an effective Audit Committee. In fulfilling its
role the Committee will:
● reduce the risks of illegal or improper acts;
● reinforce the importance and independence of internal and external Audit;
● increase confidence in the objectivity and fairness of financial reporting.

Page 156

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
1.4

Stricter internal control and the establishment of a Governance and Audit Committee can
never eliminate the risks of serious fraud, misconduct or misrepresentation of the
financial position. However, it will:
● give additional assurance through a process of independent and objective review; and
● raise awareness of the need for internal control and the implementation of audit
recommendations.

1.5
This year, more than ever, the need for a strong and effective Governance and Audit
Committee has been demonstrated. The Committee has been actively engaged in responding to
and receiving the findings of Grant Thornton, the external auditor, in its review of culture and
governance, which led to the issuing of the Statutory Recommendations.

Page 157

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
2.0

Membership

2.1

The Governance and Audit Committee comprises between 12 and 14 Members. Committee
agenda papers and minutes are available on the Council’s website (www.thanet.gov.uk).
Attendance details for 2021/22 are as follows:
28
Jul
2021

Members
C
o
m
m
it
t
e
e
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s

29 Sept 01
2021 Dec
cancelled 2021

Cllr Boyd (C)
Cllr Dexter (VC)
Cllr Braidwood
Cllr Duckworth
Cllr Garner
Cllr Hopkinson
Cllr Kup
Cllr Pat Moore
Cllr Pugh
Cllr Shrubb
Cllr Towning
Cllr Whitehead

✓
✓
Ab
✓
A
✓
✓
✓
✓
A
✓
✓

✓
✓
✓
A
✓
Ab
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓

Cllr Everitt
Cllr Yates

NA
NA

NA
NA

Non-Committee Members
Cllr Ashbee
Cllr M. Saunders
Cllr D.Saunders

IA
IA
IA

Key
C/VC

Chair/Vice Chair

NA

Not Applicable

S

Present as Substitute

A

Apologies

IA

In Attendance

Ab

Absent

Page 158

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
3.0

Programme of reports 2021/22

3.1

Detailed below is the programme of reports considered by Governance and Audit Committee
during 2021/22, and how they relate to the Committee’s terms of reference.

Function/Issue

Audit activity
External Audit Annual Letter
Internal Audit Annual Report
External Audit Findings Report
External Audit Plan
Internal Audit Charter and Draft 2022-23 Internal
Audit Plan
Internal Audit Standards Self Assessment
Internal Audit Quarterly Update Report
External Audit Update Report
Audit Committee Assurance Statement
Update on Grant Thornton’s Review of
Governance
Regulatory framework
Annual Governance Statement
Annual Governance Statement Action Plan
2021/22 Progress Report
Update to the Local Code of Corporate
Governance
Annual Treasury Management Review 2020/21
Corporate Risk Management Quarterly Update
2022/23 Accounting Policies
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and
Annual Investment Strategy - Mid Year Review
Treasury Management Strategy Statement,
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement
and Annual Investment Strategy for 2020/21
Final Statement of Accounts 2021/22

Responsible
officer/
body

28
29 Sept
01
09
Jul 2021 Dec Mar
2021 cancelled 2021 2022

GT
EKAP
GT
GT

✓
✓

EKAP
EKAP
EKAP
GT
DF

✓

✓
✓
✓

✓
✓

✓
✓

GT

✓

DLD

✓

✓

DLD

✓

DLD

✓

DF
DF
DF

✓
✓

✓

DF

✓

DF

✓

DF

✓
✓

✓

Key
DLD
EKAP
GT
HF

Director of Law and Democracy and acting Monitoring Officer
East Kent Audit Partnership
Grant Thornton
Director of Finance

4.0

Review of the Governance and Audit Committee’s effectiveness

4.1

The Governance and Audit Committee should ensure it has effective communication with
the authority, to include the Executive, the Head of Internal Audit, the External Auditor
and other stakeholders. Consequently it is considered to be best practice for the
Committee to be self aware and to submit an annual report to Council.

4.2

The annual report summarises the work of the Committee for the year and concludes that
it has received clear, concise and relevant information, training events on topics specific

Page 159

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
to the business of the Committee, and has done all that it can to meet the aims and
objectives for the Committee in the best way that it can.

5.0

Annual Report

5.1

The Governance and Audit Committee is assured on the integrity and reliability of data
held in the financial statements. It receives clear, concise reports and actions are dealt
with in an appropriate timescale. The members of the Committee receive specific
training in order to assist them with their role in receiving comprehensive assurance from
the chief finance officer.

5.2

The work of internal audit provides independent and objective assurance on the
adequacy and effectiveness of those systems on which the Authority relies for its internal
control.

5.3

The work of external audit provides an opinion as to whether the council’s statements of
accounts represent a ‘true and fair’ view of the authority’s financial position and
transactions, as well as providing an opinion on the council’s arrangements in place to
secure value for money.

5.4

The assurances from the chief finance officer and the work of the external audit together
support the Committee discharging their responsibilities and enabling them to approve
the council’s statement of accounts in accordance with regulations.

5.5

The Committee reviews the Council’s Governance Framework as appropriate and Local
Code of Corporate Governance annually.

5.6

The Committee reviews the Risk Management Strategy on a regular basis and considers
the effectiveness of the risk management process both through the work of internal audit
and through receiving quarterly risk management reports.

5.7

The Committee considers the effectiveness of the internal audit arrangements by
reviewing the quality of reports, actions and follow-ups through the quarterly reports
submitted during the year to the Committee.

5.8

The Committee is able to request service managers and, where necessary, the relevant
portfolio holder to attend the Committee to give an update on progress against agreed
actions to reduce risk and/or improve governance.

5.9

The Chair and Officers have considered the effectiveness of the Committee. The
self-assessment evidence demonstrating achievement of the Committee’s terms of
reference is attached at Appendix 1.

5.10

Due to a delay by Grant Thornton in auditing the accounts for 2020/21, there was also a
delay in publishing the Annual Governance Statement. It was approved by this committee
on 28 July 2021 and then an update was approved on 1 December 2021. The final
document was published in January. Link to Annual Governance Statement:
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/council-governance/

5.11

The Governance and Audit committee’s action plan for 2022/23 is attached at Appendix 2

6.0

Future Challenges

Page 160

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
6.1

The Governance and Audit Committee looks forward to the conclusion of the work by the
Independent Monitoring Officer, following the acceptance by the Council on 2 November
2021 of the Statutory Recommendations.

6.2

The Governance and Audit Committee will continue with its existing duties whilst
continually striving to achieve best practice where this is feasible and affordable. In the
forthcoming year, the Committee will need to:
● oversee corporate risk management within the context of change arising from the
continued reduction in resources
● maintain effective internal control in a period of government funding reductions and
service change.
● make the Code more of a forward facing document by identifying and planning future
changes in governance arrangements
● moving documents to the Council’s website and provide links to those documents in
reports

7.0

Appendices

Appendix 1

Governance and Audit Committee Annual Assessment for the period 2021/22

Appendix 2

Governance and Audit Committee Action Plan for the period 2022/23

Page 161

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
Governance and Audit Committee Self-assessment of good practice - Appendix 1
Good practice questions
Yes Partly
No
Comments/Action
Audit Committee purposes and governance
Does the council have a
✓
dedicated Audit Committee?
Does the Audit Committee
report directly to full council?

✓

Do the terms of reference
clearly set out the purpose of
the committee in accordance
with CIPFA’s Position
Statement?

✓

Is the role and purpose of the
audit committee understood
and accepted across the
authority?
Does the audit committee
provide support to the authority
in meeting the requirements of
good governance? Is an annual
calendar of meetings/reports
prepared to ensure all duties
noted in the terms of reference
are fulfilled?
Are the arrangements to hold
the committee to account for its
performance operating
satisfactorily?

Annual Report of Governance and Audit
Committee that goes to Annual Council

Set out in the constitution and understood
by Members and officers

✓

Meeting dates are arranged with deadline
dates in mind to ensure they are met.
Council protocol to issue agenda at least
5 clear working days prior to the meeting.

✓

✓

Functions of the committee
Do the committee’s terms of
reference explicitly address all
the core areas identified in
CIPFA’s Position Statement?
● Good governance

The committee has actively engaged with
GT in its review of culture and
governance

✓
●

Assurance framework

●

Internal audit

●

External audit

✓
The committee received quarterly reports
from internal audit
The committee receives regular reports
from external audit and received
particular updates this year about the
review of culture and governance,
leading to the statutory recommendations

✓

✓

●

Financial reporting

✓

●

Risk management

✓

●

Value for money or best
value

✓

This is work also provided by internal and
external audit

●

Counter-fraud and
corruption

✓

This is work also provided by internal and
external audit.

Page 162

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
Is an annual evaluation
undertaken to assess whether
the committee is fulfilling its
terms of reference and that
adequate consideration has
been given to all core areas?
Has the audit committee
considered the wider areas
identified in CIPFA’s Position
Statement and whether it would
be appropriate for the
committee to undertake them?
Where coverage of core areas
has been found to be limited,
are plans in place to address
this?
Has the committee maintained
its non-advisory role by not
taking on any decision-making
powers that are not in line with
its core purpose?
Membership and support
Has an effective audit
committee structure and
composition of the committee
been selected?
This should include:
● Separation from the
executive
● An appropriate mix of
knowledge and skills
among the membership
● A size of committee that
is not unwieldy
● Where independent
members are used, that
have been appointed
using an appropriate
process
Does the chair of the committee
have appropriate knowledge
and skills

✓

✓

n/a

Core areas sufficiently covered

Members of the Committee
independent of the Executive.

are

✓

✓

n/a

n/a

n/a

✓

Are arrangements in place to
support the committee with
briefings and training?
✓

Has the membership of the
committee been assessed
against the core knowledge and

Annual report sets out the work
undertaken in accordance with the
committee terms of reference. This
includes all core areas.

Governance and Financial section within formal
Induction Programme for Members following
Elections. Training sessions provided throughout
the year, especially for the Statement of Accounts.
Members also request training when required. The
Chair also requested training in Treasury
Management at the meeting on 1 December and
this will take place during the first quarter.

✓

Page 163

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
skills framework and be found
to be satisfactory?
Does the committee have good
working relations with key
people and organisations,
including external audit, internal
audit and the chief finance
officer?
Is adequate secretariat and
administrative support to the
committee provided?

The committee has very good working
relationships with key officer, eg Director
of Finance, Director of law and
Democracy, and with internal and
external Audit.

✓

Provided by Democratic Services
✓

Effectiveness of the committee
Has the committee obtained
feedback on its performance
from those interacting with the
✓
committee or relying on its
work?
Has the committee evaluated
whether and how it is adding
value to the organisation?
Does the committee have an
action plan to improve any
areas of weakness?

Customer Feedback is detailed in the
quarterly Internal Audit update reports
and the Internal Audit Annual Report.

Partly through the Annual Report
✓
See actions recommended below.
✓

Page 164

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
Governance and Audit Committee Action Plan 2022/23 - Appendix 2
Following the completion of an annual assessment of the performance of the Governance and
Audit Committee for the period May 2021 to April 2022, the issues below were identified and
action will be undertaken during the period May 2022 to April 2023 to address these.
Ref

Action

Proposed Action

22-23/
01

Outcome of the work on the
Statutory Recommendations

22-23/
02

Review the committee’s
terms of reference to sure
they are up to date and
relevant
Update the local Code of
Corporate Governance

The committee notes that
regular reports on
progress are reported to
GPC and full Council. As
part of its remit to monitor
good governance, the
committee would expect to
receive a report on
progress/outcome from GT
in due course
To be undertaken as part
of a general review of
terms of reference of
committees
To be reviewed by this
committee and published
as a standalone document
on the Council’s website

22-23/
03

22-23/
04

22-23/
05

Move to make the Local
Code of Corporate
Governance web rather than
paper based
Training update to
committee members on local
authority treasury
management

Proposed
completion
date
July 2022

Responsible
officer / body

December
2022

DLD

April 2022

DLD

Create a dedicated web
page on the internet site work underway, see above

April 2022

DLD

At the request of the chair
further training for the
committee has been
arranged, to be provided
by the council’s external
treasury management
advisory firm.

April 2022

DF

Key:
DLD
DF

Director of Law and Democracy & acting Monitoring Officer
Director of Finance and acting S151 Officer

Page 165

GT

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Meeting

9 March 2022

Report Author

Director of Law and Democracy and Deputy Monitoring Officer

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Executive Summary:
This report is necessary in order to exclude the press and public from the meeting for
consideration of item 13. It will weigh the public interest factors for disclosure against the
public interest factors for exemption and explain why the exemption factors take priority.
The report will also state which paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended) the author is using in order to exclude the press and
public from the meeting.

Recommendation(s):
That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for agenda item 13, as it contains
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2, 3 & 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no direct financial implications.
Legal
As per Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Corporate
Thanet District Council will endeavour to keep the number of exempt reports it produces to a
minimum in order to promote transparency.

Page 167

Agenda Item 12
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of
opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not
share it, and (iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and people who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, gender, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender
reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies
to Marriage & civil partnership.
There are no specific equity and equality considerations that need to be addressed in this
report.

Corporate Priorities
This report does not directly relate to any of the corporate priorities:
● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

Whilst the starting point for all public meetings of the Council is to admit the public
and press, they may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted that confidential or exempt information would
be disclosed. Under such circumstances, confidential or exempt information may be
excluded from the public agenda. The public and press must be excluded from
meetings if confidential information will be considered and disclosed, and such
material must be excluded from the public agenda.

Meaning of confidential information
1.2

Confidential information means information given to the Council by a Government
Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or information which cannot
be publicly disclosed by Court Order.

Exempt information – discretion to exclude public
1.3

Subject to Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 (right to a fair trial) the public may
be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of the business
to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that “exempt” information would be
disclosed.

Page 168

Agenda Item 12
2.0

Exempt Information

2.1

The full rules are set out in Part 1 & 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972 (as Amended).

3.0

Reason Why Agenda Item 13 is considered to be “exempt”

3.1

The report author has classified Agenda Item 13 as disclosing exempt information
under paragraph 1 – Information relating to an individual, paragraph 2 - Information
which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual, paragraph 3 - Information relating
to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority
holding that information) and paragraph 7 - Information relating to any action taken or
to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime, of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) thereby
suggesting that the press and public be excluded from the meeting whilst this item is
debated.

4.0

Justification/Public Interest Test

Public interest factors for disclosure
4.1

Factors suggested by the Information Commissioner as being relevant to an
assessment of public interest apply to this information. Disclosure would:1.

Further public understanding of the issues involved;

2.

Further public participation in the public debate of issues, in that disclosure
would allow a more informed debate;

3.

Promote accountability and transparency by the Council for the decisions it
takes;

4.

Promote accountability and transparency in the spending of public money;

5.

Allow individuals and organisations /external agencies to understand
decisions made by the Council affecting their lives & activities and assist
individuals to challenge those decisions;

Reasons in favour of disclosure of information specific to the issue in question
None.
Public interest factors for exemption
Considerations which may weigh against a decision to disclose information include:

Page 169

Agenda Item 12
1.

Good local government depends on good decision-making and this needs to be
based on the best advice available and a full consideration of all the options
without fear of premature disclosure;

2.

Advice should be broad based and there may be a deterrent effect on external
experts or stakeholders who might be reluctant to provide advice because it
might be disclosed;

3.

The impartiality of the officers might be undermined if advice was routinely
made public as there is a risk that officials could come under political pressure
not to challenge ideas in the formulation of policy, thus leading to poorer
decision making;

4.

Members and officers also need to be able to conduct rigorous and candid risk
assessments of their policies and programmes including considerations of the
pros and cons without there being premature disclosure which might close off
better options;

5.

There needs to be a free space in which it is possible to 'think the unthinkable'
and use imagination, without the fear that policy proposals will be held up to
ridicule;

6.

Some aspects of Legal advice to Members may need to be taken in private as
disclosure of such information would prejudice the position of Council in the
event of Court proceedings taking place thereafter;

7.

Local Councils are obliged to adhere to legislation that include the Data
Protection Act, 1998; where appropriate and failure to do so may result in
litigation against Council by an aggrieved party thereby putting at risk the
general public interest to protect the public purse.

5.0

Not Excluding the Press and Public

5.1

There will be occasions when the meeting may decline to exclude the press and
public from the meeting. If that occurs it does not simply mean that those members of
the press and public who are present are allowed to stay for the discussion of the
item(s). Declining to exclude the press and public would also mean that the press
and public are allowed access to the actual report contained within the confidential
part of the agenda (what Democratic Services refer to as the “pink pages”).

5.2

Members may wish to note that if a committee member is of the view that it is
possible that the recommendation in this report may not be approved at the meeting,
they should let Democratic Services know (as soon as they have read the agenda
papers before the meeting); in order that spare copies are made available ready to
be distributed, if necessary, at the meeting.

5.3

If the referred item is not exempted, Democratic Services would also make
arrangements for the report to be retrospectively published on the Council’s website.

Page 170

Agenda Item 12
6.0

Decision Making Process

6.1

If the press and public are to be excluded for the agenda item; this Committee must
exercise its power to agree the recommendation.

Contact Officer: Nicholas Hughes, Committee Services Manager
Reporting to: Estelle Culligan, Director of Law and Democracy and Acting Monitoring
Officer.

Annex List
None

Background Papers
None

Corporate Consultation
Legal: Estelle Culligan, Director of Law and Democracy and Acting Monitoring Officer.

Page 171

This page is intentionally left blank

